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2012 marks the end of process we

undertook to reengineer your company to

reduce risk and create business with

more predictable earnings and dividend

stream and positioned for future growth We
have made significant progress in laying the

ground work for 2013 and beyond

During 2012 we successfully achieved

series of objectives We continued to monetize

equity investments thus eliminating associ

ated last dollar valuation risk and time

consuming oversight responsibilities Addi

tionally we have become more granular

through the exit of handful of our largest

investments and through sale or repayment

of $412 million of assets during 2012 sub

stantially proving the book value of the com
pany Our fully loaded cost base has been

reduced to enable us to operate in the most

efficient manner possible and we have mean

ingfully simplified our back office operations

consistent with the requirements necessary

to manage portfolio comprised primarily of

loan assets Finally we recently earned

Green Light letter from the SBA for sec

ond SBIC license an important milestone in

returning the company to earnings growth
With regard to capital management

during 2012 we repurchased 6.2 million

shares of stock at an average price of $4.40

per share and we paid 58 cents through five

dividend payments all of which will be clas

sified for tax purposes as return of capital

Looking forward we are excited about

the prospects for MCG Our three-year busi

ness plan is to deliver predictable and

high quality earnings and dividends on our

existing capital base through the origination

and management of granular loan portfolio

and meaningfully grow earnings through

incremental leverage from long-term flexible

funding sources including the SBA

In closing would like to thank Rick

Neu for his service as CEO and Milner and

Hugh Ewing for their service on the Board

has worked with the company since it was

established as an independent entity in 1998

and Hugh was member of the Board for

five years Hugh and provided wise coun

sel during and after the financial crisis

During his time as CEO Rick was instrumen

tal in helping design validate and implement

the changes which leave us well positioned

for the future

Hagen Saville

President CEO

DEAR STOCKHOLDERS

Very Truly Yours
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PART

ITEM BusiNEss

General

We are solutions-focused commercial finance company that provides capital and advisory services to middle market

companies throughout the United States Generally our portfolio companies use our capital investment to finance

acquisitions recapitalizations buyouts organic growth working capital and other general corporate purposes

We are an internally managed non-diversified closed-end investment company that has elected to be regulated as

business development company or BDC under the Investment Company Act of 1940 as amended or the 1940

Act As BDC we must meet various regulatory tests which include investing at least 70% of our total assets in private

or thinly traded public U.S.-based companies and limitations on our ability to incur indebtedness unless immediately

after such borrowing we have an asset coverage for total borrowings excluding SBIC debt of at least 200% i.e the

amount of debt generally may not exceed 50% of the value of our assets

In addition we have elected to be treated for federal income tax purposes as regulated investment company or RIC
under Subchapter of the Internal Revenue Code In order to continue to qualify as RIC for federal income tax

purposes and obtain favorable RIC tax treatment we must meet certain requirements including certain minimum

distribution requirements If we satisfy these requirements we generally will not have to pay corporatelevel taxes on

any income we distribute to our stockholders as distributions allowing us to substantially reduce or eliminate our

corporate-level tax liability From time to time our wholly owned subsidiaries may execute transactions that trigger

corporate-level tax liabilities In such cases we recognize tax provision in the period when it becomes more likely

than not that the taxable event will occur

Corporate Structure

We conduct some of our activities through wholly owned special-purpose financing subsidiary This subsidiary is

bankruptcy remote special-purpose entity to which we transfer certain loans The financing subsidiary in turn

transfers the loans to Delaware statutory trust For accounting purposes the transfer of the loans to the Delaware

statutory trust is structured as an on-balance sheet securitization We also use other wholly owned subsidiaries all

of which are structured as Delaware corporations and limited liability companies to hold the assets of one or more of

our portfolio companies Some of these subsidiaries in turn have wholly owned subsidiaries all of which are Delaware

corporations that hold the assets of certain of our portfolio companies

We also make investments in qualifying small businesses through Solutions Capital L.P or Solutions Capital our

wholly owned subsidiary licensed by the United States Small Business Administration or the SBA to operate as

Small Business Investment Company or SBIC under the Small Business Investment Act of 1958 as amended or

the SBIC Act As an SBIC Solutions Capital is subject to variety of regulations concerning among other things the

size and nature of the companies in which it may invest and the structure of those investments

Company Background

We were incorporated in Delaware in 1998 On March 18 1998 we changed our name from MCG Inc to MCG Credit

Corporation and on June 14 2001 we changed our name from MCG Credit Corporation to MCG Capital Corporation

Our principal executive offices are located at 1001 19th Street North 10th Floor Arlington VA 22209 and our telephone

number is 703 247-7500

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K the terms Company MCG we us and our refer to MCG Capital Corporation

and its wholly owned subsidiaries including its affiliated securitization trust unless the context otherwise requires

We are subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended or the Exchange

Act and accordingly file reports proxy statements and other information with the Securities Exchange Commission

or the SEC Such reports proxy statements and other information can be read and copied at the public reference

facilities maintained by the SEC at the Public Reference Room 100 Street N.E Washington D.C 20549 Information

regarding the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 The

SEC maintains web site http//www.sec.ç4ov that contains reports proxy and information statements and other

information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC

Our Internet address is www.mcqcapital.com We are not including the information contained on our website as part

of or incorporating it by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K We make available free of charge on our



website our Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q Current Reports on Form 8-K and

amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Exchange Act as soon as

reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with or furnish it to the SEC

Our logo trademarks and service marks are the property of MCG Other trademarks or service marks appearing in

this Annual Report on Form 10-K are the property of their respective holders

Significant Developments in 2012

Control Investments We exited monetized or restructured five control investments including Broadview

Networks Holdings Inc or Broadview Jet Plastica Investors NPS Holding Group Orbitel Holdings and Intran

Media thereby reducing our control investments to an aggregate of $33.9 million in the debt securities of two

companies and $16.1 million in the equity securities of one company

Originations and Advances We made $162.0 million in originations and advances to new and existing

portfolio companies principally in the form of loans 94.4% or $152.9 million including ten new investments

We invested the remaining $9.1 million principally in minority equity investments as well as follow-on

investments and paid-in-kind or P1K dividends on existing investments

Equity Monetizations and Realizations We received $65.0 million in proceeds from the sale of equity

investments principally the sale of securities in each of Orbitel Holdings LLC Stratford School Holdings Inc

GSDM Holdings LLC and Jenzabar Inc For the twelve months ended December 31 2012 we reduced our

equity investments from 15% to less than 10% of the fair value of our total investment portfolio

Loan Monetizations We received $347.2 million in loan payoffs and amortization payments

Dividends We declared 57.5 cents per share in dividends and paid $56.0 million in total dividends

Open-Market Purchases of Our Stock We repurchased 6182046 shares of our common stock at weighted

average purchase price of $4.40 per share We acquired these shares from sellers in open market transactions

We retire these shares upon settlement thereby reducing the number of shares issued and outstanding

Board and Management Changes Effective November 2012 Hagen Saville became our CEO
succeeding Richard Neu who remains Chairman of the Companys Board of Directors From

November 2011 to October 2012 Mr Saville served as the Companys President and Chief Operating Officer

before which he was Executive Vice President of Business Development from March 1998 to October2011

In addition effective December 31 2012 MCG reduced the size of its board of directors from seven members

to five

Operational Rea/ignment We incurred costs associated with our transition plan of $9.3 million or $0.13 per

share that includes $8.8 million or $0.12 per share of transition costs included in operating expenses and

$0.5 million or $0.01 per share of realized losses associated with the write-off of fixed assets Transition

costs include $2.3 million in accelerated deferred financing fees that we recorded as interest expense

$1 .4 million in retention and inducement payments that we recorded as salaries and benefits $0.3 million in

amortization expenses associated with the elimination of positions that we recorded as amortization of

employee restricted stock awards and $4.8 million in severance moving expenses and IT systems conversion

costs that we recorded as general and administrative expenses As of December 31 2012 we had 18 full-

time employees and three part-time employees

New Liquidity Facility In November 2012 we entered into two-year $20 million unsecured revolving credit

facility with Bank of America N.A The facility provides short-term liquidity to finance working capital and for

other general corporate purposes

Reduced Reliance on Leverage We reduced our outstanding debt by $182 million principally by reducing

our borrowings under our MCG Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1 or 2006-1 Trust and repaying and terminating

our SunTrust Warehouse facility and our Series 2007-A Private Placement Notes For the twelve months

ended December 31 2012 we reduced our debt-to-equity leverage profile from 11 to 0.71

Reduction in Loans on Non-AccrualAs of December31 2011 and 2012 loans on non-accrual atfairvalue

declined from $19.3 million or 3.1% of ourtotal loan portfolio to $0.6 million or 0.1% ofourtotal loan portfolio

principally resulting from the sale of NPS Holding Group and the wind-down of Jet Plastica Investors For the



same comparative periods loans on non-accrual at cost declined from $83.2 million or 11.9% of our total

loan portfolio to $16.8 million or 3.7% of our total loan portfolio

Outlook

During 2012 we substantially completed our operational and financial transition to return the Company to its roots as

middle market lender As part of the transition we accomplished several important strategic initiatives which included

exiting majority of our control investments deploying capital in the form of loans limiting equity investments to minority

investments reducing leverage risk in terms of our debt to equity ratio and simplifying our operations

Using unrestricted cash and restricted cash from our SBIC we ended fiscal year 2012 with $121 million of cash on-

hand to make new investments Less than 10% of our investment portfolio at fair value matures in 2013 and

approximately half of those maturities will be used to pay down our 2006-1 Trust

Assuming continued stability in the market actionable opportunities that meet our underwriting standards portfolio

granularity requirements and no material repayments beyond scheduled maturities we anticipate that we will

substantially deploy our cash on-hand in 2013

We intend to make our investments through our SBICs Solutions Capital and if license is granted by the SBA
Solutions Capital II corner-stone of our funding strategy As of December 31 2012 our investment in Solutions

Capital includes approximately $48 million of cash $188 million of investments at fair value $150 million of debt and

$86 million of equity

In September2012 we submitted documentation to the SBA in support of potential SBIC license for Solutions Capital

II L.P In February 2013 we received letter from the SBA inviting us to file formal license application which we

are in the process of preparing for submission There is no assurance that the SBA will grant the additional license in

any specified time period or at all Currently second SBIC license would grant us the ability to borrow up to an

additional $75 million from the SBA or two times the amount of statutory equity capital we invest in Solutions Capital

II L.P If approved and based on available capital we intend to fund the entire $37.5 million using unrestricted cash

We believe that our reorganized infrastructure has resulted in smaller and simpler yet leverageable operating profile

Excluding potential leverage from second SBIC license or other potentially accretive opportunities we anticipate

that our cost to borrow will remain materially unchanged at approximately 4.5%

Under the $35 million stock repurchase program authorized by our board of directors in January 2012 we continue

to repurchase shares of our common stock in open market transactions including through block purchases depending

on prevailing market conditions and other factors As of February 28 2013 we have repurchased and retired 6460881

common shares at weighted average purchase price of $4.40 per share

MCGs Investment Portfolio

As of December 31 2012 and excluding investments that we consider passive investments in our 2006-1 Trust the

majority of our investment portfolio is loans to middle-market companies that generate annual revenue of less than

$50 million and earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization or EBITDA in the range of $3-i million

Generally our portfolio companies use our capital investments to finance acquisitions recapitalizations and buyouts

as well as for organic growth and working capital We identify and source new portfolio companies through multiple

channels including private equity sponsors investment bankers brokers fund-less sponsors institutional syndication

partners owner operators and other club lenders that facilitate peer-to-peer loans We generally invest in some

combination of senior debt second-lien debt secured and unsecured subordinated debt and equity
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The following table summarizes the fair value and revenue contributions of our ten largest investments As of

December 31 2012 these ten investments comprised 50.8% of the fair value of our portfolio and contributed 36.3%

of our total revenues during 2012 We originated approximately $51 million or 20% of the fair value of our top ten

largest portfolio investments in the fourth quarter

dollars in thousands As of December 31 2012 Year ended December 31 2012

%of %of Total

Company Industry Fair Value Portfolio Revenues Revenues

RadioPharmacy Investors LLC Healthcare 34270 7.2% 4115 6.8%

NDSSI Holdings LLC Electronics 33361 7.0 4407 7.2

Capstone Logistics LLC Logistics 27237 5.7 3224 5.3

GL Investment Holdings LLC Insurance 26529 5.5 2884 4.7

Education Management Inc Education 25260 5.3 2480 4.1

Oceans Acquisition Inc Healthcare 23237 4.9 36 0.1

Cruz Bay Publishing Inc Publishing 19942 4.2 1889 3.1

South Bay Mental Health Center Inc Healthcare 18219 3.8 905 1.5

SC Academy Holdings Inc Education 17841 3.7 1697 2.8

Midwest Technical Institute Inc Education

Totalten largest investments

Other portfolio companies

Total investment portfolio
_______________________________________________________

We exited our investment in NDSSI Holdings LLC in January 2013 and we reduced our commitment in Oceans Acquisition Inc in February

2013 by $7.5 million by selling portion of our loan to another investor

16682 3.5 433 0.7

242578 50.8% 22070 36.3%

235146 49.2% 38923 63.7%

477724 100.0% 60993 100.0%

As of December 31 2012 our control companies comprised 10.5% of the fair value of our portfolio and contributed

12.1% of our total revenues during 2012

Competition

We compete with many types of investors for the portfolio companies in which we invest including public and private

funds including other BDCs and SBIC5 commercial and investment banks commercial financing companies and
to the extent they provide an alternative form of financing private equity funds Additionally because competition for

investment opportunities generally has increased in recent years among alternative investment vehicles entities such

as hedge funds have begun to seek out new territory Some of our existing and potential competitors are substantially

larger and have considerably greater financial technical and marketing resources than we do Some may also have

higher risk tolerances or different risk assessments allowing them to consider wider variety of investments and

establish more relationships than we can

The competitive pressures we face require our management team to develop and maintain strong relationships with

intermediaries financial institutions investment bankers commercial bankers financial advisors attorneys

accountants consultants and other individuals within our network in order to keep apprised of potential investment

opportunities

Winning attractive investment opportunities requires that we offer terms and conditions on par with or better than

our peers While we do not seek to compete primarily based on the interest rates we offer we may lose investment

opportunities if we do not match our competitors pricing terms and structure We may be precluded from taking

advantage of attractive investment opportunities from time to time as result of an inability to meet market terms

Life Cycle of Debt and Equity Originations

The key aspects of our portfolio origination servicing and monitoring process are set forth below Generally we intend

to keep the amount of our investment in any one company at or below $15 million which we may accomplish by selling

portion of our initial investment to another investor post-close We generally make loans with four- to six-year stated

maturities We believe the market-average hold period of loan is approximately three years Our equity investments

generally do not have maturity dates



INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGIES

Our investment objective is to achieve attractive returns by generating current income and capital gains on our

investments We seek to increase our earnings and net asset value or NAy by investing primarily in debt securities

of middle-market companies On more limited basis we make equity investments which we anticipate limiting to

approximately 10% of the fair value of our investments We intend to earn interest dividends and fees on our investments

and we may report unrealized appreciation and depreciation as the fair value of our investments periodically increases

or decreases We realize capital gains or losses when the investment is eventually monetized

The cost basis of our investments include unamortized original issue discount premiums and fees as well as paid-

in-kind interest and dividends that are generally due at maturity or upon our exit from the investment

When we originate debt and equity investments we strive to achieve favorable risk-adjusted rates of return in the form

of current income and capital gains while maintaining credit and investment quality in our portfolio Before making

investments we apply well established credit processes to assess investment risk and we structure and price our

investments accordingly We have developed proprietary analytics data and knowledge to support our business

activities We designed our investment process to achieve the following strategic objectives

generate favorable risk-adjusted rates of return by delivering capital and strategic insight to increase our

portfolio companies enterprise value

maintain sound credit and investment discipline and pricing practices regardless of market conditions to avoid

adverse investment selection and

manage risk by utilizing an integrated team approach to business development underwriting and investment

servicing

We maintain flexible approach to funding that permits us to adjust price maturity and other transaction terms to

accommodate the needs of our portfolio companies

ORGANIZATION OF MCG IN VESTMENT PROFESSIONALS

Our organization includes experienced professionals with the ability to originate underwrite finance syndicate monitor

and exit investments that generate attractive returns The following bullets describe the key functional teams that are

responsible for our investment processes

Asset ManagementOur Asset Management department co-headed by two Managing Directors is

responsible for identifying and performing financial and risk analysis of potential investment opportunities

This department also underwrites and manages our investment portfolio and leads any work-out or

restructuring that may occur from time to time After an investment is approved and funded individual deal

teams comprised generally of Managing Director or Vice President an analyst and an in-house attorney

have continuing ongoing responsibility for monitoring the performance of our investments

Credit CommitteeProspective investments are presented to MCGs credit committee for review and approval

prior to issuing term sheet Final approval by the committee generally occurs after the deal team has

substantially completed the underwriting process The credit committee includes our Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer Co-Heads of Asset Management and General Counsel Our board of directors has

delegated authority to the credit committee to originate underwrite and fund any non-control non-distressed

investment of $15 million or less provided that the equity component does not exceed $5 million ii originate

any distressed investment of $5 million or less and iii increase any existing investment previously approved

by the Companys investment and valuation committee up to certain over-line or established amount As

matter of practice our board of directors is invited to participate at every credit committee meeting and in the

review and approval of all investments irrespective of investment size

In vestment and Valuation Committee of the Board of DirectorsThe investment and valuation committee

reviews and approves all investments over $15 million and has the discretion to review and approve other

investments Subsequent to the review and funding of an investment the investment and valuation committee

makes recommendations that are used by our board of directors for its quarterly determination of the fair value

of our investment portfolio

The following sections provide additional information on how we conduct the investment process In addition to the

teams described above we also have group of professionals that provide accounting finance human resources

investor relations legal and other services that support our investment professionals and other corporate compliance

and governance functions



BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

MCG and its predecessors have been active investors in middle-market companies since 1990 We believe our

experience in middle-market investing is meaningful competitive advantage that we use to operate our business

Our senior investment professionals and members of our credit committee have on-average each made over

$500 million of investments throughout their careers principally in middle market companies and in industries that we

target such as healthcare business services education technology software information services and consumer

directed businesses

Our deal teams identify and source new investments through multiple channels including private equity sponsors

investment bankers brokers fund-less sponsors institutional syndication partners other club lenders and owner-

operators The deal teams also market to prospective portfolio companies identified through past relationships with

executives information gathered through proprietary and public research and relationships with investment bankers

accountants lawyers and other professionals

Once we identify prospective portfolio company we review its financial reports business plan corporate activities

and other relevant information gathered from third-party databases industry reports and publications We focus on

companys fundamental performance against industry conditions and operational benchmarks and evaluate

acceptable risks and returns We work with our current and prospective portfolio companies to understand their

business as well as the costs and benefits of their corporate development initiatives opportunities and competition

Our detailed analysis allows us to support our portfolio companies corporate development decisions even in some

cases where short-term financial ratios or other metrics may decline temporarily

RISK ANALYSIS

After identifying prospective investment we review the companys operating history executive leadership team

opportunities and the market for the companys products and services during the life of our investment as well as the

potential risks and threats to the business or the markets in which it competes As early as possible in the process

we generally conduct on-site meetings with key executives to learn more about the investment directly from the

companys leadership team and tour the companys key facilities or operating locations

To assess the validity and stability of the companys historical and projected financial performance we often either

ourselves or through third-party firm perform review of quality of earnings For select transactions we may engage

or rely on the research of industry specific due diligence firms that provide market research or insights that we judge

as prudent or helpful in in the underwriting process

Based on our experience we also look at the companys capitalization proposed sources and uses of proceeds

structural considerations of various securities in the capital structure leverage expected cash generation affirmative

and negative covenants methods for repayment or exit from the investment and other important considerations specific

to the investment

In particular we analyze certain key risks in light of our underwriting criteria including financial characteristics and

portfolio-specific risk that might arise from the new investment including but not limited to the following

Industry Risksmaturity cyclicality and seasonality associated with the industries in which we invest as well

as the proportion of our portfolio that is invested in specific industries and individual portfolio companies

Competitive Risksstrengths and weaknesses of the prospective portfolio company relative to their

competitors pricing product quality customer loyalty substitution and switching costs brand positioning and

capitalization We also assess the defensibility of prospects market position and its opportunity for increasing

market share

Management Riskstrack records industry experience turnover in leadership concentration of knowledge

the prospective portfolio companys business plan and management incentives

Regulatory Risksindustry specific regulation and regulation reform e.g healthcare reform increased

regulatory oversight government reimbursement of for-profit schools etc and economic or macro issues

that may affect an investment e.g cost of utilities or access to power at historical rates in certain regions

access to nuclear materials for medical imaging etc as well as regulations that may change the incentives

of partners or investors in the investment e.g tax reform that may impact private equity funds or hedge funds

regulations of commercial banks expansion of BDCs or SBIC regulations

Customer Concentration and Market Riskssustainability stability and opportunities for the growth of the

prospective portfolio companys customer base including the number and size of its customers attrition rates

and dependence on one or limited number of customers and



Technology Risksimpact of technological advances in the industries and portfolio companies in which we

may invest

In addition we evaluate industry-specific comparisons such as cash flow margins product and cash flow diversification

revenue growth rates cost structure and other operating benchmarks that are derived from historical and projected

financial statements Qualitative attributes we evaluate may include management skill and depth industry risk

substitution risk sensitivity to economic cycles cyclicality geographic diversification facilities infrastructure

administration requirements and product quality and ranking

We have developed series of valuation techniques to assist us in determining the risk of potential investment and

quantifying its underlying value Analyses of comparative public and private market transactions and other data form

the basis of our enterprise valuations along with current and projected market conditions We also look to comparable

public companies to benchmark the value of the proposed investment using public market data Using these methods

provides multiple views of the value of the enterprise allowing us to calculate certain metrics used in both risk assessment

and product pricing such as loan-to-value ratios for our debt investments

UNDERwRI PING AND RISK MANAGEMENT

We initiate our underwriting process in tandem with the business development process focusing on investment risk

analysis We perform standard due diligence on prospective portfolio companys financial performance as well as

customized analyses of its operations systems accounting policies human resources and competitive legal and

regulatory environments

In addition to gaining an in-depth understanding of prospective portfolio company our research and due diligence

process evaluates industry-wide operational strategic and valuation issues We also examine emerging trends and

competitive threats to the portfolio company as well as the industry in which it operates Portfolio companies may
later draw on our valuable knowledge and insight obtained through our research to refine their strategic plans identify

acquisition opportunities and set appropriate financial and operational goals

When presenting prospective investment to our credit committee for approval the deal team delivers detailed

investment memorandum Should the dollar amount of the proposed investment exceed certain pre-defined thresholds

or include significant investment in equity the investment memorandum is also submitted to the investment and

valuation committee of our board of directors for review and approval The investment memorandum generally consists

of the following

transaction overview including description of the business and the investment opportunity

transaction rationale underwriting considerations and an assessment of risks and mitigants

historical financial analyses projections and scenario modeling

service or product overview customer and industry analyses operational and regulatory analyses

an assessment of the companys enterprise valuation relative to comparable public and private companies

description of the capital structure and the investment risk and return characteristics and

review of insights or reports obtained from third-party experts or due diligence firms

INVESTMENT STRUCTURE

We evaluate our portfolio companies needs to develop investment structures that meet their capital requirements and

business plans while protecting our own capital with an expectation toward generating risk-adjusted returns through

current income on our loans and capital gains on our equity investments We structure our debt investments to mitigate

risk by requiring appropriate financial and collateral coverage thresholds To create the most effective and responsive

deal structures we consider payment priority collateral or asset value and financial support from guarantors and other

credit enhancements Since our investments typically include cash-flow loans rather than asset-backed loans we

factor the enterprise value of the prospective portfolio companys assets into our credit decisions For loans classified

as senior secured second-lien and subordinated secured we receive security interest in all or portion of the portfolio

companies tangible and intangible assets entitling us to preferred position relative to both unsecured creditors and

more junior lenders on the proceeds of those assets in the event of liquidation In addition our loan documents

generally include affirmative covenants that require our portfolio companies to provide periodic financial information

notification of material events and compliance with laws as well as restrictive covenants that prevent the portfolio

company from taking range of significant actions such as incurring additional indebtedness or making acquisitions

Financial covenants require the portfolio companies to maintain or achieve specified financial ratios such as cash flow

leverage interest charge coverage total charge coverage and in certain cases meet specific operational benchmarks



Our business strategy dictates that we generally invest in some combination of the following securities

Senior Secured DebtWe provide cash flow based senior secured debt in the form of revolving credit facilities

as well as amortizing term loans bullet maturity term loans and uni-tranche loans that blend characteristics

of both senior and subordinated financing Senior secured debt ranks senior in priority of payment to other

debt and equity and benefits from first priority security interest in the assets of the borrower that serve as

collateral for the loans As such virtually all other creditors rank junior to senior secured debt in the event

of insolvency Some of our borrowers grant first lien on working capital collateral i.e receivables to asset-

based lenders that is outside of our collateral pool Assuming we have first lien on all other collateral in

such cases we would still classify our security as senior secured Due to its lower risk profile and often more

restrictive covenants as compared to other debt senior secured debt generally earns lower return

Second-Lien DebtWe on occasion provide second-lien term loans on sole-source or participant basis

where assets or enterprise-value based borrowing capacity is not readily available within typical senior debt

leverage constraints Second-lien debt ranks senior in priority of payment to subordinated debt unsecured

debt select junior securities and equity While second lien debt benefits from collateral interest in the assets

of the borrower its liens are subordinated to those of senior secured debt in liquidation As such senior

secured creditors rank ahead of second lien creditors in the event of insolvency with respect to pursuing

remedies against the collateral of portfolio company and receiving the proceeds thereof Due to its higher

risk profile and often less restrictive covenants as compared to senior debt second-lien debt generally earns

higher return than senior debt We classify second-lien term loans as Subordinated Secured debt in our

consolidated financial statements

Secured and Unsecured Subordinated DebtWe invest in secured and unsecured subordinated debt which

may be structured with combination of current interest deferred interest and equity-linked components

Payment of all subordinated debt whether secured or unsecured ranks behind payment of senior secured

and second-lien debt While the security interest of subordinated secured debt ranks behind that of the senior

secured and second-lien debt subordinated unsecured debt enjoys no security interest in the borrowers

assets In the event of insolvency senior secured and second-lien creditors will be paid in full before the

subordinated secured and subordinated unsecured creditors Due to its higher risk profile and often less

restrictive covenants as compared to other types of loans subordinated debt generally earns higher return

than other debt

EquityWe may from time-to-time invest in minority equity positions with private equity partners or on our

own In addition we may receive warrants to purchase preferred or common stock of portfolio company
that are related to our debt investments in such portfolio company Preferred stock ranks senior to common

stock and often carries the right to receive preferential return upon the sale of the company

To protect our investments and maximize our returns we negotiate carefully the structure of each debt and equity

security in our investment portfolio and may require board observation rights as part of our initial investment to keep

abreast of company matters Our loan and equity documentation generally includes terms governing interest rate

amortization prepayment premiums financial covenants operating covenants ownership and corporate governance

parameters dilution parameters liquidation preferences voting rights and put or call rights In some cases our loan

agreements also allow for interest rate increases and decreases to the extent the portfolio companys financial or

operational performance varies materially from the portfolio companys business plan

In addition to capital we also offer managerial assistance to our portfolio companies Typically this assistance involves

strategic advice evaluation of business plans financial modeling assistance and industry research and expertise

Providing assistance to our portfolio companies enables us to maximize our value proposition for our portfolio

companies which in turn helps maximize our investment returns

INVESTMENT APPROVAL PROCESS

Our investment approval process begins with an initial screening of business plan or financing solicitation by either

Managing Director or Vice President referred to as deal sponsor to assess eligibility sector risk profile investment

fit and expected returns There is weekly meeting at which all prospective investments are discussed The Asset

Management department prepares pipeline report consisting of an internal summary of the opportunity company
materials and an investment structuring worksheet for review by the credit committee Simultaneously non-binding

indication of interest may also be executed in support of private equity firm issuing bid for the transaction Deals

are judged among other things by prospects revenue run rate continuity of solid cash flow percentage of recurring

revenue gross profit margin bad debt as percentage of revenue customer renewal rate the prospects marketing

niche level of competition customer base quality and concentration and strength of the management team



The credit committee determines whether the investment should be pursued giving consideration to the risk return

profile industry concentrations and general economic outlook for the sector in which the business operates In these

meetings the credit committee also offers the deal sponsor insight into key issues that must be resolved before

potential investment is funded If the credit committee agrees to move forward with an investment the terms are

documented initially by signed term sheet or letter of intent as applicable consistent with the pipeline report and

committee clearance and the deal proceeds to the documentation stage The term sheet establishes the terms and

conditions under which we propose to enter into credit or investment relationship

Generally our underwriting process begins after the Asset Management team receives signed term sheet or letter

of intent The assigned deal team is responsible for oversight and completion of comprehensive due diligence and

is expected to investigate and report on all critical aspects of the proposed investment Our due diligence often includes

review of financial statements discussion with key members of management review of material contracts background

checks reviews of customer and vendor relationships confirmation of historical results and assumptions underlying

forecasted results When necessary or advisable based on industry or the history of the prospect itself third party

diligence is conducted The underwriting process includes legal and business due diligence and typically an on-site

visit with the prospect company including its management team and any other key employees

Once the underwriting process is complete the deal sponsor presents credit approval memorandum including

detailed findings of the foregoing underwriting process to the credit committee and if required the investment and

valuation committee If approved the deal proceeds to final documentation and closure All of our investments are

approved by our credit committee In addition investments of over $15 million must also be approved by the investment

and valuation committee of our board of directors

INVESTMENT FUNDING

We fund our investments using cash from our balance sheet and some of the loans in turn are used as collateral in

our secured debt facility In 2012 our secured debt facilities included certain restrictions on the types of investments

that could be used as collateral See the Liquidity and Capital Resources-Borrowings section of our Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for additional information As BDC we

are also subject to certain restrictions on incurring debt For example we are not permitted to incur indebtedness

unless immediately after such borrowing we meet coverage ratio of total assets to total senior securities which
include all of our borrowings excluding those made by our SBIC and any preferred stock we have then issued of at

least 200%

INVESTMENT MONITORING AND RESTRUCTURING

We monitor the status and financial performance of each company in our portfolio in order to evaluate overall portfolio

quality and to facilitate quarterly valuations which are approved by our board of directors We are proactive in advising

and communicating with companies that are underperforming and in many instances have added better covenant

protection and rights over time During the process of monitoring loan in default if required or necessary to protect

our security interest we will send notice of non-compliance outlining the specific defaults that have occurred and

preserving our contractual rights and remedies followed by review of the collateral if any

When our attempts to collect past due principal and/or interest on loan are unsuccessful we analyze the appropriate

course of action In some cases we may consider restructuring the investment to better reflect the current financial

performance of the portfolio company We may need to extend liquidity to companies from time to time as part of

restructuring Such restructuring may among otherthings involve deferring principal and interest payments adjusting

interest rates or warrant positions imposing additional fees amending financial or operating covenants or converting

debt to equity In connection with restructuring we generally receive compensation from the portfolio company
When restructuring is not an appropriate course of additional action we generally pursue remedies available to us

to minimize potential losses including initiating foreclosure liquidation proceedings or selling the loan

When one of our loans becomes more than 90 days past due or if we otherwise do not expect the portfolio company
to be able to service its debt and other obligations we will as general matter place all or portion of the loan on

non-accrual status and cease recognizing interest income on that loan until all principal and interest has been brought

current through payment or restructuring such that the interest income is deemed to be collectible However we may
make exceptions to this policy if the loan has sufficient collateral value and is in the process of collection If the fair

value of loan is below cost we may cease recognizing paid-in-kind interest and/or the accretion of discount on the

debt investment until such time that the fair value equals or exceeds cost
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INVESTMENT POLICIES

Our investment policies provide that we will not

act as an underwriter of securities of other issuers except to the extent that we may be deemed an underwriter

of securities purchased by us that must be registered under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended before

they may be offered or sold to the public or ii in connection with offerings of securities by our portfolio

companies

sell securities short in an uncovered position

write or buy uncovered put or call options except to the extent of options warrants or conversion privileges

in connection with our loans or other investments and rights to require the issuers of such investments or their

affiliates to repurchase them under certain circumstances

engage in the purchase or sale of commodities or commodity contracts including futures contracts except

for the purpose of hedging in the ordinary course of business or where necessary in working out distressed

loan or investment situations or

acquire more than 3% of the voting stock of or invest more than 5% of our total assets in any securities issued

by any other investment company except if we acquire them as part of merger consolidation or acquisition

of assets or if they result from sale of portfolio company or otherwise as permitted under the 1940 Act

All of the above policies and the investment and lending guidelines set by our board of directors or any committees

including our investment objective to achieve current income and capital gains are not fundamental as defined under

the 1940 Act Therefore our board may change them without notice to or approval by our stockholders However

any change may require the consent of our lenders

Other than the restrictions pertaining to the issuance of senior securities under the 1940 Act the percentage restrictions

on investments generally apply on the effective date of the transaction subsequent change in percentage resulting

from market fluctuations or any cause other than an action by us will not require us to dispose of portfolio securities

or to take other action to satisfy the percentage restriction

We intend to conduct our business so as to retain our status as BDC As such we may not acquire any assets

other than non-investment assets necessary and appropriate to our operations as BDC if after giving effect to such

acquisition the value of our qualifying assets is less than 70% of the value of our total assets

Investment Adviser

We have no investment adviser and are internally managed by our executive officers under the supervision of the

board of directors Our investment decisions are made by our officers directors and senior investment professionals

who serve on our credit and investment and valuation committees None of our executive officers or other employees

has the unilateral authority to approve any investment

Regulation

INVESTMENT COMPANY ACT OF 1940

As BDC we are regulated under the 1940 Act The BDC structure provides stockholders the ability to retain the

liquidity of publicly traded stock while sharing in the possible benefits if any of investing in primarily privately owned

companies

In part the 1940 Act requires us to be organized in the United States for the purpose of investing in or lending to

primarily private companies and making managerial assistance available to them As BDC we may use capital

provided by public stockholders and from other sources to invest in long-term private investments in businesses

We may not however change the nature of our business so as to cease to be or withdraw our election as BDC

unless authorized by vote of majority of our outstanding voting securities The 1940 Act defines majority of the

outstanding voting securities as the lesser of

67% or more of such companys shares present at meeting if more than 50% of the outstanding shares of

such company are present or represented by proxy or

ii more than 50% of the outstanding shares of such company

We currently do not anticipate any substantial change in the nature of our business
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Qualifying Assets

BDC must have been organized and have its principal place of business in the United States and must be operated

for the purpose of making investments in the types of securities described in or below Thus under the

1940 Act we may not acquire any asset other than those of the type listed in Section 55a of the 1940 Act which are

referred to as qualifying assets unless at the time the acquisition is made qualifying assets represent at least 70%

of the companys total assets The principal categories of qualifying assets relevant to our business are the following

Securities purchased in transactions not involving any public offering from the issuer of such securities which

issuer subject to certain limited exceptions

is an eligible portfolio company orfrom any person who is or has been during the preceding 13 months

an affiliated person of an eligible portfolio company or from any other person subject to such rules

as may be prescribed by the SEC An eligible portfolio company is defined in the 1940 Act as any

issuer that

is organized under the laws of and has its principal place of business in the United States

ii is not an investment company other than small business investment company wholly owned

by us or company that would be an investment company but for certain exclusions under

the 1940 Act and

iii does not have any class of securities listed on national securities exchange

is company that meets the requirements of ai and ii above but is not an eligible portfolio company
because it has issued class of securities on national securities exchange if

at the time of the purchase we own at least 50% of the greatest number of equity securities

of such issuer and securities convertible into or exchangeable for such securities and the

greatest amount of debt securities of such issuer held by us at any point in time during the

period when such issuer was an eligible portfolio company and

ii we are one of the 20 largest holders of record of such issuers outstanding voting securities

or

is company that meets the requirements of ai and ii above but is not an eligible portfolio company
because it has issued class of securities on national securities exchange if the aggregate market

value of such companys outstanding voting and non-voting common equity is less than $250.0 million

Securities of any eligible portfolio company that we control

Securities purchased in private transaction from U.S issuer that is not an investment company or from

an affiliated person of the issuer or in transactions incident thereto if the issuer is in bankruptcy and subject

to reorganization or if the issuer immediately prior to the purchase of its securities was unable to meet its

obligations as they came due without material assistance other than conventional lending or financing

arrangements

Securities of an eligible portfolio company purchased from any person in private transaction if there is no

ready market for such securities and we already own 60% of the outstanding equity of the eligible portfolio

company

Securities received in exchange for or distributed on or with respect to securities described in through

above or pursuant to the exercise of warrants or rights relating to such securities

Cash cash items U.S Government securities or high-quality debt securities maturing in one year or less from

the time of investment

Control as defined by the 1940 Act is presumed to exist where BDC beneficially owns more than 25% of the

outstanding voting securities of the portfolio company For the foreseeable future we do not expect to add new control

positions to our portfolio

Significant Managerial Assistance

In order to count portfolio securities as qualifying assets for the purpose of the 70% test discussed above we must

either control the issuer of the securities or offer to make available significant managerial assistance except that

where we act together to purchase such securities in conjunction with one or more other persons one of the other

persons in the group may make available uch managerial assistance Making available significant managerial

assistance means among other things to offer to provide and if accepted provide significant guidance and counsel
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concerning the management operations or business objectives and policies of portfolio company through monitoring

of its operations selective participation in board and management meetings consulting with and advising its officers

and directors or other organizational or financial guidance

Warrants and Options

Under the 1940 Act we are subject to restrictions on the amount of warrants options restricted stock or rights to

purchase shares of capital stock that we may have outstanding at any time In particular the amount of capital stock

that would result from the conversion or exercise of all outstanding warrants options or rights to purchase capital stock

cannot exceed 25% of our total outstanding shares of capital stock This amount is reduced to 20% of our total

outstanding shares of capital stock if the amount of warrants options or rights issued pursuant to an executive

compensation plan would exceed 15% of our total outstanding shares of capital stock We have received exemptive

relief from the SEC permitting us to issue restricted stock to our employees and directors subject to the above conditions

among others

Indebtedness and Senior Securities

We will be permitted under specified conditions to issue multiple classes of indebtedness and one class of stock

senior to our common stock if our asset coverage as defined in the 1940 Act is at least equal to 200% immediately

after each such issuance In addition we may not be permitted to declare any cash dividend or other distribution on

our outstanding common shares or purchase any such shares unless at the time of such declaration or purchase
we have asset coverage of at least 200% after deducting the amount of such dividend distribution or purchase price

We may also borrow amounts up to 5% of the value of our total assets for temporary or emergency purposes

Capital Structure

As BDC we generally cannot issue and sell our common stock at price below the current NAV per share We

may however sell our common stock or warrants options or rights to acquire our common stock at price below

the current NAV of our common stock in rights offering to our stockholders if our board of directors determines

that such sale is in the best interests of the Company and our stockholders our stockholders approve the sale of

our common stock at price that is less than the current NAy and the price at which our common stock is to be

issued and sold is not less than price that in the determination of our board of directors closely approximates the

market value of such securities less any sales load

We may also be prohibited under the 1940 Act from participating in certain transactions with our affiliates without the

prior approval of our directors who are not interested persons and in some cases prior approval by the SEC

We do not intend to acquire securities issued by any investment company that exceed the limits imposed by the 1940

Act Under these limits we generally cannot acquire more than 3% of the voting stock of any registered investment

company as defined in the 1940 Act invest more than 5% of the value of our total assets in the securities of one

such investment company or invest more than 10% of the value of our total assets in the securities of such investment

companies in the aggregate

1940 Act Code of Ethics

We have adopted and will maintain code of ethics that establishes procedures for personal investments and restricts

certain personal securities transactions by our officers and directors Personnel subject to the code may invest in

securities for their personal investment accounts including securities that may be purchased or held by us so long

as such investments are made in accordance with the codes requirements Our Amended and Restated Code of

Ethics or 1940 Act Code of Ethics will generally not permit investments by our employees in securities that may be

purchased or held by us We may be prohibited under the 1940 Act from conducting certain transactions with our

affiliates without the prior approval of our directors who are not interested persons and in some cases the prior

approval of the SEC

copy of our 1940 Act Code of Ethics is available on our website at www.mcgcapital.com We are not including the

information contained on our website as part of or incorporating it by reference into this Form 10-K In addition

you may read and copy the 1940 Act Code of Ethics at the SECs Public Reference Room in Washington D.C You

may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 202 551-8090 In

addition the 1940 Act Code of Ethics attached as an exhibit to our registration statement and is available on the

EDGAR Database on the SECs Internet site at http//www.sec.qov You may also obtain copies of the 1940 Act Code
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of Ethics after paying duplicating fee by electronic request at the following e-mail address rublicinfosec.gov or

by writing the SECs Public Reference Section 100 Street N.E Washington D.C 20549

PRIVACY PRINCIPLES

We are committed to maintaining the privacy of our stockholders and safeguarding their non-public personal information

The following information is provided to help you understand what personal information we collect how we protect

that information and why in certain cases we may share information with select other parties

Generally we do not receive any non-public personal information relating to our stockholders although certain non

public personal information of our stockholders may become available to us We do not disclose any non-public

personal information about our stockholders or former stockholders except as permitted by law or as is necessary in

order to service stockholder accounts for example to transfer agent

We restrict access to non-public personal information about our stockholders to our employees with legitimate

business need for the information We maintain physical electronic and procedural safeguards designed to protect

the security of the non-public personal information of our stockholders

PRoxY VOTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

We vote proxies relating to our portfolio securities in the best interest of our stockholders We review on case-by-

case basis each proposal submitted to stockholder vote to determine its impact on the portfolio securities held by

us Although we generally vote against proposals that may have negative impact on our portfolio securities we may
vote for such proposal if there are compellrng long-term reasons to do so

Our proxy voting decisions are discussed with the committee that is responsible for monitoring each of our investments

To ensure that our vote is not the product of conflict of interest we require that anyone involved in the decision-

making process disclose to our General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer any potential conflict that he or she is

aware of and any contact that he or she has had with any interested party regarding proxy vote and ii employees
involved in the decision-making process or vote administration are prohibited from revealing how we intend to vote on

proposal in order to reduce any attempted influence from interested parties

EXEMPTIvE AND OTHER RELIEF

We have received an exemptive order from the SEC to permit us to issue restricted shares of our common stock as

part of the compensation packages for certain of our employees and directors We believe that the particular

characteristics of our business the dependence we have on key personnel to conduct our business effectively and

the highly competitive environment in which we operate require the use of equity-based compensation for our personnel

in the form of restricted stock The issuance of restricted shares of our common stock requires the approval of our

stockholders In June 2006 our stockholders approved our Amended and Restated 2006 Employee Restricted Stock

Plan and our Amended and Restated 2006 Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan

Awards under the Amended and Restated 2006 Employee Restricted Stock Plan must comply with all aspects of the

SECs order including the following

no one person may be granted awards totaling more than 25% of the shares available

in any fiscal year no person may be granted awards in excess of 500000 shares of our common stock and

the total number of shares that may be outstanding as restricted shares under all of our compensation plans

may not exceed 10% of the total number of our shares of common stock authorized and outstanding at any
time

In October 2008 we received exemptive relief from the SEC which effectively allows us to exclude debt issued by

Solutions Capital from the calculation of our consolidated BDC asset coverage ratio

We have requested the assurance of the staff of the Division of Investment Management that it would not recommend

enforcement action to the SEC under the 1940 Act or Rule 17d-1 thereunder if we engage in stock repurchase

program and do not rescind awards of restricted stock previously awarded in compliance with the terms and conditions

of the exemptive order of the SEC so long as we agree not to issue additional restricted stock under any compensation

plan unless such issuance together with all restricted stock outstanding under all compensation plans does not exceed

10% of our outstanding common stock at the time of such issuance less the total number of shares previously issued
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in the aggregate pursuant to all compensatory plans We have received no assurance or indication from the SEC

that we will receive such relief or of the timeframe in which we would receive any relief should it ultimately be granted

OTHER

We will be examined periodically by the SEC for compliance with the Exchange Act and the 1940 Act

As with other companies regulated by the 1940 Act we must adhere to certain substantive regulatory requirements

majority of our directors must be persons who are not interested persons as that term is defined in the 1940 Act

We must provide and maintain bond issued by reputable fidelity insurance company to protect us against larceny

and embezzlement Furthermore as BDC we cannot protect any director or officer against any liability to our

stockholders arising from willful misfeasance bad faith gross negligence or reckless disregard of the duties involved

in the conduct of such persons office

We are required to adopt and implement written policies and procedures reasonably designed to prevent violation of

the federal securities laws and to review these policies and procedures annually for their adequacy and the

effectiveness of their implementation Mr Tod Reichert our General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer is

responsible for administering these policies and procedures

COMPLIANCE WITH THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 AND THE NASDAQ GLOBAL SELECT MARKET CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS

The Sarbanes-OxleyAct of 2002 or Sarbanes-Oxley Act imposes wide variety of regulatory requirements on publicly

held companies and their insiders The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires us to review our policies and procedures to

determine whether we comply with it and the regulations promulgated thereunder

The NASDAQ Global Select Market has also adopted various corporate governance requirements as part of its listing

standards We believe we are in compliance with such corporate governance listing standards

SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION REGULATIONS

In December 2004 we formed Solutions Capital and Solutions Capital G.P LLC In September 2007 Solutions Capital

received final approval to be licensed as an SBIC Solutions Capital has borrowed funds from the SBA against eligible

investments and additional deposits of regulatory capital As of January 2012 we had borrowed $150.0 million of

SBA-guaranteed debentures under the SBIC program SBA-guaranteed debentures are non-recourse interest-only

debentures with interest payable semi-annually and ten-year maturity The principal amount of SBA-guaranteed

debentures is not required to be paid prior to maturity but may be prepaid at any time without penalty

The maximum amount of outstanding leverage available to single-license SBIC companies is $150.0 million The limit

may be increased to $225.0 million the maximum leverage available under the SBIC program with the approval of

second SBIC license and the investment of additional regulatory capital To access the $150.0 million we have funded

total of $75.0 million to Solutions Capital Currently second SBIC license would grant us the ability to borrow up

to an additional $75.0 million from the SBA or two times the amount of statutory equity capital we invest in Solutions

Capital II L.P If approved by the SBA and depending on available capital we intend to fund the entire $37.5 million

using unrestricted cash

SBICs are designed to stimulate the flow of private capital to eligible small businesses Under SBA regulations

Solutions Capital is subject to regulatory requirements including making investments in SBA eligible businesses

investing at least 25% of regulatory capital in eligible smaller businesses placing certain limitations on the financing

terms of investments prohibiting investing in certain industries required capitalization thresholds and is subject to

periodic audits and examinations among other regulations If Solutions Capital fails to comply with applicable SBA

regulations the SBA could depending on the severity of the violation limit or prohibit its use of debentures declare

outstanding debentures immediately due and payable and/or limit Solutions Capital from making new investments

In addition the SBA can revoke or suspend license for willful or repeated violation of or willful or repeated failure to

observe any provision of the SBIC Act or any rule or regulation promulgated thereunder These actions by the SBA

would in turn negatively affect us because Solutions Capital is our wholly owned subsidiary

Eligible Small and Smaller Businesses

Under current SBA regulations eligible small businesses include those that have tangible net worth not exceeding

$18 million and average annual net income not exceeding $6 million for the two most recent fiscal years In addition
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an SBIC must devote 25% of its investment activity to smaller concerns as defined by the SBA smaller concern

is one that has tangible net worth not exceeding $6 million and average annual net income not exceeding $2 million

for the two most recent fiscal years SBA regulations also provide alternative size standard criteria to determine

eligibility which depend on the industry in which the business is engaged and are based on such factors as the number

of employees or gross sales According to SBA regulations SBICs may make long-term loans to small businesses

and invest in the equity securities of such businesses Once an SBIC has invested in company it may generally

continue to make follow-on investments in the company regardless of the size of the business up and until the time

business offers its securities in public market Through Solutions Capital we plan to continue to provide long-term

loans to and non-control equity investments in qualifying small businesses

Financing Limitations

SBA regulations also include restrictions on change of control of an SBIC where transfer would result in any

person or group owning 10% or more of class of capital stock or its equivalent in the case of partnership of

licensed SBIC and require that SBICs invest idle funds in accordance with SBA regulations In addition our SBIC

subsidiary may also be limited in its ability to make distributions to us if it does not have sufficient earnings and capital

in accordance with SBA regulations The SBA places certain limits on the financing terms of investments by SBICs

including limiting the interest rate on debt securities and loans provided to portfolio companies of the SBIC The SBA

also limits fees prepayment terms and certain other economic arrangements that are common in lending environments

SBA Leverage or Debentures

SBA-guaranteed debentures are non-recourse to us have ten-year maturity and may be prepaid at any time without

penalty The interest rate of SBA-guaranteed debentures is fixed at the time of issuance at market-based spread

over ten-year U.S Treasury Notes Obtaining leverage or borrowings through SBA guaranteed debentures is subject

to required capitalization thresholds Current SBA regulations limit the amount that Solutions Capital may borrow to

maximum of $150 million which is up to twice its regulatory capital

Our SBIC subsidiary is subject to regulation and oversight by the SBA Receipt of an SBIC license does not assure

that our SBIC subsidiary will receive SBA-guaranteed debenture funding which is dependent upon our SBIC subsidiary

continuing to be in compliance with SBA regulations and policies Periodically SBA staff audits Solutions Capital to

verify its compliance with SBA regulations

The SBA as creditor will have superior claim to our SBIC subsidiarys assets over our stockholders in the event

we liquidate our SBIC subsidiary or the SBA exercises its remedies under the SBA-guaranteed debentures issued by

our SBIC subsidiary upon an event of default

CERTAIN U.S FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

Effective as of January 12002 we elected to be treated as RIC under Subchapter of the Internal Revenue Code

or the Code As RIC we generally do not have to pay corporate taxes on any income we distribute to our stockholders

as dividends which allows us to reduce or eliminate our corporate-level tax liability To continue to qualify as RIC

we must among other things meet certain source-of-income and asset diversification requirements as defined below
In addition to qualify for RIC tax treatment we must distribute to our stockholders for each taxable year at least 90%
of our investment company taxable income which is generally our ordinary income plus the excess of our realized

net short-term capital gains over our realized net long-term capital losses collectively referred to as the 90% Distribution

Requirement

TAXATION AS REGuLATED INVESTMENT COMPANY

If we

continue to qualify as RIC and

distribute each year to stockholders at least 90% of our investment company taxable income which is defined

in the Internal Revenue Code generally as ordinary income plus realized net short-term capital gains in excess

of realized net long-term capital losses

we will be entitled to deduct and therefore will not be subject to U.S federal income tax on the portion of our income

we distribute or are deemed to distribute to stockholders We will be subject to U.S federal income tax at the regular

corporate rate on any income not distributed or deemed distributed to our stockholders We will be subject to 4%

nondeductible U.S federal excise tax or 4% excise tax to the extent we do not make specified levels of distributions
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actually or on deemed basis in timely manner For calendar years ended December31 2010 and earlier we
would have been subject to the 4% excise tax to the extent that we did not distribute on either an actual or deemed

basis 98% of our ordinary income for each calendar year 98% of our capital gain net income for each calendar year
and any income realized but not distributed in prior calendar years Beginning in 2011 we are subject as RIC to

the 4% excise tax to the extent that we do not distribute on either an actual or deemed basis 98% of our ordinary

income for each calendar year 98.2% of our capital gain net income for each calendar year and any income realized

but not distributed in prior calendar years

To qualify as RIC for federal income tax purposes we must among other things

continue to qualify as BDC under the 1940 Act at all times during each taxable year

derive in each taxable year at least 90% of our gross income from dividends interest payments with respect

to certain securities loans gains from the sale of stock or other securities or other income derived with respect

to our business of investing in such stock or securities and net income derived from an interest in qualified

publicly traded partnership and

diversify our holdings so that at the end of each quarter of the taxable year

at least 50% of the value of our assets consist of cash cash items U.S government securities securities

of other RICs and other securities if such other securities of any one issuer do not represent more than

5% of the value of our assets or more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of the issuer and

no more than 25% of the value of our assets is invested in the securities other than U.S government

securities or securities of other RICs of one issuer ii two or more issuers that are controlled as

determined under applicable Internal Revenue Code rules by us and are engaged in the same or similar

or related trades or businesses or iii one or more qualified publicly traded partnerships known as the

Diversification Tests

We may be required to recognize taxable income even when we do not receive cash For example if we hold debt

obligations that are treated under applicable tax rules as having original issue discount we must include in taxable

income each year portion of the original issue discount that accrues over the life of the obligation regardless of

whether cash representing such income is received by us in the same taxable year We also may have to include in

taxable income other amounts that we have not yet received in cash such as payment-in-kind interest and deferred

loan origination fees that are paid after origination of the loan or are paid in non-cash compensation such as warrants

or stock Because any original issue discount or other amounts accrued will be included in our investment company

taxable income for the year of accrual we may be required to make cash distribution to our stockholders in the

amount of that non-cash income in order to satisfy the 90% Distribution Requirement even though we will not have

received any cash representing such income

If we fail to satisfy the 90% Distribution Requirement or fail to qualify as RIC in any taxable year we would be subject

to tax in that year on all of our taxable income at regular corporate rates regardless of whether we make any distributions

to our stockholders Distributions would not be required and any distributions made in taxable years beginning before

January 2013 would be taxable to our stockholders as ordinary dividend income that subject to certain limitations

may be eligible for the 15% maximum rate to the extent of our current and accumulated earnings and profits Subject

to certain limitations under the Code corporate distributees would be eligible for the dividends-received deduction

Distributions in excess of our current and accumulated earnings and profits would be treated first as return of capital

to the extent of the stockholders tax basis and any remaining distributions would be treated as capital gain

EMPLOYEES

We believe our success will depend greatly on our ability to identify attract and retain capable employees As of

December 31 2012 we employed 18 full-time employees and three part-time employees including investment

portfolio and operations professionals in-house counsel and administrative staff All of these employees are located

in our corporate headquarters in Arlington Virginia Our employees are not represented by any collective bargaining

unit and we believe our relations with our employees are good
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ITEM IA RISK FAcToRs

Investing in our common stock may be speculative and involves high degree of risk You should consider carefully

the risks described below and all other in formation contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K including our

consolidated financial statements and the related notes and the schedules and exhibits to this Annual Report on Form

10-K The risks set forth below are not the only risks we face If any of the following risks occur our business financial

condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected In such case our net asset value and the

trading price of our common stock could decline and you may lose all or part of your investment

Investing in middle-market companies is inherently risky Our financial results may be affected adversely if

one or more of our portfolio investments defaults on its loans or fails to perform

Our portfolio consists primarily of debt and equity investments in privately owned middle-market companies Investing

in middle-market companies involves number of significant risks Typically the debt in which we invest may be rated

below investment grade by one or more rating agency Compared to larger publicly traded companies with greater

financial technical and marketing resources middle-market companies typically have fewer resources and may

experience wider variations in their operating results making them more vulnerable to economic downturns Middle-

market companies experience limited access to capital and the cost of capital is usually higher than for their larger

competitors Many middle-market companies are unable to obtain financing from public capital markets or from

traditional credit sources such as commercial banks often because they are perceived to pose higher default risk

The success of middle-market companies often depends heavily on the managerial talents and efforts of an individual

or small group of persons Therefore the loss of any key employee could harm both its financial condition and its

ability to compete effectively Further some middle-market companies conduct business in regulated industries

Changes in the regulatory environment impacting middle-market companies could result in significant expenditures

and impair cash flow by making it difficult for them to conduct business in cost effective manner and have more dire

effects including bankruptcy Even minor events may adversely affect the value of loans collateral and companys

ability to repay its obligations which in turn may adversely affect the return on or the recovery of our investment in

these businesses

When evaluating potential investment we must rely on our employees diligence to obtain information necessary to

make well informed investment decisions If we fail to uncover material information about our portfolio companies

either prior to or after our investment we may lose money portfolio companys failure to satisfy financial or operating

covenants imposed by us or other lenders could lead to defaults under our loan documents and trigger cross-defaults

under other agreements Should other lenders choose to accelerate their loans and/or foreclose on the companys
secured assets it could jeopardize our portfolio companys ability to meet its obligations under the debt securities that

we hold We may also incur expenses to the extent necessary to seek recovery upon default orto negotiate new terms

with defaulting portfolio company

Very few of our portfolio investments are publicly traded and as result their value is uncertain If our

determinations regarding the fair value of our investments is higher than that which we ultimately realize upon

disposition our NAV could be affected adversely

Typically there is no public market for the securities of the privately held companies in which we have invested and

in which we generally expect to continue to invest In accordance with the 1940 Act and accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States we carry substantially all of our portfolio investments at fair value as determined in good
faith by our board of directors

Whenever possible our board of directors values our securities at market value however since very few of our

investments are traded publicly the board considers various factors to assist it in determining fair value during the

valuation process For example depending on the nature of the investment the board may examine public and private

mergers and acquisitions transactions comparisons to publicly traded comparable companies third-party assessments

of valuation discounted cash flow analyses the nature and realizable value of any collateral the portfolio companys

earnings and its ability to make payments the markets in which the portfolio company does business market-based

pricing bond-yield analysis and other relevant factors We also obtain financial and other information from portfolio

companies which may include unaudited projected or pro forma financial information Our board of directors also

engages independent valuation firms to assist in determining the fair value of our investments Because valuations

particularly those of private securities and private companies are inherently uncertain they may fluctuate over short

periods of time and are often based on estimates Our determinations of fair value may differ materially from the values

that would have been used if readily available market for these investments existed and from the amounts we may
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realize on any disposition of such investments If our determinations regarding the fair value of our investments are

materially higher than the values that we ultimately realize upon the disposition of such investments our NAV could

be affected adversely

The general volatility of the financial markets and the economy could impair our portfolio companies financial

positions and operating results which in turn could harm our operating results

The future of the United States economy is unclear Unemployment continues to be elevated and expectations for

other economic fundamentals remain uncertain If U.S economic performance declines in the future the financial

results of our middle-market portfolio companies could experience deterioration or limited growth If prolonged

unfavorable or uncertain economic and market conditions could render our portfolio companies unable to service debt

or engage in liquidity event such as sale merger recapitalization or initial public offering

Adverse economic conditions have decreased the value of some of our loans and equity investments The lingering

effects of uncertain economic conditions could increase the number of non-performing assets and decrease the value

of one or more of our portfolio companies during such periods Should this happen we may experience further loss

of value in our portfolio and decreases in our revenues net income and net assets Adverse economic conditions also

may impair the value of collateral securing some of our loans and the value of our equity investments

We operate in highly competitive market for investment opportunities and the success of our business

model necessitates that we develop and maintain strong referral relationships Failure to do so or to offer

desirable investment terms may preclude us from winning new business and adversely affect our financial

conditions and results of operations

We compete with many types of investors for the portfolio companies in which we invest including public and private

funds including other BDCs and SBICs commercial and investment banks commercial financing companies and

to the extent they provide an alternative form of financing private equity funds Additionally because competition for

investment opportunities generally has increased in recent years among alternative investment vehicles entities such

as hedge funds have begun to seek out new territory As result of these entrants competition for investment

opportunities has intensified in recent years and may intensify further in the future Some of our existing and potential

competitors are substantially larger and have considerably greater financial technical and marketing resources than

we do Some may also have lower cost of funds and access to funding sources that are not available to us In

addition some of our competitors may have higher risk tolerances or different risk assessments which could allow

them to consider wider variety of investments that may lead to additional market share and competitive advantage

over us Unlike many of our competitors we are also subject to regulatory restrictions and valuation requirements the

1940 Act imposes onus as BDC

The myriad competitive pressures we face require our management team to develop and maintain strong relationships

with intermediaries financial institutions investment bankers commercial bankers financial advisors attorneys

accountants consultants and other individuals within our network in order to keep apprised of potential investment

opportunities If our management team fails to maintain its existing relationships or develop new ones with important

sources of investment opportunities we may fail to remain competitive for new business and our investment portfolio

may languish as result Regardless of the strength of relationships no one is obligated to provide us with investment

opportunities and there is no assurance that such relationships will generate investment opportunities for us

Winning attractive investment opportunities in competitive investment environment requires that we offer terms and

conditions on par with or better than our peers While we do not seek to compete primarily based on the interest rates

we offer we may lose investment opportunities if we do not match our competitors pricing terms and structure If we
do match our competitors pricing terms and structure to win business we maythen experience decreased net interest

income and increased risk of credit loss We may be precluded from taking advantage of attractive investment

opportunities from time to time as result of an inability to meet market terms and we can offer no assurance that we

will be able to identify and successfully make investments that are consistent with our investment objective Failure

to compete effectively for and establish strong relationships that could lead to new business would have material

adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

Our portfolio is concentrated in certain industries which increases our risk of significant loss if any one of

these companies fails to service our debt because of industry downturns

From time to time we target specific industries in which to invest on recurring basis which may result in significant

concentrations in our portfolio As consequence the aggregate returns we realize may be substantially adversely

affected by the unfavorable performance of small number of such investments or substantial write-down of any
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one investment Beyond regulatory and income tax diversification requirements we do not have fixed guidelines for

industry concentration In addition while we generally decline to make investments in particular industry or group

of industries that would exceed 15.0% of our total assets at the time of closing it is possible that as the values of our

portfolio companies change one industry or group of industries may come to exceed such level As result

downturn in an industry in which we have invested significant portion of our total investments could have materially

adverse effect on us As of December31 2012 22.2% 13.6% and 12.5% of our total investments at fair value were

invested in healthcare business services and education companies respectively Therefore we are susceptible to

the economic circumstances in these industries and downturn in any one of these industries could have material

adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition

Changes in healthcare laws and other regulations applicable to some of our portfolio companies businesses

may constrain their ability to offer their products and services

Changes in healthcare or other laws and regulations applicable to the businesses of some of our portfolio companies

may occur that could increase their compliance and other costs of doing business require significant systems

enhancements or render their products or services less profitable or obsolete any of which could have material

adverse effect on their results of operations There has also been an increased political and regulatory focus on

healthcare laws in recent years and new legislation could have material effect on the business and operations of

some of our portfolio companies

We must effectively manage and deploy capital to ensure our financial condition and results of operations

If we fail to do so we could experience decline in our business prospects and the loss of key employees
all of which could negatively affect our operating results

Equity capital is and may continue to be difficult to raise because we generally are not able to issue and sell our

common stock at price below NAV per share without stockholder approval In addition available debt capital may
be costly and/or carry less favorable terms and conditions Therefore our ability to maximize our portfolios total return

depends on the ability to successfully manage and deploy capital effectively Our debt investments generate capital

from current income and our equity and equity-related investments generally provide capital appreciation enhancing

our overall operating results Our ability to identify and evaluate and ultimately to finance and invest in companies
that will produce the desired financial gains rests squarely in the hands of our investment team Accomplishing our

investment objectives on cost-effective basis is largely function of our investment teams handling of the investment

process its ability to provide competent attentive and efficient services and our access to investments offering

acceptable terms In addition to monitoring the performance of our existing investments members of our investment

team are also called upon from time to time to provide managerial assistance to some of our portfolio companies

These demands on their time may distract them or slow the rate of investment capital

Our results of our operations will depend on many factors including the availability of opportunities for investment

and economic conditions Furthermore if we cannot successfully operate our business or implement our investment

policies and strategies it could negatively impact our ability to pay dividends The prolonged inability to effectively

deploy capital could negatively impact our business prospects cause the departure of key employees and have an

adverse impact on our operating results

Our ability to raise additional capital is limited by the market price of our common stock and by regulations

governing our operations as BDC

Although shares of closed-end investment companies frequently trade at market price that is less than the NAV

attributable to those shares this characteristic has no correlation with the risk of decline to our own NAy It is not

possible to predict whether our common stock will trade at above or below NAy In the recent past the stocks of

BDCs as an industry including shares of our common stock have traded below NAV as result of concerns over

liquidity leverage restrictions and distribution requirements When our common stock trades below its NAV per share

the 1940 Act prohibits us from selling shares of our common stock at price below the current NAV unless our

stockholders approve such sale and our board of directors makes certain determinations

We have issued debt securities and may in the future incur additional debt issue preferred stock and/or borrow money
from banks or other financial institutions which we refer to collectively as senior securities Under the provisions of

the 1940 Act as BDC we are permitted to issue senior securities only in amounts such that our BDC asset coverage
as defined in the 1940 Act equals at least 200% after each issuance of senior securities If the value of our assets

declines we may be unable to satisfy this test precluding us from issuing senior securities and paying dividends We

may also be required to sell portion of our investments and depending on the nature of our leverage repay portion

of our indebtedness at time when such sales may be disadvantageous
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Failure to maintain our qualification as BDC would significantly reduce our operating flexibility

If we were to continuously fail to qualify as BDC we might become subject to regulation as registered closed-end

investment company under the 1940 Act which would significantly decrease our operating flexibility In addition failure

to comply with the requirements imposed on BDCs by the 1940 Act could cause the SEC to bring an enforcement

action against us For additional information on the qualification requirements of BDC see the disclosure under the

caption Item Business-Regulation

If we fail to invest sufficient portion of our assets in qualifying assets we could lose our BDC status

As BDC we may not acquire any assets other than qualifying assets unless at the time of and after giving effect

to such acquisition at least 70% of our total assets are qualifying assets within the meaning of the 1940 Act Our failure

to meet the 70% threshold could cause us to lose our status BDC resulting in material adverse effect on our

business financial condition and results of operations In addition the 70% requirement may preclude us from investing

in potentially attractive investments as well as prevent us from making additional investments in our existing portfolio

companies thus diluting our position to the extent they do not meet the standard for qualifying assets under the 1940

Act Finally we may need to sell certain of our investments to comply with the 1940 Act which could cause us to realize

significantly less than the current value of such investments

If we fail to qualify as RIC we will have to pay corporate-level taxes on our income and our income available

for distribution would be reduced significantly or eliminated

We have elected to be taxed for federal income tax purposes as RIO under Subchapter of the Internal Revenue

Code To qualify as RIO under the Internal Revenue Code we must meet certain source-of-income asset

diversification and annual distribution requirements and maintain our status as BDC including

Sources of Income We must obtain at least 90% of our income each year from dividends interest gains from

the sale of stock or securities or similar sources

Asset Diversification At the end of each taxable year at least 50% of the value of our assets must consist of

cash cash equivalents U.S government securities securities of other RICs and other acceptable securities

No more than 25% of the value of our assets may be invested in the securities other than U.S government

securities or securities of other RICs of one issuer or ii of two or more issuers that are controlled as

determined under applicable Internal Revenue Code rules by us and that are engaged in the same or similar

or related trades or businesses or of certain qualified publicly traded partnerships

Income Distribution We must distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our ordinary income and realized

net short-term capital gains in excess of realized net long-term capital losses if any on an annual basis

Because we are subject to an asset coverage ratio requirement under the 1940 Act and may also be subject

to certain financial covenants under any debt financings we may incur we could under certain circumstances

be restricted from making the distributions necessary to satisfy the IRS requirement Our SBIC subsidiary

may be limited by the SBIC Act and SBA regulations governing SBICs from making certain distributions to us

that may be necessary to maintain our status as RIO

Failure to meet the foregoing requirements may result in our having to dispose of certain investments quickly in order

to prevent the loss of RIO status Because most of our investments will be in private companies and therefore will

be relatively illiquid any such dispositions could be made at disadvantageous prices and could result in substantial

losses If we fail to qualify as RIO for any reason we would become subject to corporate-level income tax substantially

reducing our net assets the amount of income available for distribution and the amount of our distributions Such

failure would have material adverse effect on our stockholders and us

Our future success depends on our investment team If we lose one or more of these or other key employees

our operating results may suffer from our inability to make future investments

We depend on the members of our investment team for the identification review final selection structuring closing

and monitoring of our investments Their significant investment expertise and relationships are vital to the

implementation of our business plan and we have no guarantee that they or any other employees will remain with the

company If we lose the services of one or more of these individuals our operating results could suffer if we are unable

to make future investments as we expect
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If we fail to service our existing debt arrangements adequately or to establish new credit facilities on favorable

terms our business could be harmed materially

MCG Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1 Our securitized financing facility the 2006-1 Trust has entered its

amortization period and all principal payments received related to the securitized collateral will be used to

reduce the outstanding borrowings under the facility No principal payments from this facility will be available

to make new investments Our ability to service our debt arrangement depends largely on our financial

performance and will be subject to prevailing economic conditions and competitive pressures If we are unable

to repay amounts outstanding under our existing facility and it is declared in default our operations could be

affected adversely

Under our debt securitization through 2006-1 Trust we are subject to various affirmative and negative

covenants In the event that there is breach of one of the covenants contained in our debt facility that has

not been cured within any applicable cure period the lenders thereunder would have the ability in certain

circumstances to accelerate the maturity of the indebtedness outstanding under that facility and exercise

certain other remedies In addition we have sold some of our loans to the trust that serves as the vehicle for

our securitization facility and this trust which is bankruptcy remote holds legal title to these assets As

result the lenders under this facility may generally only look to the collateral in this facility to satisfy the

outstanding obligations under the 2006-1 Trust However in the event of default on these loans held by the

trust we could potentially bear losses to the extent that the fair value of our collateral exceeds our borrowings

The 2006-1 Trust also requires us to maintain credit ratings for each loan in the collateral pool of this facility

as determined by specified international independent rating agencies We are subject to periodic review and

updates of these credit estimates by these rating agencies that could cause portions of the collateral to become

disqualified as eligible assets if credit estimates deteriorate Significant deterioration could trigger an event

of default which would entitle the trustee to exercise available remedies including selling the collateral securing

this facility and applying the proceeds to reduce outstanding borrowings

Bank of America Unsecured Revolver In November 2012 we entered into an unsecured revolving credit

facility with Bank of America N.A in the principal amount of $20.0 million or the Bank of America Unsecured

Revolver The Bank of America Unsecured Revolver is subject to certain collateral requirements and financial

covenants including maintaining ratio of all unencumbered assets to outstanding amounts under the Bank

of America Unsecured Revolver of at least four-to-one as well as ratio of unencumbered cash and senior

portfolio loans to outstanding amounts under the Bank of America Unsecured Revolver of at least three-to-

one

SBA Debentures In addition to the foregoing facilities Solutions Capital has issued SBA debentures that

require our SBIC to generate sufficient cash flow to make required interest payments Further Solutions

Capital must maintain minimum capitalization that if impaired could materially and adversely affect our

liquidity financial condition and results of operations Our borrowings under our SBA debentures are

collateralized by the assets of Solutions Capital

Our continued compliance with each of these facilities depends on many factors some of which are beyond our control

Material net asset devaluation in connection with additional borrowings could result in an inability to comply with our

obligation to restrict the level of indebtedness that we are able to incur in relation to the value of our assets or to

maintain minimum level of stockholders equity

Furthermore we cannot be certain that we will be able to establish new borrowing facilities to provide working and

investment capital including for new originations If we are unable to establish new facilities of reasonable size our

liquidity will be reduced significantly Even if we are able to consummate new borrowing facilities we may not be able

to do so on favorable terms

In situations where we hold junior priority liens our ability to control decisions with respect to our portfolio

companies may be limited by lenders holding superior liens In default scenario the value of collateral may
be insufficient to repay us after the senior priority lenders are paid in full

We make certain loans to portfolio companies that are secured by junior priority security interest in the same collateral

pledged to secure debt owed to lenders with liens senior to ours Often the senior lender has procured covenants

from the portfolio company prohibiting the incurrence of additional secured debt without the senior lenders consent

As condition of permitting the portfolio company to incur junior secured indebtedness the senior lender will require

that we as junior lender enter into an intercreditor agreement that among other things will establish the senior lenders

right to control the disposition of any collateral in the event of an insolvency proceeding or other default situation In
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addition intercreditor agreements generally will expressly subordinate junior liens to senior liens as well as the

repayment of junior debt to senior debt

Because of the control we may cede to senior lenders under intercreditor agreements we may be unable to control

the manner or timing of collateral disposition In addition the value of collateral securing our debt investment will

ultimately depend on market and economic conditions at the time of disposal the availability of buyers and other

factors Therefore there can be no assurance that the proceeds if any from the sale or sales of all of the collateral

would be sufficient to satisfy the loan obligations secured by our liens There is also risk that such collateral securing

our investments will be difficult to sell in timely manner or to appraise If the proceeds of the collateral are insufficient

to repay our loans then we will have an unsecured claim to the extent of the deficiency against any of the companys

remaining assets which claim will likely be shared with many other unsecured creditors

As debt or minority equity investor in portfolio company we may have little direct influence over the entity

The stockholders and management of the portfolio company may make decisions that could decrease the

value of our portfolio holdings

We make both debt and minority equity investments Should portfolio company make business decisions with which

we disagree or the stockholders and management of that company take risks or otherwise act in ways that do not

serve our interests the value of our portfolio holdings could decrease and have an adverse effect on our financial

position and results of operations

If we need to sell any of our investments we may not be able to do so at favorable price and as result we

may suffer losses

Our investments usually are subject to contractual or legal restrictions on resale or are otherwise illiquid because there

is usually no established trading market The illiquidity of most of our investments may make it difficult for us to dispose

of them at favorable price As result we may suffer losses In addition if we were forced to liquidate some or all

of the investments in our portfolio on an expedited basis the proceeds of such liquidation could be significantly less

than the current fair value of such investments We may be required to liquidate some or all of our portfolio to meet

our debt service obligations or to maintain our qualification as BDC and as RIC to the extent we fail to satisfy the

applicable regulatory criteria

The disposition of our investments may result in contingent liabilities

Most of our investments involve private securities In connection with the disposition of an investment in private

securities we may be required to make representations about the business and financial affairs of the portfolio company

typical of those made in connection with the sale of business We may also be required to indemnify the purchasers

of such investment with respect to certain potential liabilities or to the extent that any of our representations turn out

to be inaccurate These arrangements may result in contingent liabilities that ultimately yield funding obligations that

must be satisfied through our return of certain distributions previously made to us

Portfolio company litigation could result in additional costs the diversion of management time and resources

and have an adverse impact on the fair value of our investment

In the course of providing significant managerial assistance to certain of our portfolio companies we may serve as

directors on the boards of such companies In addition in the course of making portfolio company investments we

may elect to take an equity position in any given company To the extent that litigation arises out of our investments

we may be named as defendant which could result in additional costs and the diversion of management time and

resources In addition litigation involving portfolio company may be costly and affect the operations of the business

which could in turn have an adverse impact on the fair value of our investment

There may be circumstances where our debt investments could be subordinated to claims of other creditors

or we could be subject to lender liability claims

If one of our portfolio companies were to go bankrupt depending on the facts and circumstances including the extent

to which we provided managerial assistance to that portfolio company bankruptcy court could elect to subordinate

all or portion of our claims to those of other creditors regardless of the seniority of our original investment In such

instances the court may deem our actions to be more like that of an equityholder than debt holder Were that to

occur the claims we carried as senior in right of payment on our books might instead be recharacterized by the court

as junior and therefore come much lower in the priority of payments To the extent that there are insufficient funds

remaining to pay us once other debtholders are paid in full we may lose all or portion of our investment
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The actions we take with respect to portfolio companys business including providing managerial assistance or the

exercise of control over portfolio company could also give rise to lender liability claims Should our actions be viewed

as more akin to those of an equityholder than debtholder because of our involvement in the operations of the portfolio

company presumption could arise that we have fiduciary duty to the portfolio company third party could then

sue us for example in an attempt to make us liable for any negative performance by such portfolio company

Our stock price has been and continues to be volatile and purchasers of our common stock could incur

substantial losses

The stock market in general and the market prices for securities of financial services companies in particular have

experienced extreme volatility that often has been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of these

companies If current levels of market volatility continue or worsen we may continue to experience an adverse effect

possibly material on our ability to access capital and on our business financial condition and results of operations

The market price and the liquidity of the market for our shares may from time to time be affected by number of factors

which include but are not limited to the following

our quarterly results of operations

our origination activity including the pace of and competition for new investment opportunities

price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market from time to time

investors general perception of our company the economy and general market conditions

actual or anticipated changes in our earnings or fluctuations in our operating results or changes in the

expectations of securities analysts

the financial performance of the specific industries in which we invest on recurring basis including without

limitation our investments in the healthcare business services and education industries

significant transactions or capital commitments by us or our competitors

significant volatility in the market price and trading volume of securities of BDCs or other financial services

companies

volatility resulting from trading in derivative securities related to our common stock including puts calls or short

trading positions

potential future sales of debt securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for our common stock

or the conversion of such securities

changes in laws or regulatory policies or tax guidelines with respect to BDCs or RICs

loss of RIC status

the inability to secure additional debt or equity capital

announcements of strategic developments acquisitions and other material events by us or our competitors

litigation or regulatory actions affecting us or our portfolio companies and

departures of key personnel

If any of these factors causes an adverse effect on our business our results of operations or our financial condition

the price of our common stock could fall and investors may not be able to sell their common stock at or above their

respective purchase prices

You may not receive future distributions

In the event that the asset coverage ratio applicable to us as BDC falls below 200% we will be unable to make

distributions until the ratio again meets or exceeds the threshold If we do not distribute at least 90% of our investment

company taxable income annually we will suffer adverse tax consequences including the possible loss of our status

as RIC for the applicable period From December 2001 through December 31 2012 we declared distributions

totaling $13.39 per common share Due to the market dislocation we suspended our distributions from the third quarter

of 2008 through the first quarter of 2010 We reinstated our distribution on April 29 2010 and have continued to

declare quarterly dividend since that time however there can be no assurance that distributions will continue in the

future

We will make future decisions with respect to the actual level of distributions after taking into account the minimum

statutorily required level of distributions gains and losses recognized for tax purposes portfolio transactional events

our liquidity cash earnings and our BDC asset coverage ratio at the time of such decision Regulatory constraints
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our inability to achieve operating results or decline in the performance of our business could prohibit our ability to

make any future distributions In addition we may not be able to make distributions at specific level or to increase

the amount of these distributions from time to time

We may have difficulty paying our required distributions if we recognize income before or without receiving

cash representing such income

In accordance with applicable tax laws and regulations we include in taxable income certain amounts that we have

not yet received in cash from our portfolio companies such as contractual P1K interest interest on loans that are on

non-accrual status and original issue discount P1K interest represents contractual interest added to the loan balance

and due at the end of the loan term Loans that are on non-accrual status reflect an inability of portfolio company

to make payments to us when due Original issue discount may arise if we receive warrants in connection with the

issuance of debt instrument or in other circumstances We are required to include in income each year portion of

the original issue discount that accrues over the life of the obligation regardless of whether cash representing such

income is received by us in the same taxable year Other situations may also arise where we are required to include

amounts in taxable income for which we have not yet received payment in cash

We must distribute at least 90% of our investment company taxable income to maintain the tax benefits we enjoy as

RIC This obligation applies whether or not that income was actually received in cash Since we may recognize

income before or without receiving cash representing such income we may have difficulty meeting the requirement

To raise funds to make the required distributions we may have to raise additional debt or equity capital at unattractive

rates or on unfavorable conditions We might also need to sell some of our investments at unfavorable prices or

repurpose the cash we had reserved for new investment originations If we cannot obtain cash from these or other

sources we may fail to qualify as RIC and thus be subject to corporate-level income tax

Any change in the regulation of our business could have significant adverse effect on the profitability of

our operations and our cost of doing business

Changes in the laws regulations or interpretations of the laws and regulations that govern BDCs RICs SBICs or non-

depository commercial lenders could have significant adverse effect on our operations and our cost of doing business

We are subject to federal state and local laws and regulations and also to judicial and administrative decisions that

affect our operations If these laws regulations or decisions change or if we expand our business into jurisdictions

that have adopted requirements that are more stringent than those in which we currently conduct business we may
have to incur significant expenses in order to comply or we may have to restrict our operations

Our wholly owned subsidiary is licensed by the SBA and is subject to SBA regulations If our SBIC subsidiary

fails to comply with applicable SBA regulations the SBA could limit or prohibit its use of debentures declare

outstanding debentures immediately due and payable and/or revoke or suspend our license

Our wholly owned subsidiary Solutions Capital is licensed to operate as an SBIC and is regulated by the SBA The

SBIC license allows Solutions Capital to obtain leverage or borrowings by issuing SBA-guaranteed debentures

subjectto receiptofa capital commitmentfrom the SBAand othercustomary procedures The SBAregulations require

among other things an annual periodic examination of licensed SBIC by an SBA examiner to determine the SBICs

compliance with the relevant SBA regulations and the performance of financial audit by an independent auditor

The SBA regulations permit licensed SBICs to make long term loans to small businesses and invest in the equity

securities of such businesses Under current SBA regulations licensed SBIC may provide capital to small businesses

having tangible net worth not exceeding $18.0 million and an average net income after federal income taxes not

exceeding $6.0 million for the two most recent fiscal years In addition licensed SBIC must devote 25% of its

investment activity to entities having tangible net worth not exceeding $6.0 million and an average annual net income

after federal income taxes not exceeding $2.0 million for the two most recent fiscal years If proposed portfolio

company does not meet the foregoing requirements the SBA regulations also provide alternative criteria for eligibility

which depend on the industry in which the prospective portfolio company is engaged as well as other factors such as

the number of employees and gross sales The SBA also restricts the financing terms of investments by SBICs in

portfolio companies and prohibits funds from being deployed in support of certain purposes or industries Compliance

with SBA requirements may cause our SBIC subsidiary to forego attractive investment opportunities that are not

permitted under SBA regulations

single-license SBIC subsidiary may currently borrow up to maximum of $150.0 million when it has at least

$75.0 million in private capital receives capital commitment from the SBA and has been through an examination by

the SBAsubsequentto licensing As of January 2013 we have funded $75.0 million to Solutions Capital and Solutions
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Capital has borrowed the maximum $150.0 million of SBA-guaranteed debentures In the quarter ended September 30
2012 we submitted documentation to the SBA in support of potential SBIC license for Solutions Capital II L.P and

in February 2013 we received green light letter from the SBA inviting us to continue our application process to obtain

license to form and operate second SBIC However receipt of green light letter from the SBA does not assure

that the SBA will ultimately issue an SBIC license and we have received no assurance or indication from the SBA
either that we will receive second SBIC license or the timeframe in which we could expect to receive second

license should one ultimately be granted

The SBA prohibits without prior SBA approval change of control of an SBIC or transfers that would result in any

person or group of persons acting in concert owning 10% or more of class of capital stock of licensed SBIC If

our SBIC subsidiary fails to comply with applicable SBA regulations the SBA could depending on the severity of the

violation limit or prohibit its use of debentures declare outstanding debentures immediately due and payable and/or

limit it from making new investments In addition the SBA can revoke or suspend license for willful or repeated

violation of or willful or repeated failure to observe any provision of the SBIC Act or any rule or regulation promulgated

thereunder These actions by the SBA would in turn negatively affect us because our SBIC subsidiary is our wholly

owned subsidiary and we rely on the ability to make investments through it

We may in the future decide to issue preferred stock which would magnify the risks of investing in us as well

as the potential for loss

Because preferred stock is another form of borrowing and the dividends on any preferred stock we might issue would

be cumulative preferred stock has the same risks to our common stockholders as debt We are obligated to pay the

cumulative dividends and any liquidation preference attached to such preferred stock before we make any payments
to our common stockholders While the value of preferred stock is unaffected by our expenses or losses preferred

stockholders do not participate in any income or appreciation in excess of their stated preference Holders of any

preferred stock we might issue would have the right to elect members of the board of directors as well as class voting

rights on certain matters including changes in fundamental investment restrictions and conversion to open-end status

Accordingly preferred stockholders could veto changes to the detriment of the company and its common stockholders

We currently have no plans to issue preferred stock

Investments in equity securities involve substantial degree of risk

We have purchased and may purchase in the future common stock and other equity securities including warrants

in various portfolio companies Although equity securities historically have generated higher average total returns than

debt securities over the long term equity securities may experience more volatility in those returns than debt securities

The equity securities we acquire may fail to appreciate decline in value or lose all value and our ability to recover our

investment will depend on our portfolio companys success Investments in equity securities involve number of

significant risks including the risk of further dilution in the event the portfolio company issues additional securities

Investments in preferred securities involve special risks such as the risk of deferred distributions illiquidity and limited

voting rights

Fluctuations in interest rates could affect our income adversely

Because we sometimes borrow to make investments our net income depends in part on the difference between the

interest rate at which we borrow funds and the interest rate at which we invest these funds Because significant

portion of our assets and liabilities may be priced using various short-term rate indices including one-month to six-

month LIBOR commercial paper rates and the prime rate the timing of changes in market interest rates or in the

relationship between interest rate indices could affect the interest rates earned on our interest-earning assets differently

than the interest rates we pay on interest-bearing liabilities As result significant changes in market interest rates

could have material adverse effect on our net income

significant portion of our variable rate loans have interest rate floors based on the LIBOR or prime rate These floors

minimize our exposure to significant decreases in interest rates significant increase in market interest rates could

harm our ability to attract new portfolio companies and originate new loans and investments In addition our non
performing assets could increase and the value of our portfolio decrease because our floating-rate loan portfolio

companies may be unable to meet higher payment obligations

The impact of recent financial reform legislation on us is uncertain

In light of current conditions in the U.S and in global financial markets legislators the presidential administration and

regulators have increased theirscrutinyofthefinancial services industry The Dodd-Frank Reform Act became effective
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on July 21 2010 Although many provisions of the Dodd-Frank Reform Act have delayed effectiveness or will not

become effective until the relevant federal agencies issue new rules to implement its requirements the Dodd-Frank

Reform Act may have material adverse impact on the financial services industry as whole and on our business

results of operations and financial condition in manner and to an extent that we cannot predict

Certain provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law our certificate of incorporation and our bylaws
could deter takeover attempts and have an adverse impact on the price of our common stock

The Delaware General Corporation Law our certificate of incorporation and our bylaws contain provisions that may

discourage third party from making proposal to acquire us We have also adopted measures that may make it

difficult for third party to obtain control of our board or our company including provisions in our certificate of

incorporation dividing our board of directors into three classes with the term of one class expiring at each annual

meeting of stockholders These anti-takeover provisions may inhibit change in control in circumstances that could

give the holders of our common stock the opportunity to realize premium over the market price of our common stock

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIEs

Neither we nor any of our subsidiaries own any facilities or real estate We moved corporate offices in November 2012

from 1100 Wilson Boulevard Arlington VA 22209 to 1001 19th Street North Arlington VA 22209 In August 2012 we

entered into two-year lease agreement October 2012 to November 2014 for 13134 square feet for our new office

space on 19th Street North Upon our move we abandoned our corporate lease at 1100 Wilson Boulevard of 39574

square feet We were obligated to pay rent through the lease expiration date in February 2013 We also leased and

sublet to third-parties office space in Georgia that we no longer use

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time we are party to certain legal proceedings incidental to the normal course of our business including

the enforcement of our rights under contracts with our portfolio companies While we cannot predict the outcome of

these legal proceedings with certainty we do not expect that these proceedings will have material effect upon our

financial condition or results of operations

ITEM MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

None
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER

PURCHASES OF EQuITY SEcuRITIEs

Market In formation

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol MCGC The following table

sets forth the high and low last sales prices of our common stock for the periods indicated as reported on the NASDAQ
Global Select Market

STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM

NET ISSUANCE OF RESTRICTED STOCK

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

Years ended December 31

2012 2011

High Low High

3.89

4.07

4.33

4.09

7.54

6.88

6.33

5.02

Low

6.02

5.95

3.70

3.65

Quarter Ended

March 31 5.01

June 30 4.58

September 30 5.28

December31 4.89

Holders

On February 22 2013 we had approximately 133 holders of record and approximately 20574 beneficial holders of

our common stock

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities and Purchases of Equity Securities

On January 17 2012 our board of directors authorized stock repurchase program of up to $35.0 million As of

December31 2012 we had repurchased $27.2 million of our common stock 6182046 shares at an average purchase

price of $4.40 per share Under the program we are authorized to repurchase shares in open market transactions

including through block purchases depending on prevailing market conditions and other factors The repurchase

program may be extended modified or discontinued at any time for any reason The program does not obligate us

to acquire any specific number of shares and all repurchases are made in accordance with SEC Rule Ob-1 which

sets certain restrictions on the method timing price and volume of stock repurchases We retire immediately all such

shares of common stock that we purchase in connection with the stock repurchase program

For certain employees we may be deemed to have purchased through the net issuance of shares portion of the

shares of restricted stock previously issued under our Third Amended and Restated 2006 Employee Restricted Stock

Plan or the 2006 Plan for which the forfeiture provisions have lapsed to satisfy the applicable employees income tax

withholding obligations We retire immediately all such shares of common stock that we purchase in connection with

such net issuance to employees

As part of our dividend reinvestment plan for our common stockholders we may direct the plan administrator to

purchase shares of our common stock on the open market to satisfy dividend reinvestment requests related to dividends

that we pay on outstanding shares of our common stock
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The following table summarizes the shares of common stock that we have purchased during the three months ended

December 31 2012

Total

number
of shares

Total Number of

Shares Purchased

as Part of Publicly

Announced Plans

or Programs

Maximum Number

or Approximate
Dollar Value of

Shares that May Yet

Be Purchased Under

the Plans or

Programs
Average Price

Paid per Share

Total

Period/Purpose

November 30 2012

Stock repurchase program 20225 4.52 20225 12492879

Dividend reinvestment requirements 700 4.46 n/a n/a

Total November 30 2012 20925 4.52 20225 12492879

December 31 2012

Stock repurchase program 1041935 4.48 1041935 7827744

Restricted stock vesting 4687 4.60 n/a n/a

Total December 31 2012 1046622 4.48 1041935 7827744

1067547 4.48 1062160 7827744

On January 17 2012 we announced that our board of directors had authorized stock repurchase program of up to $35.0 million

Represents stock purchased on the open market to satisfy dividend reinvestment requests

Represents the weighted-average purchase price per share including commissions for shares purchased pursuant to the terms of our

dividend reinvestment plan

Represents shares repurchased from our employees in connection with the net issuance of shares to satisfy employee tax withholding

obligations in connection with the vesting of restricted stock

Based on the weighted-average closing share prices of our common stock on the dates that the forfeiture restrictions lapsed

Distribution Policy

We currently qualify as RIG for federal income tax purposes which generally allows us to avoid paying corporate

income taxes on any income or gains that we distribute to our stockholders Generally we intend to distribute sufficient

dividends to eliminate taxable income and may distribute more than the taxable income which amounts would be

considered return of capital As RIG we are subject to 4% excise tax to the extent that we do not distribute on

an actual or on deemed basis 98.0% of our current year ordinary income and ii 98.2% of our current year net

capital gain income

We may not be able to achieve operating results that will allow us to make distributions at specific level or to increase

the amount of these distributions from time to time In addition we may be limited in our ability to make distributions

due to the BDG asset coverage test for borrowings applicable to us as BDC under the 1940 Act and due to restrictions

in our credit facilities If we do not distribute certain percentage of our income annually we will suffer adverse tax

consequences including possible loss of favorable RIG tax treatment We cannot assure stockholders that they will

receive any distributions or distributions at particular level We may make distributions to our stockholders of certain

net capital gains

The following table summarizes our distributions declared since January 2011

Dividends

Date Declared Record Date Payable Date per Share

March 2013 March 15 2013 March 29 2013 0.125

October 26 2012 November 16 2012 November 30 2012 0.125

July27 2012 August 17 2012 August31 2012 0.140

April272012 Junel32012 Julyl32012 0.140

February24 2012 April 13 2012 May 15 2012 0.170

October 31 2011 December15 2011 January 13 2012 0170

August 2011 September 14 2011 October 14 2011 0.170

May52011 Junel52011 JuIyl52011 0.170

March 2011 March 15 2011 April 15 2011 0.150
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We will make future decisions with respect to the actual level of distributions after taking into account the minimum

statutorily required level of distributions gains and losses recognized for tax purposes portfolio transactional events

our liquidity cash earnings and our BDC asset coverage ratio at the time of such decision For additional information

about our distributions see the Liquidity and Capital Resources and Distributions sections of our Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Information relating to compensation plans under which our equity securities are authorized for issuance is set forth

under Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters in our

definitive proxy statement for our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Stock Performance Graph

The following comparative stock performance graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return assuming

reinvestment of dividends if any from investing $100 on December 31 2007 through December 31 2012 in each

of our common stock ii the Russell 2000 Index and
iii

the NASDAQ Financial 100 Index capitalization weighted

Comparison of 5-Year Cumulative Total Return

Total Return on $100 invested on 12131107 in stock or index including reinvestment of dividends

$125

_____________
12/31/07 6/30/08 12/31/08 /3/09 12/31/09 6/30/10 12/31/10 6/30/11 12/31/11 6/30/12 12/31/12

1iCG Capital Corporation 10000 38.12 680 23 28 41.38 47 20 7097 65 15 46 23 57.00 60.80

I--NASDAQ Financial 100 100.00 79.50 70.83 64.70 7330 70.34 8370 8118 74.79 8333 88.12

EiRusseII 2000 10000 90.63 66.21 67.96 84.20 8256 J45 10236 111.09 119.03

The information included under the heading Stock Performance Graph in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

is furnished and not filed and shall not be deemed to be soliciting material or subject to Regulation 14A shall not

be deemed filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section

nor shall it be deemed incorporated by reference in any filing under the Exchange Act

30



ITEM SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data set forth in the following table with respect to our statement of operations data

for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 and the balance sheet data as of December 31 2012 and

2011 are derived from our audited financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K The statement

of operations data for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 and the balance sheet data as of December 31

2010 2009 and 2008 are derived from our audited financial statements which are not included herein Historical

results are not necessarily indicative of future results See the notes below and to the consolidated financial statements

for an explanation of the method used to determine the number of shares used in computing net operating income

NOl and net income loss per common share basic and diluted The selected consolidated financial data set forth

below should be read in conjunction with and is qualified in its entirety by our audited consolidated financial statements

and related notes thereto found at Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data and Item Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

in thousands except per share and other period-end data

Income statement data

Revenue

Net operating income before net investment gain loss loss on

extinguishment of debt and income tax provision

Net investment loss

Net income loss

Per common share data

Net operating income before net investment gain loss loss gain on

extinguishment of debt and income tax provision per weighted-

average common sharebasic and diluted

Income loss per weighted-average common sharebasic and

diluted

Cash dividends declared per common share

Selected period-end balances

Investment portfolio balance

Fair value

Cost

Total assets

Borrowings

Total stockholders equity

Net asset value per common share outstanding

Other period-end data

Average size of investment

Fair value

Number of portfolio companies

Weighted-average common shares outstandingbasic and diluted

Shares outstanding at end of year

Based on common shares outstanding at period-end

Years ended December31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

60993 85696 89569 99834 135365

18806 37658 40565 38188 56090

13299 129873 54819 94353 257601

4998 93115 13072 51059 191245

0.25 0.49 0.54 0.51 0.78

0.07 1.22 0.17 0.68 2.65

0.58 0.66 0.37 0.71

Cost

477724 741166 $1009705 986346 $1203148

668787 1017218 1245673 1154924 1470123

630776 890538 1145277 1191149 1312434

248053 430219 546882 557848 636649

371728 434952 578016 615683 658911

5.18 5.65 7.54 8.06 8.66

10857 12353 14221 16718 17188

15200 16954 17545 19575 21002

44 60 71 59 70

74859 76259 75422 74692 72254

71721 76997 76662 76394 76075
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The information contained in this section should be read in conjunction with the Selected Financial Data and Other Data and our

Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

This Annual Report on Form 10-K including Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations contains forward-looking statements that involve substantial risks and uncertainties These forward-looking statements

are not historical facts but rather are based on current expectations estimates forecasts projections intentions goals strategies

plans prospects and the beliefs and assumptions of our management including without limitation our expectations regarding our

results of operations including revenues net operating income net investment losses and general and administrative expenses

and the factors that may affect such results our expectation that we will substantially deploy our cash on-hand in 2013 our plans

to submit an application for second SBIC license and the approval process for such license our intentions with respect to funding

in full our equity portion of second SB/C license using unrestricted cash our belief that our reorganized infrastructure has resulted

in smaller and simpler yet leverageable operating profile our expectations with regard to our borrowing costs the percentage of

our investments at fair value in equity investments our belief that our experience in middle-market investing is meaningful

competitive advantage our decisions to make dividend distributions after taking into account the minimum statutorily required level

of distributions gains and losses recognized for tax purposes portfolio transactional events our liquidity cash earnings and our

BDC asset coverage ratio our intentions to repurchase shares of our common stock under our stock repurchase program and

purchase debt for cash in open markets purchases and/or pri vately-negotiated transactions the sufficiency of liquidity to meet 2013

operating requirements as well as new origination opportunities and potential dividend distributions the liquidity for repayment of

our borrowing facilities from number of sources including cash on-hand the maturity or monetization of our investment portfolio

other borrowing facilities and equity issuances and from other borrowing arrangements our use of independent valuation firms to

provide additional support for our internal analyses our expectations regarding the full use before expiration of certain financial

instruments including loans participations in loans guarantees letters of credit and other financial commitments general market

conditions the state of the economy and other factors Forward-looking statements can be identified by terminology such as

anticipate believe could could increase the likelihood hope target project goals potential predict might
estimate expect ntend planned may should will will enable would be expecte look forward may provide

would or similar terms variations of such terms or the negative of those terms These statements are not guarantees of future

performance and are subject to risks uncertainties and other factors some of which are beyond our control and difficult to predict

Important factors could cause our actual results to differ materially from those indicated or implied by forward-looking statements

Such factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include those risk factors discussed in Item IA of Part of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K

Although we believe that the assumptions on which these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable any of those

assumptions could prove to be inaccurate and as result the forward-looking statements based on those assumptions also could

be incorrect In light of these and other uncertainties the inclusion of projection or forward-looking statement in this Annual Report

on Form 10-K should not be regarded as representation by us that our plans and objectives will be achieved You should not

place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements which apply only as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements for any reason even if new information becomes available

or other events occur in the future

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

We are solutions-focused commercial finance company that provides capital and advisory services to middle-market

companies throughout the United States Generally our portfolio companies use our capital investment to finance

acquisitions recapitalizations buyouts organic growth working capital and other general corporate purposes

We are an internally managed non-diversified closed-end investment company that has elected to be regulated as

business development company or BDC under the In vestment Company Act of 1940 as amended or the 1940

Act As BDC we must meet various regulatory tests which include investing at least 70% of our total assets in private

or thinly traded public U.S.-based companies and limitations on our ability to incur indebtedness unless immediately

after such borrowing we have an asset coverage for total borrowings excluding SBIC debt of at least 200% i.e the

amount of debt generally may not exceed 50% of the value of our assets

In addition we have elected to be treated for federal income tax purposes as regulated investment company or RIO

under Subchapter of the Internal Revenue Code In order to continue to qualify as RIC for federal income tax

purposes and obtain favorable RIO tax treatment we must meet certain requirements including certain minimum

distribution requirements If we satisfy these requirements we generally will not have to pay corporate-level taxes on

any income we distribute to our stockholders as distributions allowing us to substantially reduce or eliminate our

corporate-level tax liability From time to time our wholly owned subsidiaries may execute transactions that trigger

corporate-level tax liabilities In such cases we recognize tax provision in the period when it becomes more likely

than not that the taxable event will occur
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Significant Developments in 2012

Control Investments We exited monetized or restructured five control investments including Broadview

Networks Holdings Inc or Broadview Jet Plastica Investors NPS Holding Group Orbitel Holdings and lntran

Media thereby reducing our control investments to an aggregate of $33.9 million in the debt securities of two

companies and $16.1 million in the equity securities of one company

Originations and Advances We made $162.0 million in originations and advances to new and existing

portfolio companies principally in the form of loans 94.4% or $152.9 million including ten new investments

We invested the remaining $9.1 million principally in minority equity investments as well as follow-on

investments and paid-in-kind or P1K dividends on existing investments

Equity Monetizations and Realizations We received $65.0 million in proceeds from the sale of equity

investments principally the sale of securities in each of Orbitel Holdings LLC Stratford School Holdings Inc

GSDM Holdings LLC and Jenzabar Inc For the twelve months ended December 31 2012 we reduced our

equity investments from 15% to less than 10% of the fair value of our total investment portfolio

Loan Monetizations We received $347.2 million in loan payoffs and amortization payments

Dividends We declared 57.5 cents per share in dividends and paid $56.0 million in total dividends

Open-Market Purchases of Our Stock We repurchased 6182046 shares of our common stock at weighted

average purchase price of $4.40 per share We acquired these shares from sellers in open market transactions

We retire these shares upon settlement thereby reducing the number of shares issued and outstanding

Board and Management Changes Effective November 2012 Hagen Saville became our CEO

succeeding Richard Neu who remains Chairman of the Companys Board of Directors From

November 2011 to October 2012 Mr Saville served as the Companys President and Chief Operating Officer

before which he was Executive Vice President of Business Development from March 1998 to October 2011

In addition effective December 31 2012 MCG reduced the size of its board of directors from seven members

to five

Operational Realignment We incurred costs associated with our transition plan of $9.3 million or $0.13 per

share that includes $8.8 million or $0.12 per share of transition costs included in operating expenses and

$0.5 million or $0.01 per share of realized losses associated with the write-off of fixed assets Transition

costs include $2.3 million in accelerated deferred financing fees that we recorded as interest expense

$1.4 million in retention and inducement payments that we recorded as salaries and benefits $0.3 million in

amortization expenses associated with the elimination of positions that we recorded as amortization of

employee restricted stock awards and $4.8 million in severance moving expenses and IT systems conversion

costs that we recorded as general and administrative expenses As of December31 2012 we had 18 full-

time employees and three part-time employees

NewLiquidity FacilityIn November 2012 we entered into two-year $20 million unsecured revolving credit

facility with Bank of America N.A The facility provides short-term liquidity to finance working capital and for

other general corporate purposes

Reduced Reliance on Leverage We reduced our outstanding debt by $182 million principally by reducing

our borrowings under our MCG Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1 or 2006-1 Trust and repaying and terminating

our SunTrust Warehouse facility and our Series 2007-A Private Placement Notes For the twelve months

ended December 31 2012 we reduced our debt-to-equity leverage profile from 11 to 0.71

Reduction in Loans on Non-Accrual As of December31 2011 and 2012 loans on non-accrual at fair value

declined from $19.3 million or 3.1% of our total loan portfolio to $0.6 million or 0.1% of our total loan portfolio

principally resulting from the sale of NPS Holding Group and the wind-down of Jet Plastica Investors For the

same comparative periods loans on non-accrual at cost declined from $83.2 million or 11.9% of our total

loan portfolio to $16.8 million or 3.7% of our total loan portfolio

Outlook

During 2012 we substantially completed our operational and financial transition to return the Company to its roots as

middle market lender As part of the transition we accomplished several important strategic initiatives which included
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exiting majority of our control investments deploying capital in the form of loans limiting equity investments to minority

investments reducing leverage risk in terms of our debt to equity ratio and simplifying our operations

Using unrestricted cash and restricted cash from our SBIC we ended fiscal year 2012 with $121 million of cash on-

hand to make new investments Less than 10% of our investment portfolio at fair value matures in 2013 and

approximately half of those maturities will be used to pay down our 2006-1 Trust

Assuming continued stability in the market actionable opportunities that meet our underwriting standards portfolio

granularity requirements and no material repayments beyond scheduled maturities we anticipate that we will

substantially deploy our cash on-hand in 2013

We intend to make our investments through our SBICs Solutions Capital and if license is granted by the United

States Small Business Administration orSBA Solutions Capital II L.P corner-stone of our funding strategy As of

December 31 2012 our investment in Solutions Capital includes approximately $48 million of cash $188 million of

investments at fair value $150 million of debt and $86 million of equity

In September2012 we submitted documentation to the SBA in support of potential SBIC license for Solutions Capital

II L.P In February 2013 we received letter from the SBA inviting us to file formal license application which we

are in the process of preparing for submission There is no assurance that the SBA will grant the additional license in

any specified time period or at all Currently second SBIC license would grant us the ability to borrow up to an

additional $75 million from the SBA or two times the amount of statutory equity capital we invest in Solutions Capital

II L.P If approved and based on available capital we intend to fund the entire $37.5 million using unrestricted cash

We believe that our reorganized infrastructure has resulted in smaller and simpler yet leverageable operating profile

Excluding potential leverage from second SBIC license or other potentially accretive opportunities we anticipate

that our cost to borrow will remain materially unchanged at approximately 4.5%

Under the $35 million stock repurchase program authorized by our board of directors in January 2012 we continue

to repurchase shares of our common stock in open market transactions including through block purchases depending

on prevailing market conditions and other factors As of February 28 2013 we have repurchased and retired 6460881
common shares at weighted average purchase price of $4.40 per share

Access to Capital and Liquidity

At December 31 2012 we had $73.6 million of cash and cash equivalents available for general corporate purposes
as well as $47.5 million of cash in restricted accounts related to our SBIC that we could use to fund new investments

in the SBIC and $6.8 million of restricted cash held in escrow In addition we had $17.0 million of cash in securitization

accounts that may only be used to make interest and principal payments on our securitized borrowings or distributions

to the Company in accordance with the indenture agreement

At December 31 2012 cash in securitization accounts included $13.1 million in the principal collections account of

our 2006-1 Trust In January 2013 we used $15.0 million of securitized cash including $1.9 million collected in January

2013 to repay portion of the outstanding borrowings of our 2006-1 Trust The reinvestment period for this facility

ended on July 20 2011 and all subsequent principal collections received have been and will be used to repay the

securitized debt At December 31 2012 the outstanding borrowings under the 2006-1 Trust were $98.1 million

At December 31 2012 $150.0 million of SBA borrowings were outstanding the maximum available under our current

SBIC license

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

As of December31 2012 the fair value of our investment portfolio was $477.7 million which represents

$263.4 million or 35.5% decrease from the $741.2 million fair value as of December 31 2011 The following sections

describe the composition of our investment portfolio as of December 31 2012 and key changes in our portfolio during

the twelve months ended December 31 2012
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Portfolio Composition

The following table summarizes the composition of our investment portfolio at fair value

Total debt investments

Equity investments

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents equity

Total equity investments

Total investments

December 31 2012 December31 2011

Investments at Percent of Investments at Percent of

Fair Value Total Portfolio Fair Value Total Portfolio

291760 61.1A 492488 66.4%

114983 24.1 124289 16.8

26274 5.4 12203 1.7

433017 90.6 628980 84.9

41558 8.7 89931 12.1

3149 0.7 22255 3.0

44707 9.4 112186 15.1

477724 100.0% 741166 100.0%

Our debt investments bear contractual interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 16.5% portion of which may be in the

form of P1K interest As of December 31 2012 approximately 76.3% of the fair value of our loan portfolio had variable

interest rates based on either the London Interbank Offer Rate or LIBOR or the prime rate and 23.7% of the fair

value of our loan portfolio had fixed interest rates As of December 31 2012 approximately 67.3% of our loan portfolio

at fair value had LIBOR floors between 1.0% and 3.0% on LIBOR based index and prime floors between 1.75%

and 6.0% At origination our loans generally have four- to six-year stated maturities Borrowers typically pay an

origination fee based on percentage of the total commitment and fee on undrawn commitments

The following table summarizes our investment portfolio by industry at fair value

No individual industry within this category exceeds 1%

As of December 31 2012 our ten largest portfolio companies represented approximately 50.8% of the total fair value

of our investments These ten companies accounted for 36.3% of our total revenue during the twelve months ended

dollars in thousands

Debt investments

Senior secured debt

Subordinated debt

Secured

Unsecured

dollars in thousands

December 31 2012

Investments Percent of

at Fair Value Total Portfolio

December 31 2011

Investments at Percent of

Fair Value Total Portfolio

Healthcare 106119 22.2%

Business services 6.4947 13.6

Education 59783 12.5

Electronics 33361 7.0

Publishing 30646 6.4

Manufacturing 28728 6.0

Logistics 27237 5.7

Insurance 26529 5.6

Broadcasting 25372 5.3

Agriculture 21781 4.6

Information services 12646 2.7

Restaurants 9301 1.9

Home furnishings 7806 1.6

Auto parts 6434 1.3

Cable 5061 1.1

Communications 1087 0.2

Technology 988 0.2

Plastic products

Food services

Repair services

Cosmetics

Othera

84660

78468

69124

31966

31319

77849

33684

24987

28185

9464

21672

18578

12355

19778

43122

34507

24690

21784

28842

19839

8521

17772

11.4%

10.6

9.3

4.3

4.2

10.5

4.5

3.4

3.8

1.3

2.9

2.5

1.7

2.7

5.8

4.7

3.3

2.9

3.9

2.7

1.2

2.4

Total

9898 2.1

477724 100.0% 741166 100.0%
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December 31 2012 We originated approximately $51 million or 20% of the fair value of our top ten largest portfolio

investments in the fourth quarter

During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 we had concentrations in certain industries including the

healthcare business services and education industries The following table summarizes our fair value and revenue

concentrations in each of those industries

Ldilars in thousands

Industry

Healthcare

Business services

Education

Total

Investments at fair value

Changes in Investment Portfolio

During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 we made $162.0 million of originations and advances compared

to $284.9 million of originations and advances during the twelve months ended December 31 2011 The following

table summarizes our total portfolio investment activity during the twelve months ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Year ended

in thousands December 31

Beginning investment portfolio

Originations and advances

Gross payments reductions and sales of securities

Net realized 055a

unrealized depreciation

Reversals of unrealized depreciation

Origination fees and amortization of unearned income

Ending investment portfolio

2012 2011

741166 1009705

161957 284864

412195 410240

98181 89798

15261 122512

100250 82428

12 13281

477724 741166

Netreazed loss for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 excludes $0.4 million and $0.7 million respectively of net realized

loss related to other assets

Revenue for the year ended

December31 2012 December31 2011 December31 2012 December31 2011

%of Total %of Total %of Total %of Total

Amount Portfolio Amount Portfolio Amount Revenue Amount Revenue

106119 22.2% 84660 11.4% 9160 15.0% 10926 12.7%

64947 13.6 78468 10.6 7247 11.9 9967 11.6

59783 12.5 69124 9.3 5286 8.7 4742 5.5

230849 48.3A 232252 31.3% 21693 35.6% 25635 29.8%
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Originations and Advances

The following table shows our originations and advances during the twelve months ended December 31 2012 and

2011 by security type

dollars in thousands

Debt investments

Senior secured debt

Subordinated debt

Secured

Unsecured

Total debt investments

Equity investments

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents equity

Total equity investments

Total originations and advances

Year ended December 31

2012 2011

Amount of Total Amount of Total

78792 48.6% 236078 82.9%

47240 29.2 32351 11.3

26870 16.6 1953 0.7

152902 94.4 270382 94.9

8994 5.6 13968 4.9

61 514 0.2

9055 5.6 14482 5.1

161957 100.0A 284864 100.0%

The following table shows our significant originations and advances

Debt

Company

Oceans Acquisition Inc

South Bay Mental Health Center Inc

Midwest Technical Institute Inc

Chase Industries Inc

IDOC LLC

Color Star Growers of Colorado Inc

Hammonds Candies Since 1920 II LLC

Accurate Group Holdings LLC

C7 Data Centers Inc

SC Academy Holdings Inc

Advanced Sleep Concepts Inc

Education Management Inc

Other $1 million

Total debt

Equity

C7 Data Centers Inc

Accurate Group Holdings LLC

RadioPharmacy Investors LLC

Golden Knight II CLO Ltd

IDOC LLC

Other $1 million

Total Equity

Total originations and advances

in thousands Year ended

December 31 2012

Draws P1K Advances

Originations Advances Dividends Total

23710 23710

8079 10100 154 18333

17500 17500

16800 16800

15000 15000

13500 53 13553

12500 12508

10000 10000

10000 10000

4500 4500

3500 115 3615

1000 1029 2029

1460 3894 5354

127089 20560 5253 152902

2000 53 2053

2000 2000

1919 1919

1171 1171

999 33 1032

368 512 880

5367 3688 9055

132456 20560 8941 161957
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Repayments Sales and Other Reductions of Investment Portfolio

The following table shows our gross payments reductions and sales of securities during the twelve months ended

December31 2012 and 2011 by security type

dollars in thousands

Debt investments

Senior secured debt

Subordinated debt

Secured

Unsecured

Total debt investments

Equity investments

Preferred equity

common/common equivalents equity

Total equity investments

Total gross payments reductions and sales

of securities

Year ended December 31

2012 2011

Amount of Total Amount of Total

283463 68.7% 256928 62.6%

51507 12.5 86642 21.1

12189 3.0 2399 0.6

347159 84.2 345969 84.3

44439 10.8 61846 15.1

20597 5.0 2425 0.6

65036 15.8 64271 15.7

412195 100.0% 410240 100.0%

During the twelve months ended December 312012 and 2011 our gross payments reductions and sales of securities

by transaction type included

in thousands

Principal repayments reductions and loan sales

Sale of equity investments

Scheduled principal amortization

collection of accrued paid-in-kind interest and dividends

Total gross payments reductions and sales of securities

Year ended December 31

2012 2011

307044 269092

56562 50771

31119 55277

17470 35100

412195 410240
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As shown in the following table during the twelve months ended December31 2012 we monetized all or part of

26 portfolio investments with proceeds totaling $375.1 million

Monetizations

GSDM Holdings Corp

Stratford School Holdings Inc

Orbitel Holdings LLC

Coastal Sunbelt Holding Inc

Jenzabar Inc

Chase Doors Holdings Inc

Industrial Safety Technologies Inc

Metropolitan Telecommunications Holding

Company

Qualawash Holdings LLC

Xpressdocs Holdings Inc

Haws Corporation

The Matrixx Group Incorporated

Service Champ Inc

NPS Holding Group LLC

Bentley Systems Incorporated

Focus Brands Inc

Data Based Systems International Inc

Showplex Cinemas Inc

Sally Holdings LLC

Goodman Global Inc

Other Million

Total monetizations

Other scheduled payments

Total gross payments sales and other
reductions of investment portfolio

ASSET QUALITY

Year ended

Asset quality is generally function of portfolio company performance and economic conditions as well as our

underwriting and ongoing management of our investment portfoUo In addition to various risk management and

monitoring tools we use the following investment rating system to characterize and monitor our expected level of

returns on each investment in our portfolio

Summary Description

Capital gain expected or realized

Full return of principal and interest or dividend expected with customer performing in accordance with

plan

Full return of principal and interest or dividend expected but customer requires closer monitoring

Some loss of interest or dividend expected but still expect an overall positive internal rate of return

on the investment

Loss of interest or dividend and some loss of principal investment expected which would result in an

overall negative internal rate of return on the investment

in thousands

December 31 2012

Principal

Repayments Sale or

and Proceeds Settlement of P1K Interest

from Loan Equity and Dividend

Sales Investments Prepayments Total

25552 6105 2745 34402

17500 16370 171 34041

17775 12829 2929 33533

27411 1288 28699

20542 3158 23700

22037 22037

22000 22000

21770 21770

20000 20000

17855 707 18562

16500 16500

12500 12500

11693 488 12181

11703 11703

9900 9900

9235 9235

9000 213 9213

8077 8077

7307 7307

5599 5599

13630 524 14154

307044 56370 11699 375113

31119 192 5771 37082

338163 56562 17470 412195

The proceeds from these monetizations correlated closely with the most recently reported fair value of the associated

investments

Investment

Rating
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The following table shows the distribution of our investments on our to investment rating scale at fair value as of

December 31 2012 and December 31 2011

As of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 Investment Rating included $81.9 million and $109.1 million respectively of loans

to companies in which we also hold equity securities

When one of our loans becomes more than 90 days past due or if we otherwise do not expect the customer to be

able to service its debt and other obligations we will as general matter place all or portion of the loan on non-

accrual status and will cease recognizing interest income on that loan until all principal and interest have been brought

current through payment or restructuring such that the interest income is deemed to be collectible However we

may make exceptions to this policy if the loan has sufficient collateral value and is in the process of collection If the

fair value of loan is below cost we may cease recognizing P1K interest and/or the accretion of discount on the debt

investment until such time that the fair value equals or exceeds cost

The following table summarizes the cost and fair value of loans more than 90 days past due and loans on non-accrual

status

dollars in thousands

Loans greater than 90 days past due

On non-accrual status

Not on non-accrual status

Total loans greater than 90

days past due

Loans on non-accrual status

to 90 days past due

Greater than 90 days past due

Total loans on non-accrual
status

dollars in thousands

Investment

Rating

December 31 2012

Investments at

Fair Value

of Total

Portfolio

December 31 2011

Investments at

Fair Value

of Total

Portfolio

Total

1a 146589 30.7% 283755 38.3%

209016 43.7 290583 39.2

96932 20.3 142639 19.2

22789 4.8 11683 1.6

2398 0.5 12506 1.7

477724 100.0%$ 741166 100.0%

COST BASIS FAIR VALUE BASIS

December 31 2012 December 31 2011 December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Investments of Loan Investments of Loan Investments of Loan Investments of Loan

at Cost Portfolio at Cost Portfolio at Fair Value Portfolio at Fair Value Portfolio

3897 0.86% 13963 2.00 9615 1.53%

3897 0.86% 13963 2.00 9615 1.53%

12880 2.85% 69241 9.92/ 607 0.14% 9704 1.54%

3897 0.86 13963 2.00 9615 1.53

16777 3.71% 83204 11.92 607 0.14% 19319 3.07%
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The following table summarizes the changes in the cost and fair value of the loans on non-accrual status from

December 31 2011 through December 31 2012

Year ended

In thousands

Non-accrual loan balance as of December 31 2011

Additional loans on non-accrual status-home furnishings

Payments received on loans on non-accrual status

Change in unrealized gain loss on non-accrual loans

Reversal of previously recognized unrealized loss on non-accrual loans2

Realized loss on non-accrual loans8

Total change in non-accrual loans

Non-accrual loan balance as of December 31 2012

December31 2012

Cost Fair Value

83204 19319

5385 3112

22604 22604

1069

48919

49208 49208

66427 18712

16777 607

Represents the reversal of previously recognized unrealized loss and recognition of realized loss on non-accrual loans attributed to Jet

Plastica Investors LLC and NPS Holding Group LLC

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 AND 2011

The following table summarizes the components of our net income loss for the twelve months ended December 31
2012 and 2011

Years ended

December 31

dollars in thousands

Revenue

Interest and dividend income

Interest income

Dividend income

Loan fees

Total interest and dividend income

Advisory fees and other income

Total revenue

Operating expenses

Interest expense

Employee compensation

Salaries and benefits

Amortization of employee restricted stock

Total employee compensation

General and administrative expense

Restructuring expense

Total operating expense

Net operating income before net investment gain

loss loss on extinguishment of debt and income

tax provision

Net investment loss before income tax provision

Loss gain on extinguishment of debt before income

tax provision

Income tax provision

Net income loss

NMNot Meaningful

Variance

3.4

8.7

0.2

7.4

0.4

98.4

12.2

50.1

89.8

79.8

2012 2011 Percentage

50775 71133 20358 28.6%

3688 7344 3656 49.8

3236 3731 495 13.3

57699 82208 24509 29.8

3294 3488 194 5.6

60993 85696 24703 28.8

15103 15634 531

10956 11998 1042
2076 2081

13032 14079 1047
13983 14036 53

69 4289 4220
42187 48038 5851

18806 37658 18852

13299 129873 116574

174 863 689

335 37 298

4998 93115$ 98113

NM

NM
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TOTAL REVENUE

Total revenue includes interest and dividend income loan fees advisory fees and other income The following sections

describe the reasons for the variances in each major component of our revenue during the twelve months ended

December 31 2012 from the twelve months ended December 31 2011

INTEREST INCOME

The level of interest income that we earn depends upon the level of interest-bearing investments outstanding during

the period as well as the weighted-average yield on these investments During the twelve months ended December 31

2012 the total yield on our average debt portfolio at fair value was 11.3% compared to 10.7% during the twelve months

ended December 31 2011 The weighted-average yield varies each period because of changes in the composition

of our portfolio of debt investments changes in stated interest rates accelerations of unearned fees on paid-off

restructured loans and the balance of loans on non-accrual status for which we are not accruing interest

The following table shows the various components of the total yield on our average debt portfolio at fair value for the

twelve months ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Year ended

Average 90-day LIBOR

Spread to average LIBOR on average loan portfolio

Impact of fee accelerations of unearned fees on paidrestructured loans

Impact of non-accrual loans

Total yield on average loan portfolio

December 31

2012 2011

0.4% 0.3%

10.9 10.7

0.4 0.3

0.4 0.6

11.3% 10.7%

During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 interest income was $50.8 million compared to $71.1 million

during the twelve months ended December 31 2011 which represented $20.4 million or 28.6% decrease This

decrease reflected $23.4 million decrease resulting from 31 .6% decrease in our average loan balance ii

$1.3 million decrease resulting from loans that were on non-accrual status during the twelve months ended

December 31 2012 but that had been accruing interest during the twelve months ended December 31 2011 and iii

$0.4 million decrease due to interest rate floors These decreases were partially offset by $4.1 million increase in

interest income resulting from 0.4% increase in our net spread to LIBOR and $0.7 million increase in interest

income related to the increase in LIBOR

Interest income includes certain amounts that we have not received in cash such as P1K interest P1K interest represents

contractually deferred interest that is added to the principal balance of the loan and compounded if not paid on current

basis Borrowers may in some instances be required to prepay P1K because of certain contractual provisions or they

may choose to prepay however more typically P1K is paid at the end of the loan term The following table shows the

P1K-related activity for the twelve months ended December 31 2012 and 2011 at cost

Year ended

December 31

2012 2011

15653 30923

5253 7794

590

8996 21600

3143 877
6010 1177
9043 15653

P/K Income

in thousands

Beginning P1K loan balance

P1K interest earned during the period

Interest receivable converted to P1K

Payments received from P1K loans

P1K converted from to other securities

Realized loss

Ending P1K loan balance

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 we were not accruing interest on $0.4 million and $8.9 million respectively of

the ending P1K loan balance at cost During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 the payments received

on P1K loans included $2.9 million from Jet Plastica Investors LLC $1 .8 million from GSDM Holdings Corp and
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$1.3 millionfrom Coastal Sunbelt Holding Inc The payments received from P1K loans during the twelve months ended

December 31 2011 included $8.2 million and $4.7 million of P1K collected in conjunction with the respective sales of

our investments in Restaurant Technologies Inc and Avenue Broadband LLC as well as $1.7 million collected in

conjunction with the partial repayment of our investment in Sagamore Hill Broadcasting LLC

DIVIDEND INCOME

We accrete dividends on equity investments with stated dividend rates as they are earned to the extent that we believe

the dividends will be paid ultimately and the associated portfolio company has sufficient value to support the accretion

We recognize dividends on our other equity investments when we receive the dividend payment Our dividend income

varies from period to period because of changes in the size and composition of our equity investments the yield from

the investments in our equity portfolio and the ability of the portfolio companies to declare and pay dividends During

the twelve months ended December 312012 and 2011 we recognized dividend income of $3.7 million and $7.3 million

respectively In addition during the twelve months ended December 31 2012 and 2011 we received payments on

accrued dividends of $8.5 million and $13.5 million respectively Broadview restructured during 2012 which resulted

in our controlling interest in the company held through our ownership in the companys preferred stock converting to

minority common stock investment As result our $159.6 million cost basis in our preferred stock investment

including $65.9 million of accrued dividends converted into the cost basis of the newly issued common stock As of

December 31 2012 the balance of accrued dividends was $9.4 million

ADVISORYFEESAND OTHER INCOME

Advisory fees and other income primarily include fees related to prepayment advisory and management services

equity structuring syndication bank interest and other income Generally advisory fees and other income relate to

specific transactions or services and therefore may vary from period to period depending on the level and types of

services provided During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 we earned $3.3 million of advisory fees and

other income which represented $0.2 million or 5.6% decrease from the twelve months ended December 31 2011

This decrease included decrease of $2.3 million in advisory fees due to our lower investment activity in 2012 compared

to 2011 offset by an increase in prepayment premiums of $2.1 million related to eight investment repayments in 2012

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

Total operating expenses include interest employee compensation and general and administrative expenses The

reasons for these variances are discussed in more detail below

INTEREST EXPENSE

During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 we incurred $15.1 million of interest expense which represented

$0.5 million or 3.4% decrease from the same period in 2011 During these respective periods our average cost

to borrow increased from 3.1% to 4.6% principally due to the repayment of securitized debt of our 2006-1 Trust which

carries interest rates ranging from L0.33% to L2.25% additional borrowings under the SBIC debenture program

which carries weighted average fixed rate of 4.33% and an increase in the amortization of deferred financing costs

from $3.0 million to $5.6 million

During the twelve months ended December31 2012 our averaging borrowings declined to approximately $324 million

from an average of approximately $501 million for the same period in 2011 which accounted for $5.2 million reduction

in our interest expense This decrease in interest expense was offset by an increase of $2.6 million related to increased

amortization of debt issuance costs $1.6 million attributable to the spread to LIBOR increasing from approximately

2.1% to 2.5% and $0.5 million due to an increase in the average LIBOR rate from 0.3% to 0.4%

We recognized $5.6 million in deferred financing costs during the twelve months ended December 31 2012 up

$2.6 million from the same period in 2011 The increase in 2012 is attributable to $2.3 million in accelerated deferred

financing fees related to the termination of our SunTrust Warehouse financing facility and $0.3 million of accelerated

deferred financing fees related to prepayments of collateral in our 2006-1 Trust
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EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

Employee compensation expense includes base salaries and benefits variable annual incentive compensation and

amortization of employee stock awards During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 our employee
compensation expense was $13.0 million which represented $1.0 million or 7.4% decrease from the same period

in 2011 Our salaries and benefits decreased by $1.0 million or 8.7% due to $3.8 million decrease in salaries and

benefits primarily resulting from reductions in our workforce that occurred as part of our corporate restructuring and

operational realignment that began in August 2011 and is now substantially complete As of December 31 2012 we
had 21 employees compared to 63 employees as of June 30 2011 The decrease in salaries and benefits was offset

by an increase in incentive compensation of $2.8 million primarily resulting from incentive and inducement bonuses

for 2012

During each of the twelve months ended December 31 2012 and 2011 we recognized $2.1 million of compensation

expense related to employee restricted stock awards The amortization of restricted stock awards during the twelve

months ended December 31 2012 included accelerated amortization of $0.3 million of awards to employees whose

employment was terminated in during 2012

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 general and administrative expense was $14.0 million which

represented $0.1 million or 0.4% decrease compared to the same period in 2011 General and administrative

expense for 2012 included $4.8 million in transition costs including $3.3 million in severance related expenses and

$1.5 million in costs to move our corporate headquarters and overhaul our information technology systems

NET IN VESTMENT GAIN LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX PROVISION

During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 we incurred $13.3 million of net investment losses before income

tax provision compared to $129.9 million during the same period in 2011 These amounts represent the total of net

realized gains and losses net unrealized depreciation appreciation and reversals of unrealized appreciation

depreciation We reverse unrealized appreciation depreciation at the time that we realize the gain or loss The

following table summarizes our realized and unrealized loss and gain on investments and changes in our unrealized

appreciation and depreciation on investments for the twelve months ended December 31 2012

Year ended December 31 2012

in thousands

Portfolio Company Industry

Reversal of

Unrealized Unrealized

Realized Depreciation Depreciation

Type Gain Loss Appreciation Appreciation

Net

Loss
Gain

Broadview Networks Holdings Inc Communications Control

Advanced Sleep concepts Inc Home Furnishings Affiliate

Orbitel Holdings LLC Cable Control

RadioPharmacy Investors LLC Healthcare Control

Education Management Inc Education Non-Affiliate

GSDM Holdings LLC Healthcare Non-Affiliate

Stratford School Holdings Inc Education Affiliate

NPS Holding Group LLC Business Services Control

Jet Plastica Investors LLC Plastic Produôts Control

Intran Media LLC Other Media Control

PremierGarage Holdings LLC Home Furnishings Control

Philadelphia Media Network Inc Newspaper Non-Affiliate

Cruz Bay Publishing Inc Publishing Non-Affiliate

Jenzabar Inc Technology Non-Affiliate

Other $1 million net gain loss

2171

1463

16370

12930

90802

12785

5371

5027

3000

16370

9789

6046

1966

1734

1387

849

99
2414

1385

1366

Total

9789

6046
805 3332

1734

1387

1976 1362

13056 3215

12715 2199

91288 1871

12945 160

5371

5064 36

4821 455

16436 66

1003 2481

100538 13299

In August 2012 Broadview filed voluntary pre-paCkaged chapter 11 plan of reorganization which was

approved by the U.S Bankruptcy Court and became effective in November 2012 Under the plan Broadviews

698 4182

98581 15256
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existing noteholders exchanged their notes for new Broadview common stock representing 97.5% of the

common stock of the reorganized company and $150 million in principal amount of new 10 1/2 senior

secured notes due in July 2017 and existing stockholders including MCG each received pro rata share of

the remaining 2.5% of the common stock of the reorganized company and two tranches of eight-year warrants

with exercise prices set at equity values that imply full recovery for existing noteholders As of December 31
2012 our fair value estimate of our investment in Broadview reflects our reduced ownership resulting from

this restructuring and the performance of the company

In April 2012 Jet Plastica Investors LLC liquidated substantially all of its assets Including the proceeds from

the liquidation we received $11.0 million in payments on our senior debt resulting in $90.8 million realized

loss and $91.3 million reversal of unrealized depreciation in the second quarter of 2012

In the second quarter of 2012 we received $34.0 million for the repayment of our debt and the sale of our

equity investment in Stratford School Holdings Inc which resulted in $16.4 million realized gain and

reversal of previously unrealized appreciation of $13.1 million

We received $35.2 million for the repayment of our debt and the sale of our equity investment in Orbitel

Holdings LLC which resulted in $2.2 million realized loss and reversal of previously unrealized depreciation

of $0.8 million

We received $34.7 million for the repayment of our debt and the sale of our equity investment in GSDM

Holdings LLC which resulted in $1.5 million realized gain and reversal of previously unrealized appreciation

of $2.0 million

We received $12.1 million in proceeds from the sale of all the assets of NPS Holding Group LLC for the

repayment of our debt and the sale of our equity investments which resulted in $12.9 million realized loss

and reversal of previously unrealized depreciation of $12.7 million

We received $0.4 million in proceeds from the sale of all the assets of Intran Media LLC which resulted in

realized loss on our equity investments of $12.7 million and reversal of previously unrealized depreciation

of $12.9 million

We restructured our subordinated debt investment in Cruz Bay Publishing Inc and canceled portion of our

outstanding subordinated loan balance resulting in $3.0 million realized loss and reversal of previously

unrealized depreciation of $4.8 million

We received $44000 in the sale of our equity investment in Philadelphia Media Network Inc and wrote off

our equity investment in PremierGarage Holdings LLC resulting in realized losses and reversals of previously

unrealized depreciation on those investments

In February 2012 we accepted $23.7 million for our senior preferred stock and warrant position in

Jenzabar Inc which resulted in $16.4 million reversal of previously unrealized appreciation and the

realization of $16.4 million gain

We recorded $6.0 million of unrealized depreciation on our investment in Advanced Sleep Concepts Inc to

reflect decrease in the performance of that company

The remaining unrealized depreciation and appreciation shown in the above table resulted predominantly from

change in the performance of certain of our portfolio companies and the multiples used to value certain of our

investments
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The following table summarizes our realized and unrealized loss and gain on investments and changes in our

unrealized appreciation and depreciation on investments for 2011

Year ended December31 2011

Broadview Networks Holdings Inc Communications Control 92093

Jet Plastica Investors LLC Plastic Products Control 28774

Jenzabar Inc Technology Non-Affiliate 11049

Intran Media LLC Other Media Control 6088

PremierGarage Holdings LLC Home Furnishihgs Control 5379

VOX Communications Group Broadcasting Non-Affiliate

Holdings LLC

Superior Industries Investors Inc Sporting Goods Control

Contract Datascan Holdings Inc Business Services Affiliate

Provo Craft Novelty Inc Leisure Activities Non-Affiliate

Avenue Broadband LLC Cable Control

Total Sleep Holdings Inc Healthcare Control

RadioPharmacy Investors LLC Healthcare Control

NPS Holding Group LLC Business Services Control

GSDM Holdings Corp Healthcare Non-Affiliate

Cruz Bay Publishing Inc Publishing Non-Affiliate

Orbitel Holdings LLC Cable Control

Stratford School Holdings Inc Education Affiliate

Restaurant Technologies Inc Food Services Non-Affiliate

Coastal Sunbelt Real Estate Inc Real Estate Non-Affiliate

Investments

Active Brands International Inc Consumer Products Non-Affiliate

GMC Television Broadcasting LLC Broadcasting Control

Other $1 million net gain loss

Total

598 465 567 434

90519 122594 83240 129873

summary of the reasons for significant changes in realized and unrealized loss and gain on investments and

changes in unrealized appreciation and depreciation on investments for 2011 is set forth below

During 2011 we recorded $92.1 million decrease in the fair value of our investment in Broadview primarily

to reflect among otherfactors continuing challenges in the bond market downgrade of Broadviews corporate

credit rating delays by Broadview in refinancing its debt as well as the near-term maturities of Broadviews

debt facilities

We recorded $28.8 million of unrealized depreciation on our investment in Jet Plastica Investors LLC to reflect

decrease in that companys operating performance In addition we recorded unrealized depreciation on

our investment in Jet Plastica to reflect an incremental investment that we made in this portfolio company

during 2011 that we subsequently wrote down to zero

In February 2012 we accepted $23.7 million for our senior preferred stock and warrant position in Jenzabar

which resulted in an $11.0 million unrealized depreciation during 2011 of our investment

We wrote off our remaining subordinated debt and equity investment in Total Sleep Holdings Inc resulting in

the reversal of $38.1 million of previously unrealized depreciation and the realization of $38.1 million loss

We received payments of $2.1 million on the sale of Active Brands International Inc.s senior debt and wrote

off our subordinated debt and equity investment in that portfolio company which resulted in the reversal of

$39.8 million of previously unrealized depreciation and the realization of $39.7 million loss

The remaining unrealized depreciation and appreciation shown in the above table resulted predominantly from

change in the performance of certain of our portfolio companies and the multiples used to value certain of our

investments

in thousands

Portfolio Company

Unrealized

Realized Depreciation
Industry Type LossIGain Appreciation

Reversal of

unrealized

Depreciation

Appreciation

6972

8461

7946

9256

7688

1010

1152

11977

38081

Net

Loss
Gain

92093

28774

11049

7062

6174

2043

1778

1358

1161

243

27

5645

2788

1358

1160

325

1151

11895

38054

7104 7104

3857 3857

2452 2452

2035 2035

1784 1784

1714 1714

1750 1429 1842 1337

171 2693 1914 950

39706 39829 123

1000 99 1000 99
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LOSS ON EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT

We incurred $0.2 million premium when we repurchased the remaining $8.7 million of our private placement notes

during 2012 During 2011 we incurred $0.9 million premium when we repurchased $17.4 million of our private

placement notes

INCOME TAX PROVISION

During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 we incurred $0.3 million income tax provision compared to

$37000 income tax provision during the twelve months ended December 31 2011 The income tax provision for both

periods was primarily attributable to flow-through taxable income on certain investments held by our subsidiaries
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SELECTED QUARTERLY DATA

in thousands except per share amounts

INCOME STATEMENT DATA

Revenue

Net operating income before net investment

gain loss loss on extinguishment of debt and

income tax provision

Net investment gain loss before Income tax

provision

Net income loss

PER COMMON SHARE DATA

Net operating income before net investment

gain loss loss on extinguishment of debt and

income tax provision per common share
basic and diluted

Income Loss earnings per weighted-average

common sharebasic and diluted

Cash dividends declared per common share

SELECTED PERIOD-END BALANCES

Investment portfolio balances

Fair value

Total stockholders equity

Net asset value per common share

outstanding11

OTHER PERIOD-END DATA

Average size of investment

Fair value

Number of portfolio companies

Number of employees

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDINGBASIC AND DILUTED

NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING
AT PERIOD-END

The following tables summarize key unaudited financial information for the eight quarters ended December 31 2012

Results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for the full year or for any future quarter

2012 Quarters 2011 Quarters

Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First

5113 4056 5595

24303

228 12339

4266 7037

0.06

1305

6412

0.07

0.09

0.125

0.07 0.05

0.06 0.09 0.02 0.64

0.14 0.14 0.17 0.17

Cosl

Total assets

Borrowings

13421 12069 17944 17559 19475 20710 21208

4042 7464 5953 11238 13003

2493 56429 31052 21448 20944

1357 48973 25109 10218 8815

0.09 0.08 0.15 0.17

0.33 0.13 0.12

0.17 0.17 0.15

477724 444793 453471 666140 741166 824173 849101 954349

668187 662035 676352 961058 1017218 1060243 1092092 1183616

630776 638427 752314 844224 890538 1009009 1066056 1105150

248053 249053 339778 402783 430219 490019 511210 527343

371728 378740 389926 418485 434952 496481 534033 557093

5.18 5.20 5.26 5.45 5.65 6.44 6.93 7.23

10857 11895

15200 17162

44 56

21 33

72594 73431 75142 77050 76514 76404 76343 75765

71721 72788 74062 76762 76997 77035 77046 77065

Cost

9884

14712

45

24

9648

14390

47

27

12353

16954

60

37

Based on common shares outstanding at period-end

13293

17101

62

39

13267

17064

64

63

14244

17666

67

63
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The following tables summarize key unaudited information aboutour investment portfolio for the eight quarters ended

December 31 2012 Results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for the full year or for any future

quarter

in thousands except per share amounts

PORTFOLIO COMPANY DATA FAlR
VALUE

Portfolio by type

Debt investments

Senior secured debt

Subordinated debt

Secured

Unsecured

Total debt investments

Equity investments

Preferred equity

Common equity/equivalents

Total equity investments

Total portfolio
________________________________________________________________________________________

Percentage of total portfolio

Debt investments

Senior secured debt

Subordinated debt

Secured

Unsecured

Total debt investments

Equity Investments

Preferred equity

Common
equity/equivalents

Total
equity

investments

Total portfolio
_____________________________________________________________________________________________

YIELD ON AVERAGE LOAN
PORTFOLIO AT FAIR VALUE

Average 90-Day LIBOR

Spread to average LIBOR on

average loan portfolio

Impact of fee accelerations of

unearned fees on paid/restructured

loans

Impact of non-accrual loans

Total yield on average loan

portfolio

COMPOSITION OF LOAN PORTFOLIO
BY INTEREST TYPE FAIR VALUE

Percentage of loans with fixed

interest rates

Percentage of loans with floating

interest rates

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL DEBT
INVESTMENTS FAIR VALUE

Loans on non-accrual status

2012 Quarters 2011 Quarters

Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First

291760 324228 328094 458928 492488 535247 535320 547280

114983 79191 88503 112070 124289 124203 132830 177628

26274 12353 12203 14411 14353 12588

433017 403419 416597 583351 628980 673861 682503 737496

41558 39524 34991 77901 89931 116310 133350 183735

3149 1850 1883 4888 22255 34002 33248 33118

44707 41374 36874 82789 112186 150312 166598 216853

477724 444793 453471 666140 741166 824173 849101 954349

61.1% 72.9% 72.4% 68.9% 66.4% 64.9% 63.0% 57.4%

24.1 17.8 19.5 16.8 16.8 15.1 15.7 18.6

5.4 1.9 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.3

90.6 90.7 91.9 87.6 84.9 81.8 80.4 77.3

8.7 8.9 7.7 11.7 12.1 14.1 15.7 19.2

0.7 0.4 0.4 0.7 3.0 4.1 3.9 3.5

9.4 9.3 8.1 12.4 15.1 18.2 19.6 22.7

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

0.3% 0.4% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3%

11.3 10.9 10.7 10.6 10.1 10.8 10.7 11.0

0.5 0.3 0.6 0.2 0.1 0.6 0.2 0.2

0.3 0.5 0.3 0.4 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.3

11.8% 11.1% 11.5% 10.9% 10.0% 10.9% 10.4% 11.2%

Loans greater than 90 days past

due

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL DEBT
INVESTMENTS COST

Loans on non-accrual status

Loans greater than 90 days past

due

23.7% 10.6% 13.1% 12.7% 11.8% 11.4% 12.5% 20.6%

76.3% 89.4% 86.9% 87.3% 88.2% 88.6% 87.5% 79.4%

0.1% 4.0% 3.0% 4.0% 3.1% 4.4% 5.3% 4.4%

3.1% 2.8% 1.8% 1.5% 1.6% 1.0%

3.7% 7.2% 5.8% 12.8% 11.9% 11.9% 13.2% 13.9%

0.9% 4.2% 2.8% 2.0%2.2% 2.0% 3.2%
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2011 AND 2010

The following table summarizes the components of our net loss for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

dollars in thousands

Revenue

Years ended December 31 Variance

2011 2010 Percentage

Interest and dividend income

NMNot Meaningful

TOTAL REVENUE

7.4

26.3

52.1

31.7

22.1

NM

2.0

7.2

NM

NM

97.9

NM

During 2011 our total revenue was $85.7 million which represents $3.9 million or 4.3% decrease from 2010 This

decline was composed primarily of $5.5 million or 7.2% decrease in interest income partially offset by $1.2 million

or 47.1% increase in loan fees income and $0.4 million or 14.7% increase in advisory fees and other income The

following sections describe the reasons for the variances in each major component of our revenue during the year

ended December 31 2011

INTEREST INCOME

During 2011 the total yield on our average debt portfolio at fair value was 10.7% compared to 11.7% during 2010 The

weighted-average yield varies each period because of changes in the composition of our portfolio of debt investments

changes in stated interest rates fee accelerations of unearned fees on paid/restructured loans and the balance of

loans on non-accrual status for which we are not accruing interest

Interest income 71133 76625 5492 7.2%

Dividend income 7344 7368 24 0.3

Loan fees 3731 2536 1195 47.1

Total interest and dividend income 82208 86529 4321 5.0

Advisory fees and other income 3488 3040 448 14.7

Total revenue 85696 89569 3873 4.3

Operating expenses

Interest expense

Employee compensation

Salaries and benefits

Amortization of employee restricted stock

Total employee compensation

General and administrative expense

Restructuring expense

Total operating expenses

Net operating income before net investment loss

loss gain on extinguishment of debt and income tax

provision

Net investment loss before income tax provisjon

Loss gain on extinguishment of debt before income

tax provision

Income tax provision

Net loss

15634 16891 1257

11998 16275 4277

2081 4342 2261

14079 20617 6538

14036 11495 2541

4289 4288

48038 49004 966

37658 40565 2907

129873 54819 75054

863 2983 3846
37 1801 1764

93115 13072 80043
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The following table shows the various components of the total yield on our average debt portfolio at fair value for the

years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

Average 90-day LIBOR

Spread to average LIBOR on average loan portfolio

Impact of fee accelerations of unearned fees on paid/restructured loans

Impact of non-accrual loans

Total yield on average loan portfolio

Years ended December 31

2011 2010

0.3A 0.3%

10.7 12.1

0.3 0.1

0.6 0.8

10.7A 11.7%

During 2011 interest income was $71.1 million compared to $76.6 million during 2010 which represented $5.5 million

or 7.2% decrease This decrease reflected $7.1 million decrease in interest income resulting from 133 basis-point

decrease in our spread to LIBOR and $1.3 million decrease resulting from the net impact of loans that were on non-

accrual status during 2011 but that had been accruing interest during 2010 These decreases were partially offset by

$2.0 million increase resulting from 3.3% rise in our average loan balance and $0.9 million increase in interest

income resulting from the impact of interest rate floors

P/K Income

The following table shows the P1K-related activity for 2011 and 2010 at cost

in thousands

Beginning P1K loan balance

P1K interest earned during the period

Interest receivable converted to P1K

Payments received from P1K loans

P1K converted to other securities

Realized loss

Ending P1K loan balance

Years ended December 31

2011 2010

30923 33436

7794 12652

590 3736

21600 18819

877 82
1177

15653 30923

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 we were not accruing interest on $8.9 million and $7.4 million respectively of

the ending P1K loan balance at cost

DIVIDEND INCOME

During the twelve months ended December 31 2011 and 2010 we recognized dividend income of $7.3 million and

$7.4 million respectively In addition during the twelve months ended December31 2011 and 2010 we received

payments on accrued dividends of $13.5 million and $4.0 million respectively Dividend collections during 2011

included $11.0 million collected through the sales of our equity investments in Avenue Broadband LLC and Superior

Industries Inc

LOAN FEES

During 2011 our loan fees increased $1.2 million or 47.1% compared to 2010 This increase was primarily attributable

to the acceleration of previously unamortized loan origination fees into loan income as result of higher loan repayments

during 2011

ADVISORY FEES AND OTHER INCOME

During 2011 we earned $3.5 million of advisoryfees and other income which represented $0.4 million or 14.7%

increase from 2010 This increase primarily represents increases in advisory fees and prepayment premiums
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TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

Total operating expenses include interest employee compensation and general and administrative expense During

2011 we incurred $48.0 million of operating expenses representing $1.0 million or 2.0% decrease from the same

period in the prior year This decrease was composed of $6.5 million decrease in employee compensation expense

and $1.3 million decrease in interest expense partially offset by $4.3 million increase in restructure expense and

$2.5 million increase in general and administrative expense The reasons for these variances are discussed in more

detail below

INTEREST EXPENSE

During 2011 we incurred $15.6 million of interest expense which represented $1.3 million or 7.4% decrease from

2010 narrowing of the interest rate spread from 2.33% during 2010 to 2.15% during 2011 caused interest expense
to decrease by $1.0 million Interest expense also decreased $0.6 million as result of reduction in the average

borrowing balance during 2011 compared to 2010 These decreases in interest expense were offset by $0.3 million

increase in interest expense related to amortization of deferred debt issuance costs

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

Employee compensation expense includes base salaries and benefits variable annual incentive compensation and

amortization of emplo stock awards During 2011 our employee compensation expense was $14.1 million which

represented $6.5 million or 31.7% decrease from 2010 Our salaries and benefits decreased by $4.3 million or

26.3% primarily due to $3.2 million decrease in incentive compensation and $1.0 million decrease in salaries

which primarily resulted from 42% reduction in our workforce that occurred as part of the corporate restructuring that

we implemented during 2011

During 2011 we recognized $2.1 million of compensation expense related to restricted stock awards compared to

$4.3 million for 2010 which represented $2.3 million or 52.1% decrease Included in the 2011 amortization of

employee restricted stock was $0.4 million of amortization expenses associated with our former CEOs resignation

The lapsing of forfeiture provisions for previously awarded restricted stock accounted for the reduction in amortization

of employee restricted stock Issuance of restricted stock under the 2009 Long-Term Incentive Plan or LTIP was

contingent upon the closing price of MCGs stock meeting certain price thresholds and the approval of the compensation

committee of our board of directors We achieved the final price threshold for which restricted stock could be issued

during 2011 resulting in the issuance of 86500 shares of restricted common stock and the award of $1.0 million to

LTIP participants

On August 2011 our board of directors approved the MCG Capital Corporation 2011 Retention Program or the

Retention Program for the benefit of our employees We designed the Retention Program to provide eligible employees

with certain incentives related to their past service and continuing employment with MCG The Retention Program
consisted of an aggregate of $1.3 million in cash and up to 121250 shares of restricted common stock

Under the Retention Program we awarded cash bonus to eligible employees representing specified percentage

of each eligible employees respective annual cash bonus target for the fiscal year ended December 31 2011 We
paid the incentive bonus to eligible employees in two equal installments on each of March 312012 and September 30
2012 Certain employees also received shares of restricted common stock under the MCG Capital Corporation 2006

Employee Restricted Stock Plan as amended or the 2006 Plan The forfeiture provisions with respect to 50% of the

shares of restricted common stock subject to each retention stock award lapsed on each of March 31 2012 and

September 30 2012

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

During 2011 general and administrative expense was $14.0 million which represented $2.5 million or 22.1%

increase from 2010 During the three months ended December 31 2011 we recognized $2.3 million of severance and

other expenses associated with our former CEOs resignation In addition professional fees increased $1.3 million

from 2010 resulting from portfolio-related litigation and other corporate initiatives in 2011 These increases were partially

offset by $0.9 million of fees paid in the second quarter of 2010 related to the contested election of directors to our

board of directors at our 2010 Annual Meeting
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RESTRUCTURING

In August 2011 our board of directors approved restructuring plan to simplify our organizational structure refine

operations and reduce annual operating expenses Affected employees were eligible to receive severance pay
continuation of benefits and for employees who previously had been awarded restricted stock additional lapsing of

restrictions associated with restricted stock awards During 2011 we incurred $4.3 million of restructuring expenses

NET OPERATING INCOME BEFORE NET INVESTMENT LOSS LOSS GAIN ON EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT
AND INCOME TAX PROVISION BENEFIT

Net operating income before investment loss loss gain on extinguishment of debt and income tax provision benefit

for the year ended December 31 2011 totaled $37.7 million compared with $40.6 million for the year ended

December 31 2010 This increase is due to the items discussed above

NET IN VESTMENT LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX PRO WSION

During 2011 we incurred $129.9 million of net investment loss before income tax provision compared to $54.8 million

of losses during 2010 These amounts represent the total of net realized loss gains net unrealized depreciation

appreciation and reversals of unrealized depreciation appreciation We reverse unrealized depreciation

appreciation at the time that we realize the gain or loss

The following table summarizes our realized and unrealized loss and gain on investments and changes in our

unrealized appreciation and depreciation on investments for 2011

Year ended December 31 2011

Reversal of

Unrealized Unrealized

Realized Depreciation Depreciation

LossGain Appreciation Appreciation

Net

Loss
Gain

92093

28774

11049

in thousands

Portfolio company Industry Type

Broadview Networks Holdings Inc Communications Control

Jet Plastica Investors LLC Plastic Products Control

Jenzabar Inc Technology Non-Affiliate

Intran Media LLC Other Media Control

PremierGarage Holdings LLC Home Furnishings Control

VOX Communications Group Broadcasting Non-Affiliate

Holdings LLC

Superior Industries Investors Inc Sporting Goods Control

Contract Datascan Holdings Inc Business Services Affiliate

Provo Craft Novelty Inc Leisure Activities Non-Affiliate

Avenue Broadband LLC Cable Control

Total Sleep Holdings Inc Healthcare Control

RadioPharmacy Investors LLC Healthcare Control

NPS Holding Group LLC Business Services Control

GSDM Holdings Corp Healthcare Non-Affiliate

Cruz Bay Publishing Inc Publishing Non-Affiliate

Orbitel Holdings LLC Cable Control

Stratford School Holdings Inc Education Affiliate

Restaurant Technologies Inc Food Services Non-Affiliate

Coastal Sunbelt Real Estate Inc Real Estate Non-Affiliate

Investments

Active Brands International Inc Consumer Products Non-Affiliate

GMC Television Broadcasting LLC Broadcasting Control

Other $1 million net gain loss

92093

28774

11049

7946 6088

9256 5379

7688

1010

1358

1152 1160

11977 325

38081

7104

3857

2452

2035

1784

1714

6972 7062

8461 6174

5645 2043

2788 1778

1358

1151 1161

11895 243

38054 27

7104

3857

2452

2035

1784

1714

Total

1750 1429 1842

171 2693 1914

39706

1000

39829

99 1000

1337

950

123

99

598 465 567 434

90519 122594 83240 129873
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summary of the reasons for significant changes in realized and unrealized loss and gain on investments and

changes in unrealized appreciation and depreciation on investments for 2011 is set forth below

During 2011 we recorded $92.1 million decrease in the fair value of our investment in Broadview primarily

to reflect among otherfactors continuing challenges in the bond market downgrade of Broadviews corporate

credit rating delays by Broadview in refinancing its debt as well as the near-term maturities of Broadviews

debt facilities

We recorded $28.8 million of unrealized depreciation on our investment in Jet Plastica Investors LLC to reflect

decrease in that companys operating performance In addition we recorded unrealized depreciation on

our investment in Jet Plastica to reflect an incremental investment that we made in this portfolio company

during 2011 that we subsequently wrote down to zero

In February 2012 we accepted $23.7 million for our senior preferred stock and warrant position in Jenzabar

which resulted in an $11.0 million unrealized depreciation during 2011 of our investment

We wrote off our remaining subordinated debt and equity investment in Total Sleep Holdings Inc resulting in

the reversal of $38.1 million of previously unrealized depreciation and the realization of $38.1 million loss

We received payments of $2.1 million on the sale of Active Brands International Inc.s senior debt and wrote

off our subordinated debt and equity investment in that portfolio company which resulted in the reversal of

$39.8 million of previously unrealized depreciation and the realization of $39.7 million loss

The remaining unrealized depreciation and appreciation shown in the above table resulted predominantly from

change in the performance of certain of our portfolio companies and the multiples used to value certain of our

investments
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Portfolio Company

Broadview Network Holdings Inc

Jet Plastica Investors LLC

Active Brands International Inc

Total Sleep Holdings Inc

JetBroadband Holdings LLC

PremierGarage Holdings LLC

Intran Media LLC

BH Education Inc

Jenzabar Inc

RadioPharmacy Investors LLC

Avenue Broadband LLC

MCI Holdings LLC

Stratford School Holdings Inc

GSDM Holdings LLC

Metropolitan Telecommunications

Holding Company

Coastal Holdings LLC

Teleguam Holdings LLC

Orbitel Holdings LLC

Golden Knight II CLO Ltd

GL Investment Holdings LLC

Sagamore Hill Broadcasting LLC

Quantum Medical Holdings LLC

Home Interiors Gifts Inc

WebMediaBrands Inc

Other $1 million net gain loss

Industry

Communications

Plastic Products

Consumer Products

Healthcare

Cable

Home Furnishings

Other Media

Education

Technology

Healthcare

Cable

Healthcare

Education

Healthcare

Communications

Real Estate

Investments

Communications

Cable

Diversified Financial

Services

Insurance

Broadcasting

Laboratory

Instruments

Type

Control

Control

Non-affiliate

Control

Control

Control

Control

Non-affiliate

Non-affiliate

Control

Control

Non-affiliate

Affiliate

Non-affiliate

Non-affiliate

Non-Affiliate

Non-affiliate

Control

Non-Affiliate

Non-Affiliate

Non-affiliate

Non-affiliate 1362

5271

1756

4109

3223

72
7319

7150

6497

3486

3103

2080

3610

1795

1695

1122

1096

1086

1057

357 1074

Net

Loss
Gain

35965

28048

18515

5271

4281

4109

3223

36
7319

7150

6497

3354

3103

2080

2011

1795

1695

1122

1096

1086

1057

645

188

Loss GAIN ON ExTINGuIsHMENT OF DEBT

We paid $0.9 million premium when we repurchased $17.4 million of our private placement notes during 2011 In

2010 we repurchased $8.0 million of collateralized loan obligations for $4.4 million that previously had been issued

by our 2006-1 Trust which resulted in the recognition of $3.6 million gain on extinguishment of debt excluding the

effect of the amortization of the acceleration of $0.1 million in deferred debt costs Additionally in 2010 we paid

$0.5 million premium when we repurchased $25.3 million of our private placement notes This premium represents

in thousands

The following table summarizes our realized and unrealized loss and gain on investments and

unrealized appreciation and depreciation on investments for the year ended December 31 2010

changes in our

Year ended December 31 2010

Reversal of

Realized Unrealized Unrealized

Loss Depreciation Depreciation

Gain Appreciation Appreciation

35965

28048

18515

3418

3642

5943

3678

9531

10157

9663

11756

Home Furnishings Control 3458 3645

Information Services Non-affiliate 1981 1984

1492 3995 1925 4428

11854 51510 15163 54819Total ________________________________________________

During 2010 we sold our investments in MCI Holdings LLC JetBroadband Holdings LLC BH Education Inc

Quantum Medical Holdings LLC and WebMediaBrands Inc as well as warrants to purchase common stock that we

held in Metropolitan Telecommunications Holding Company For each of these sales we reversed unrealized

appreciation depreciation that we had previously recognized and recorded realized gain or loss

During 2010 we recorded $36.0 million of unrealized depreciation on our investment in Broadview which reflected

variety of factors used to estimate of the fair value of this investment including merger and acquisition comparables

private market transactions public company comparables discounted cash flow analysis and an independent third

party valuation In addition we recognized unrealized depreciation on other investments in our portfolio including Jet

Plastica Investors LLC Active Brands International Inc Total Sleep Holdings Inc and PremierGarage Holdings

LLC primarily because of decrease in the performance of these companies and reduction in valuation multiples

The remaining unrealized depreciation appreciation shown in the above table resulted predominantly from changes

in the performance of certain of our portfolio companies and the multiples used to value certain of our investments
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2% of the principal amount purchased with monetization proceeds as required by our agreement with the holders of

those unsecured notes

INCOME TAX PROVISION

During 2011 we recorded $37000 income tax provision compared to $1.8 million income tax provision during

2010 Approximately $1.6 million of the income tax expense accrued for the year ended December 31 2010 was

attributable to the sale of JetBroadband Holdings LLC in July 2010 The income tax expense for 2011 and the remaining

tax expense for 2010 were primarily attributable to unrealized depreciation or appreciation and flow-through taxable

income on certain investments held by our subsidiaries

NET Loss

During 2011 we recorded net loss of $93.1 million compared to net loss of $13.1 million during 2010 This change
is attributable to the items discussed above

FINANCIAL CONDITION LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our financial liquidity principally comes from our cash on hand and the spread we earn on our investments principally

loans over our cost to borrow operate our business and gains and losses on our investments We may also use our

available liquidity to pay dividends to our stockholders and to repurchase our common stock in the open market under

our stock repurchase program For the year ended December31 2012 we declared 57.5 cents per share in dividends

and paid $56 million in total dividends We also repurchased 6.2 million shares of our common stock for $27.2 million

at weighted average price of $4.40 per share

For the year ended December 31 2012 we earned 11.3% on our average loan portfolio at fair value of $478 million

and our weighted average cost to borrow was 4.6% on average borrowings of $324 million Including dividend income

and fee income we earned $45.9 million of financial income or total revenue less interest expense $18.8 million of

net operating income and $5.0 million of net income

At December 31 2012 we had $73.6 million in cash and cash equivalents available for general corporate purposes
$47.5 million of cash in restricted accounts related to our SBIC that we could use to fund new investments in the SBIC

and $6.7 million of restricted cash held in escrow In addition we had $17.0 million in securitization accounts that may
only be used to make interest and principal payments on our securitized borrowings or distributions to MCG in

accordance with the indenture agreement We also have full access to $20 million unsecured revolving credit facility

that we can use for general corporate purposes

In order to reduce future cash interest payments under our borrowings as well as future amounts due at maturity or

upon redemption under our borrowings we may from time to time purchase debt for cash in open market purchases

and/or privately negotiated transactions if attractive pricing can be identified We will evaluate any such transactions

in light of then-existing market conditions taking into account our current liquidity and prospects for future access to

capital The amounts involved in any such transactions individually or in the aggregate may be material

Although there can be no assurance we believe we have sufficient liquidity to meet our operating requirements for

the remainder of 2013 as well as liquidity for new origination opportunities and potential dividend distributions

CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS CASH SECURITIZATION ACCOUNTS AND CASH RESTRICTED

Our Consolidated Balance Sheets and our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows reflect three categories of cash

cash and cash equivalents cash securitization accounts and cash restricted Each of these categories is described

more fully below

Cash and cash equivalents represents unrestricted cash including checking accounts interest bearing

deposits collateralized by marketable debt securities and highly liquid investments with original maturities of

90 days or less As of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 we had $73.6 million and $58.6 million

respectively in cash and cash equivalents As of December 31 2012 our cash and cash equivalents included

$43.3 million that was held in interest-bearing accounts

Cash securitization accounts includes principal and interest payments received on securitized loans which

are held in designated bank accounts until monthly or quarterly disbursements are made from the securitization
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trusts We are generally required to use portion of these amounts to pay interest expense reduce borrowings

or pay otheramounts in accordance with the related securitization agreements Cash in securitization accounts

has negative impact on our earnings since the interest we pay on borrowings typically exceeds the rate of

return that we are able to earn on temporary cash investments Our objective is to maintain sufficient cash-

on-hand and availability under our debt facilities to cover current funding requirements As of December 31
2012 and December 31 2011 we had $17.0 million and $40.3 million respectively in cash securitization

accounts

Cash restricted includes cash held for regulatory purposes and cash held in escrow The largest component
of restricted cash is cash held by Solutions Capital wholly owned subsidiary licensed as an SBIC under the

SBIC Act which generally is restricted to the origination of new loans by Solutions Capital As of December 31
2012 and December 31 2011 we had $54.8 million and $35.0 million respectively of restricted cash

During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 our operating activities provided $282.8 million of cash and cash

equivalents and our financing activities used $267.7 million of cash and cash equivalents

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCESBORROWINGS

As of December 31 2012 we reported $248.1 million of borrowings on our Consolidated Balance Sheets at cost The

following table summarizes our borrowing facilities the facility amounts and the amounts outstanding

MCG Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1

Series 2006-i class A-i Notes

Series 2006-1 ClassA-2 Notes

Series 2006-i Class A-3 Notes

Series 2006-1 Class Notes

Series 2006-1 Class Notes

Series 2006-i Class Notes

Bank of America Unsecured Revolver

Unsecured Revolving Note

Commercial Loan Funding Trust

Variable Funding Note

Private Placement Notes

Series 2007-A

Total borrowings

Total

Facility/

Maturity Date Program

April 2018a

April
2018

April
2018

April 201 8a

April 2018a

April 201 8a

November 2014

January 2Oi4

October 20i2

37151

45000

45945

20000

Total

Facility/

Program

63389

2983

50711

58750

45000

46494

Amount

Outstanding

63389

2983

50711

58750

32000

29247

dollars in thousands

SB/C

2008-i OB

2009-i OA

2009-i OB

20i0-iOB

201i-1OA

2012-bA

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Amount

Outstanding

September 2018

March 2019

September 2019

September 2020

March 202i

March 2022

2600

12000

13000

27500

53500

41400

2600

i2000

13000

27500

53500

41400

2600

12000

13000

27500

53500

20000

2600

12000

13000

27500

53500

41400

37151

32000

28902

150000 55822

8717 8717

298096 248053 576044 430219

Borrowings under the MCG Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1 facility are listed based on the contractual maturity date The reinvestment

period for this facility ended on July 20 2011 and we will use all future principal collections from collateral in the facility to repay the securitized

debt

Amount outstanding excludes $5.0 million of notes that we repurchased in December 2008 for $1.6 million and $8.0 million of notes that we

repurchased in April 2010 for $4.4 million As part of the consolidation process we eliminated the notes that MCG the parent company
purchased

Amount outstanding excludes $10.1 million of notes that we repurchased in December 2008 for $2.4 million and $7.5 million of notes that

we repurchased in January 2009 for $2.i million As part of the consolidation process we eliminated the notes that MCG the parent

company purchased

dOn May 15 2012 this facility was repaid in full and terminated
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As of December 31 2012 our asset coverage ratio was 478% This ratio does not include our SBIC debt which the

SEC has permitted us to exclude from the asset coverage ratio requirements pursuant to an exemptive order

Our access to current and future liquidity from our borrowing facilities depends on several factors including but not

limited to the credit quality of our investment portfolio including those investments used to collateralize borrowing

facilities the magnitude of our investments in individual companies and the industries in which they operate our

compliance with specific covenants in each borrowing agreement and the specific provisions of our borrowing facilities

As our borrowing facilities mature it is important that we have sufficient liquidity available to repay our borrowing

obligations We may obtain the liquidity for repayment of our borrowing facilities from number of sources including

cash on-hand the maturity or monetization of our investment portfolio other borrowing facilities and equity issuances

and from other borrowing arrangements

We have funded our current secured borrowing debt facility through bankruptcy remote special-purpose wholly

owned subsidiary Therefore this subsidiarys assets may not be available to our creditors We continue to service

those portfolio investments that we use as collateral in our secured borrowing facility

SB/C DEBENTURES

In December 2004 we formed wholly owned subsidiary Solutions Capital Solutions Capital has license from the

SBA to operate as an SBIC under the SBIC Act The license permits Solutions Capital to borrow up to $150.0 million

from the SBA which is the maximum amount of outstanding leverage available to single-license SBIC companies

In March2011 we formed anotherwholly owned subsidiary Solutions Capital II In September 2012 we submitted

documentation to the SBA in support of potential SBIC license for Solutions Capital II L.P In February 2013 we
received letter from the SBA inviting us to file formal license application which we are in the process of preparing

for submission There is no assurance that the SBA will grant the additional license in any specified time period or at

all Currently second SBIC license would grant us the ability to borrow up to an additional $75 million from the SBA
or two times the amount of statutory equity capital we invest in Solutions Capital II L.P If approved and depending

on available capital we intend to fund the entire $37.5 million using unrestricted cash

To realize the full $150.0 million borrowing for which we have received approval under the SBIC program we have

funded total of $75.0 million to Solutions Capital As of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 Solutions

Capital had borrowed $150.0 million and $128.6 million respectively We are permitted to use these funds to provide

debt and equity capital to qualifying small businesses However we may not use these borrowings to provide additional

financing to certain companies that are currently in our portfolio without SBA approval In addition we may not use

these funds for MCGs the parent companys working capital

SBICs are subject to regulation and oversight by the SBA including requirements to maintain certain minimum financial

ratios and other covenants Receipt of an SBIC license does not assure that an SBIC will receive SBA-guaranteed

debenture funding which is dependent upon continued compliance with SBA regulations and policies The SBA as

creditor will have superior claim to Solutions Capitals assets over our stockholders in the event we liquidate Solutions

Capital or the SBA exercises its remedies under the SBA-guaranteed debentures issued by Solutions Capital upon

an event of default

The following table sets forth the maturity of Solutions Capital debentures as well as the maturity of the investments

and the current balance of restricted cash in Solutions Capital as of December 31 2012

in thousands

Borrowings

Collateral

Fair value of debt investments-

Fair value of equity investmerits

Cash restricted account

Total collateral

Maturities

Less than After

Total year 1-3 years 4-5 years years

150000 150000

183198 4424 14391 129280 35103

4680 4680

48260 48260

236138 52684 14391 129280 39783

Equity investments do not have stated maturity date
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MCG COMMERCIAL LOAN TRUST 2006-1

As of December 31 2012 we had $98.1 million of securitized debt outstanding under the 2006-1 Trust which matures

in April 2018 We retain all of the equity in the securitization The pool of commercial loans in the trust must meet
certain requirements including asset mix and concentration collateral coverage term agency rating minimum coupon
minimum spread and sector diversity requirements The securitization included five-year reinvestment period which

has now ended during which the trust was permitted to use principal collections received on the underlying collateral

to purchase new collateral from us

The following table sets forth the maturity of this facility as well as the maturity of the securitized assets and the current

balance of securitized cash in this borrowing facility

in thousands

Borrowings

Collateral

Fair value of debt investments

Fair value of equity investments

Cash securitization account

Total collateral

Maturities

Less than After

Total year 1-3 years 4-5 years years

98053 15038 83015

166538 18667 46756 101115

452 452

16980 16980

183970 35647 46756 101115 452

Borrowings under the MCG Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1
facility are listed based on the contractual maturity date The reinvestment

period for this facility ended on July 20 2011 and all subsequent principal collections from collateral in the
facility

have been and will be

used to repay the securitized debt

Equity investments do not have stated maturity date

We were able to use the cash in the securitized account as well as proceeds from principal collections of securitized

investments to originate new loans until July 20 2011 The reinvestment period ended on July 20 2011 and all

subsequent principal collections or monetization proceeds that we receive from collateral used to securitize this 2006-1

Trust must be applied to the outstanding balance of that facility Upon maturity of this facility any remaining balance

must be repaid otherwise all or part of the associated collateral may be forfeited As shown in the above table

repayments of principal of the collateral held by this facility are expected to permit the repayment of 2006-1 Trust prior

to its April 2018 maturity

BANK OF AMERICA UNSECURED REVOLVER

In November 2012 we entered into an unsecured revolving credit facility with Bank of America N.A in the principal

amount of $20.0 million or Bank of America Unsecured Revolver Advances under the Bank of America Unsecured

Revolver will bear interest at LIBOR plus 3.5% per annum and will expire in November 2014 We paid closing fee

in the amount of $0.2 million as well as other transaction costs of $0.2 million which we capitalized and amortize on

straight-line basis into interest expense on our Consolidated Statements of Operations over the two-year term of the

facility As of December 31 2012 there were no borrowings outstanding on the Bank of America Unsecured Revolver

The Bank ofAmerica Unsecured Revolver is subject to certain collateral requirements and financial covenants Included

among them are requirements that we maintain ratio of all unencumbered assets to outstanding amounts under the

Bank of America Unsecured Revolver of at least four-to-one as well as ratio of unencumbered cash and senior

portfolio loans to outstanding amounts under the Bank of America Unsecured Revolver of at least three-to-one The

Bank of America Unsecured Revolver may be prepaid at any time and is required to be paid in full for period of at

least five consecutive calendar days during each quarter

COMMERCIAL LOAN FUNDING TRUST

Through the MCG Commercial Loan Funding Trust we had warehouse financing facility funded through SunTrust

Bank On May 152012 we repaid in full the remaining $34.5 million balance and terminated the facility and recognized

$0.8 millionof unamortized deferred financing fees in interest expense The SunTrust Warehouse was secured primarily

by MCG Commercial Loan Funding Trusts assets including commercial loans that we sold to the trust
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PRIVATE PLACEMENT NOTES

In October 2007 we issued $25.0 million of Series 2007-A unsecured notes with five-year maturity Initially the

Series 2007-A notes bore interest at 6.71% per annum which rate was increased in 2009 to 8.96% per annum In

January 2012 we repaid the Series 2007-A notes in full

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE BORROWINGS AND COST OF FUNDS

The following table shows ourweighted-average borrowings the weighted-average interest rate on all of our borrowings

including amortization of deferred debt issuance costs and commitment fees the average LIBOR and the average

spread to LIBOR for 2012 and 2011

dollars in thousands

Weighted-average borrowings

Average LIBOR

Average spread to LIBOR excluding amortization of deferred debt

issuance costs

Impact of amortization of deferred debt issuance costs

Total cost of funds

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

FINANCIAL INS TRUMENTS

Year ended

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

324128 501116

0.43% 0.34%

2.46 2.15

1.70 0.59

459/ 3.08%

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCESCOMMON STOCK

We are closed-end investment company that has elected to be regulated as BDC under the 1940 Act The 1940

Act prohibits us from selling shares of our common stock at price below the current net asset value of such stock

except in limited circumstances including approval by our stockholders of such sale and certain determinations by

our board of directors

On January 17 2012 our board of directors authorized stock repurchase program of up to $35.0 million Under the

program we are authorized to repurchase shares in open market transactions including through block purchases

depending on prevailing market conditions and other factors The repurchase program may be extended modified or

discontinued at any time for any reason The program does not obligate us to acquire any specific number of shares

and all repurchases will be made in accordance with SEC Rule lOb-18 which sets certain restrictions on the method

timing price and volume of stock repurchases During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 we repurchased

6182046 shares of our common stock at weighted average purchase price of $4.40 per share which was 18.7%

discount from our quarterly net asset value per share

We are party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financial

needs of our customers These instruments include commitments to extend credit and involve to varying degrees
elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet We attempt to limit our credit risk by

conducting extensive due diligence and obtaining collateral where appropriate

Commitments to extend credit include the unused portions of commitments that obligate us to extend credit in the form

of loans participations in loans guarantees letters of credit and other financial commitments Commitments to extend

credit would also include loan proceeds we are obligated to advance such as loan draws rotating or revolving credit

arrangements or similar transactions Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses

and may require payment of fee by the counterparty Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without

being drawn upon the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements

We do not report the unused portions of these commitments on our Consolidated Balance Sheets As of December 31

2012 we had $23.0 million of outstanding unused loan commitments as shown in the table below We believe that

our operations monetizations revolving credit facility and unrestricted cash will provide sufficient liquidity to fund as

necessary requests to draw on these unfunded commitments We estimate that the fair value of these commitments

was $0.1 million based on the fees that we currently charge to enter into similar arrangements taking into account the
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creditworthiness of the counterparties From time to time we provide guarantees or standby letters of credit on behalf

of our portfolio companies As of December 31 2012 we had no outstanding guarantees or standby letters of credit

CONTRA CTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table shows our contractual obligations as of December 31 2012

in thousands
Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Less than After

Total year 1-3 years 4-5 years years

Borrowings

Term securitizations 98053 15038 83015

SBIC

Total borrowings

Interest payments on borrowings

Operating leases

Severance obligations

Total contractual obligations

DISTRIBUTIONS

150000 150000

248053 15038 233015

62229 8026 16052 16052 22099

1109 748 361

2812 2437 375

314203 26249 16788 16052 255114

Excludes the unused commitments to extend credit to our customers of $23.0 million as discussed above

Borrowings under the MCG Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1 facility are listed based on the contractual maturity date The reinvestment period

for this facility ended on July 20 2011 and all subsequent principal collections from collateral in the facility have been and will be used to

repay the securitized debt

Interest payments are based on contractual maturity and the current outstanding principal balance of our borrowings and assume no changes

in interest rate benchmarks

Operating lease obligations include $0.3 million recorded in other liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2012

related to the remaining payments due terminated lease for our old headquarters office

Represents remaining severance payments benefits deferred compensation and employer taxes that we are obligated to pay to employees

who were terminated as result of the corporate restructuring effected in August 2011 and for obligations stemming from the resignations of

our former chief executive officer and former chief financial officer

We currently qualify as RIC for federal income tax purposes which generally allows us to avoid paying corporate

income taxes on any income or gains that we distribute to our stockholders Generally we intend to distribute sufficient

dividends to eliminate taxable income and may distribute more than the taxable income which amount would be

considered return of capital As RIC we are subject to 4% excise tax to the extent that we do not distribute on

an actual or deemed basis 98.0% of our current year ordinary income and ii 98.2% of our current year net capital

gain income

We may not be able to achieve operating results that will allow us to make distributions at specific level or to increase

the amount of these distributions In addition we may be limited in our ability to make distributions due to the DC
asset coverage test for borrowings applicable to us as BDC under the 1940 Act and due to restrictions in our credit

facilities and SBA regulations If we do not distribute certain percentage of our income annually we will suffer adverse

tax consequences including possible loss of favorable RIC tax treatment We cannot assure stockholders that they

will receive any distributions or distributions at particular level We may make distributions to our stockholders of

certain net capital gains Since December 2001 we have declared distributions of $13.39 per share
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The following table summarizes the distributions that we declared since January 2011

Dividends
Date Declared Record Date Payable Date per Share

March 2013 March 15 2013 March 29 2013 0.125

October26 2012 November 16 2012 November30 2012 0.125

Ju1y272012 Augustl72012 August3l2012 0.140

April 27 2012 June 13 2012 July 13 2012 0.140

February242012 Aprill32012 Mayl52012 0.170

October31 2011 December15 2011 January 13 2012 0.170

August 2011 September 14 2011 October 14 2011 0.170

May52011 JunelS2011 Julyl52011 0.170

March 2011 March 15 2011 April 15 2011 0.150

As of the end of each fiscal year we determine the tax attributes of our distributions including return of capital based

upon our taxable income and distributions paid for the full year which we report to each stockholder on Form 1099

Based on the tax attributes of the distributions that we declared for 2012 100% were return of capital We will make

future decisions with respect to the actual level of distributions after taking into account the minimum statutorily required

level of distributions gains and losses recognized for tax purposes portfolio transactional events our liquidity cash

earnings and our BDC asset coverage ratio at the time of such decision

Each year we mail statements on Form 1099-DIV to our stockholders that identify whether we made distributions from

ordinary income net capital gains on the sale of securities which are each taxable distributions and/or return of

paid-in-capital surplus which is nontaxable distribution To the extent our taxable earnings fall below the total amount

of our distributions for that fiscal year portion of those distributions may be deemed return of capital to our

stockholders for tax purposes All or portion of the distributions that we paid to stockholders during fiscal years 2012

2011 2008 2006 2005 2004 and 2003 represented return of capital During the fiscal year 2009 we did not declare

or pay any dividends to stockholders During 2012 2011 and 2010 we declared and paid distributions from ordinary

income that were sufficient to meet our distribution requirements as RIO We will monitor 2013 taxable income in

order to ensure compliance with the distribution requirements as RIO We determine the tax attributes of our

distributions as of the end of our fiscal year based upon our taxable income for the full year and distributions paid

during the full year Therefore determination of tax attributes made on quarterly basis may not be representative

of the actual tax attributes of distributions for full year

On December 22 2010 the Regulated Investment Company Modernization Act of 2010 or the Modernization Act
was enacted which changed various technical rules governing the tax treatment of regulated investment companies
The changes are generally effective for taxable years beginning after the date of enactment One of the more prominent

changes addresses capital loss carryforwards Under the Modernization Act each RIO will be permitted to carry

forward capital losses incurred in taxable years beginning after the date of enactment for an unlimited period However

any losses incurred during those subsequent taxable years will be required to be utilized prior to the losses incurred

in pre-enactment taxable years which carry an expiration date As result of this ordering rule pre-enactment capital

loss carryforwards may be more likely to expire unused Additionally post-enactment capital loss carryforwards will

retain their character as either short-term or long-term capital losses rather than being considered all short-term as

permitted under previous regulation For the tax years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we had net capital

losses of $70.5 million $26.1 million and $5.2 million respectively which we will carry forward to offset future net

capital gains to the extent permitted by federal tax law The net capital loss carry forward from 2010 will expire in the

tax year ending December 31 2018

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements are based on the selection and application of significant accounting policies

which require management to make significant estimates and assumptions The following are some of the more critical

judgment areas that currently affect our financial condition and results of operations
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INCOME RECOGNITION

We follow the policies described below to recognize income on our Consolidated Statement of Operations

Interest IncomeWe accrue interest income if we expect that ultimately we will be able to collect it Generally

when loan becomes more than 90 days past due or if we otherwise believe the customer is unable to service

its debt and other obligations we will as general matter place all or portion of the loan on non-accrual

status and will cease recognizing interest income on that loan until all principal and interest is has been brought

current through payment or restructuring such that the interest income is deemed to be collectible However

we remain contractually entitled to this interest We may make exceptions to this policy if the loan has sufficient

collateral value and is in the process of collection We generally accrue P1K interest when collection is expected

and cease accruing P1K if there is insufficient value to support the accrual or we expect the customer is unable

to pay all principal and interest due

Dividend IncomeWe accrue dividend income on equity investments with stated income generally preferred

equity if we expect to collect the dividends We record dividend income on common equity investments and

gains from realized distributions when the dividend has been declared and is required to be paid

Loan Origination FeesWe capitalize loan origination fees then amortize these fees into interest income over

the term of the loan using the effective interest rate method or on straight-line basis when the loan has

revolving credit feature In certain loan arrangements we receive warrants or other equity interests from the

borrower as additional origination fees Typically borrowers granting these interests are not traded publicly

We record the financial instruments received at fair value as determined in good faith by our board of directors

In certain cases when we record warrant or other equity instrument that results in loan discount we accrete

the discount into income over the term of the loan

Advisory Fees and Other IncomeWe charge our portfolio companies fees for services that we provide

including advisory and management services prepayments research structuring and other fees We

generally recognize these fees when earned We recognize prepayment fees upon receipt Finally certain

of the bank accounts in which we maintain cash balances pay interest which we recognize when the interest

is earned

VALUATION OF INVESTMENTS

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

We account for our investments at fair value in accordance with Accounting Standard Codification Topic 820Fair

Value Measurements and Disclosures orASC 820 ASC 820 defines fair value establishes framework for measuring

fair value and expands disclosures about assets and liabilities measured at fair value ASC 820 defines fair value

as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date This fair value definition focuses on exit price in the principal or most

advantageous market and prioritizes within measurement of fair value the use of market-based inputs over entity-

specific inputs

ASC 820 establishes the following three-level hierarchy based upon the transparency of inputs to the fair value

measurement of an asset or liability as of the measurement date

ASC 820

Fair Value

Hierarchy Inputs to Fair Value Methodology

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities quoted markets that are not active or other inputs that are

observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the financial

instrument inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability or inputs that are

derived principally from or corroborated by observable market information

Level Pricing models discounted cash flow methodologies or similar techniques and at least one significant model

assumption is unobservable or when the estimation of fair value requires significant management judgment

We categorize financial instrument in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level of input that is significant to

its fair value measurement In the event that transfers between these levels were to occur in the future we would
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recognize those transfers as of the ending balance sheet date based on changes in the use of observable and

unobservable inputs utilized to perform the valuation for the period

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE IN GOOD FAITH

As BDC we invest primarily in illiquid securities including debt and equity securities of private companies To protect

our investments and maximize our returns we negotiate the structure of each equity security and the majority of the

debt securities in our investment portfolio Our contracts with our portfolio companies generally include many terms

governing interest rate repayment terms prepayment premiums financial covenants operating covenants ownership

and corporate governance parameters dilution parameters liquidation preferences voting rights and put or call rights

In some cases our loan agreements also allow for increases in the spread to the base index rate if the portfolio

companys financial or operational performance deteriorates or shows negative variances from its business plan and
in some cases allow for decreases in the spread if financial or operational performance improves or exceeds the

portfolio companys plan Generally our investments are subject to some restrictions on resale and have no established

trading market Because of the type of investments that we make and the nature of our business our valuation

processes require analyses of numerous market industry and company-specific factors including the performance

of the underlying investment the financial condition of the portfolio company changing market events market prices

when available estimates of market interest rates that would otherwise be made available to our portfolio companies

and other factors relevant to the individual security

There is no single approach for determining fair value in good faith Unlike banks we are not permitted to provide

general reserve for anticipated loan losses As result for portfolio investments that do not have an active market

we must apply judgment to the specific facts and circumstances associated with each security to determine fair value

Generally we value securities that are traded in the over-the-counter market or on stock exchange at the average

of the prevailing bid and ask prices on the date of the relevant period end When such market prices are not available

we use several valuation methodologies to estimate the fair value of our investment portfolio which generally results

in range of fair values from which we derive single estimate of fair value To determine portfolio companys fair

value we analyze its historical and projected financial results as well as key market value factors In determining

securitys fair value we assume we would exchange it in an orderly transaction at the measurement date We use

the following methods to determine the fair value of investments in our portfolio that are not traded actively

Majority-Owned Control InvestmentsMajority-owned control investments comprise 10.5% of our investment

portfolio at fair value Market quotations are not readily available for these investments therefore we use

combination of market and income approaches to determine their fair value Typically private companies are

bought and sold based on multiples of earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization or EBITDA
cash flows net income revenues or in limited cases book value Generally we apply multiples that we observe

for other comparable companies to relevant financial data for the portfolio company in question Also in limited

number of cases we use income approaches to determine the fair value of these securities based on our projections

of the discounted future free cash flows that the portfolio company will likely generate as well as industry derived

capital costs Our valuation approaches for majority-owned investments estimate the value upon hypothetical

sale or exit and then allocates such value to the investments securities in order of their relative liquidation

preference In addition the we assume that any outstanding debt or other securities that are senior to our securities

are required to be repaid at par These valuation approaches also consider the value of our ability to control the

portfolio companys capital structure and the timing of potential exit

Non-Control InvestmentsNon-control investments comprise 89.5% of our investment portfolio at fair value

Quoted prices are not available for 85.9% of our non-control investments at fair value For our non-control equity

investments we use the same market and income approaches used to value our control investments For non-

control debt investments for which no quoted prices are available we estimate fair value using market-yield

approach based on the expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rates based on our

estimate of current market rates We may adjust discounted cash flow calculations to reflect other market conditions

or the perceived credit risk of the borrower In the event the fair value of non-control debt investment as

determined by the same market or income approach used to value our control investments is below our cost we
estimate the fair value using the market or income approach

Thinly-Traded and Over-the-Counter SecuritiesGenerally we value securities that are traded in the over-the

counter market or on stock exchange at the average of the prevailing bid and ask prices on the date of the

relevant period end However we may apply discount to the market value of restricted or thinly-traded public

securities to reflect the impact that these restrictions have on the value of these securities We review factors
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including the trading volume total securities outstanding and our percentage ownership of securities to determine

whether the trading levels are active Level or inactive Level As of December 31 2012 these securities

represented 12.6% of our investment portfolio at fair value We utilize independent pricing services to arrive at

certain of our fair value estimates The majority of our level investments are senior debt investments that are

secured and collateralized To corroborate bid/ask quotes from independent pricing services we perform market-

yield approach to validate prices obtained or obtain other evidence

Our valuation analyses incorporate the impact that key events could have on the securities values including public

and private mergers and acquisitions purchase transactions public offerings letters of intent and subsequent debt

or equity sales Our valuation analyses also include key external data such as market changes and industry valuation

benchmarks We also engage independent valuation firms to provide additional data points for our quarterly valuation

analyses Our general practice is to obtain an independent valuation or review of valuation at least once per year for

each portfolio investment that had fair value in excess of $5.0 million unless the fair value has otherwise been

derived through sale of some or all of our investment in the portfolio company or is new investment made within

the last twelve months In total as of December 31 2012 we either obtained valuation or review from an independent

firm considered new investments made or used market quotes in the preceding twelve month period to calculate

99.0% of the fair value of our investment portfolio

The majority of the valuations performed by the independent valuation firms utilize proprietary models and inputs We
have used and intend to continue to use independent valuation firms to provide additional support for our internal

analyses

Our board of directors sets our valuation policies and procedures and determines the fair value of our investments

The investment and valuation committee of our board of directors meets at least quarterly with our executive

management to review managements recommendations of fair value of our investments Our board of directors

considers our valuations as well as the independent valuations and reviews in its determination of the fair value of

our investments

Due to the uncertainty inherent in the valuation process such fair value estimates may differ significantly from the

values that would have been used had ready market for the securities existed and the differences could be material

In addition changes in the market environment and other events that may occur over the life of the investments may

cause the gains or losses that we ultimately realize on these investments to differ from the valuations currently assigned

Significant Unobservable Inputs

Our investment portfolio is not composed of homogeneous debt and equity securities that can be valued with small

number of inputs Instead the majority of our investment portfolio is composed of complex debt and equity securities

with distinct contract terms and conditions As such our valuation of each investment in our portfolio is unique and

complex often factoring in numerous different inputs including the historical and forecasted financial and operational

performance of the portfolio company projected cash flows market multiples comparable market transactions the

priority of our securities compared with those of other investors credit risk interest rates independent valuations and

reviews and other inputs too numerous to list quantitatively herein
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The following table summarizes the significant unobservable inputs in the fair value measurements of our level

investments by category of investment and valuation technique as of December 31 2012

in thousands unobservable Range Weighted

Fair Value Valuation Techniques Inputs Minimum Maximum Average

Senior debt 234561 Discounted cash flow Market interest rate 6.8% 12.8% 9.4%

Discounted cash flow Discount rate 4.1% 4.1% 4.1%

Market comprable companies EBITDA multipIe 7.5x 7.5x 7.5x

Pending transactions/Letters of intent Discount -%

Subordinated debt 141257 Discounted cash flow Market interest rate 11.2% 14.8% 13.0%

Market comparable companies EBITDA multiple11 5.Ox 7.5x 7.5x

Pending transactions/Letters of intent Discount

Preferred and common 41860 Market comparable companies EBITDA muItiple 4.4x 9.5x 7.5x

equity

Discount for minority
_O/ 25 6/

interest

Pending transactions/Letters of intent Discount

Residual assets Discount 25% 25.0% 25.0%

417678

EBITDA may include proforma adjustments and/or other addbacks based on specific circumstances related to each investment

SHARE-BA SED COMPENSATION

In accordance with ASC Topic 718CompensationStock Compensation orASC 718 we recognize compensation

cost related to share-based awards for which forfeiture provisions are expected to lapse over the requisite service

period

INCOME TAXES

We currently qualify as RIO for federal income tax purposes which generally allows us to avoid paying corporate

income taxes on any income or gains that we distribute to our stockholders Generally we intend to distribute sufficient

dividends to eliminate taxable income and may distribute more than the taxable income which amounts would be

considered return of capital We are subject to 4% excise tax to the extent that we do not distribute on an actual

or on deemed basis 98.0% of our current year ordinary income and ii 98.2% of our current year net capital gain

income

We have certain wholly owned taxable subsidiaries each of which holds one or more portfolio investments listed on

our Consolidated Schedule of Investments The purpose of these taxable subsidiaries is to permit us to hold portfolio

companies organized as LLCs or other forms of pass-through entities and still satisfy the RIO tax requirement that at

least 90% of our gross revenue for income tax purposes must consist of investment income Absent the taxable

subsidiaries portion of the gross income of any LLO or other pass-through entity portfolio investment would flow

through directly to us for the 90% test To the extent that such income did not consist of investment income it could

jeopardize our ability to qualify as RIC and therefore cause us to incur significant federal income taxes The income

of the LLOs or other pass-through entities owned by taxable subsidiaries is taxed to the taxable subsidiaries and does

not flow through to us thereby helping us preserve our RIO status and resultant tax advantages We do not consolidate

the taxable subsidiaries for income tax purposes and they may generate income tax expense because of the taxable

subsidiaries ownership of the portfolio companies We reflect any such income tax expense on our Consolidated

Statement of Operations

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUAUTATIvE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

There were number of indicators of modest growth in the United States economy during 2012 However certain

leading and lagging indicators suggest continuing risk In the event of renewed financial turmoil affecting the banking

system and financial markets the financial position and results of operations of certain of the middle-market companies
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in our portfolio could be affected adversely which ultimately could lead to difficulty in their meeting debt service

requirements and an increase in defaults

Interest rate sensitivity refers to the change in earnings that may result from changes in the level of interest rates Our

net interest income is affected by changes in various interest rates including LIBOR prime rates and commercial

paper rates As of December 31 2012 approximately 76.3% of our loan portfolio at fair value bore interest at

spread to either the LIBOR orthe prime rate and 23.7% at fixed interest rate As of December 31 2012 approximately

67.3% of our loan portfolio at fair value had LIBOR floors between 1.0% and 3.0% on LIBOR-based index or prime

floors between 1.75% and 6.0% The three-month weighted-average LIBOR interest rate was 0.32% as of

December 31 2012 Thus the LIBOR floors in these loan investments lessen the impact of such historically low

LIBOR rates

We regularly measure exposure to interest rate risk We assess interest rate risk and we manage our interest rate

exposure on an ongoing basis by comparing our interest rate-sensitive assets to our interest rate-sensitive liabilities

Based on this review we determine whether or not any hedging transactions are necessary to mitigate exposure to

changes in interest rates

The following table shows comparison of the interest rate base for our interest-bearing cash outstanding commercial

loans at cost and our outstanding borrowings as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011

Money market rate

Prime rate

LIBOR

30-day

60-day

90-day

180-day

Commercial paper

Fixed rate

Total

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Interest Bearing Cash Interest Bearing Cash
and and

Commercial Loans Borrowings Commercial Loans Borrowings

43291 51211

13603 27867

18635 71794

12500

294774 98053 462293 237080

9301 14038

55822

115091 150000 109640 137317

494695 248053 749343 430219

Based on our December 31 2012 balance sheet the following table shows the impact to net income of hypothetical

base rate increases in interest rates assuming no changes in our investment and borrowing structure The impact to

net income of hypothetical base rate decreases in interest rates is not shown in the following table because as of

December 31 2012 the quarterly average LIBOR was 0.32% and 100-basis point decrease could not occur

in thousands

dollars in thousands

Interest Interest Net Income

Basis Point Change Income Expense Loss

100 893 981 88
200 2933 1961 972

300 6147 2942 3205
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders

MCG Capital Corporation

We have audited MCG Capital Corporations internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based

on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations

of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria MCG Capital Corporations management is responsible for

maintainhig effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Annual Report on Internal Control over

Financial Reporting located in Item 9A Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the companys internal control

over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining

an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing

such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with

authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasotiable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate

In our opinion MCG Capital Corporation maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2012 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the consolidated balance sheets of MCG Capital Corporation the Company including the consolidated

schedules of investments as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations

changes in net assets and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2012 and the

consolidated financial highlights for each of the five years in the period ended December 31 2012 Our report dated

March 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Isi Ernst Young LLP

McLean Virginia

March 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders

MCG Capital Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of MCG Capital Corporation the Company including

the consolidated schedules of investments as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements

of operations changes in net assets and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31

2012 and the consolidated financial highlights for each of the five years in the period ended December 31 2012

These financial statements and financial highlights are the responsibility of the Companys management Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial highlights based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public CompanyAccounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the financial statements and financial highlights are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on

test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and financial highlights An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well

as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our procedures included confirmation of securities owned

as of December 31 2012 by correspondence with the custodian or by other appropriate auditing procedures We
believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements and financial highlights referred to above present fairly in all material respects

the consolidated financial position of MCG Capital Corporation at December 31 2012 and 2011 the consolidated

results of its operations changes in its net assets and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2012 and the consolidated financial highlights for each of the five years in the period ended December 31

2012 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States MCG Capital Corporations internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on criteria

established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission and our report dated March 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

McLean Virginia

March 2013
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MCG Capital Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheets

in thousands except per share amounts
December 31 December31

2012 2011

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 73588 58563

Cash securitization accounts 16980 40306

Cash restricted 54838 34964

Investments at fair value

Non-affiliate investments cost of $534389 and $552642 respectively

Affiliate investments cost of $69500 and $58425 respectively

Control investments cost of $64898 and $406151 respectively
________ ________

Total investments cost of $668787 and $1017218 respectively

Interest receivable

Other assets

Liabilities

Borrowings maturing within one year of $15038 and $32983 respectively

Interest payable

Dividends payable

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Stockholders equity

Preferred stock par value $0.01 authorized share none issued and outstanding

Common stock par value $001 authorized 200000 shares on December 31 2012

and 2011 71721 issued and outstanding on December 31 2012 and 76997 issued

and outstanding on December 31 2011

Paid-in capital

Distributions in excess of earnings

Net unrealized depreciation on investments

Total stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

Net asset value per common share at end of period

Total assets

365639

62079

50006

477724

2700

4946

630776

552301

69602

119263

741166

4049

11490

890538

248053 430219

2496 2710

13092

8499 9565

259048 455586

717 770

984468 1009748

422395 299222

191062 276344

371728 434952

630776 890538

5.18 5.65

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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38328

1598

80010

730

39354

129873

863

37

93115

1.22

0.66

76259

10296

4036

61130

717

66673

54819

2983

1801

13072

0.17

0.37

75422

Year ended

December 31

2012 2011 2010

45004 64116 61396

6761 7024 4859

5934 11068 20274

57699 82208 86529

1858 2458 1982

320

1436 1030 738

3294 3488 3040

60993 85696 89569

15103 15634 16891

10956 11998 16275

2076 2081 4342

13032 14079 20617

13983 14036 11495

69 4289

42187 48038 49004

18806 37658 40565

8907 46887 17529

16370 703 36

123858 42929 5711

98581 90519 11854

MCG Capital Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Operations

in thousands except per share amounts

Revenue

Interest and dividend income

Non-affiliate investments less than 5% owned

Affiliate investments 5% to 25% owned

Control investments more than 25% owned

Total interest and dividend income

Advisory fees and other income

Non-affiliate investments less than 5% owned

Affiliate investments 5% to 25% owned

Control investments more than 25% owned

Total advisory fees and other income

Total revenue

Operating expense

Interest expense

Employee compensation

Salaries and benefits

Amortization of employee restricted stock awards

Total employee compensation

General and administrative expense

Restructuring expense

Total operating expense

Net operating income before net investment gain loss loss on

extinguishment of debt and income tax provision

Net realized loss gain on investments

Non-affiliate investments less than 5% owned

Affiliate investments 5% to 25% owned

Control investments more than 25% owned

Total net realized gain loss on investments

Net unrealized appreciation depreciation on investments

Non-affiliate investments less than 5% owned

Affiliate investments 5% to 25% owned

Control investments more than 25% owned

Derivative and other fair value adjustments

Total net unrealized appreciation depreciation on investments

Net investment loss before income tax provision

Loss gain on extinguishment of debt before income tax provision

Income tax provision

Net income loss

Income loss per basic and diluted common share

Cash distributions declared per common share

Weighted-average common shares outstandingbasic and diluted

168409

18598

271996

293

85282

13299

174
335

4998

0.07$

0.58$

74859

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MCG Capital Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

in thousands except per share amounts

Increase decrease in net assets from operations

Net operating income before net investment gain loss loss on extinguishment
of debt and income tax provision

Net realized loss gain on investments

Net unrealized appreciation depreciation on investments

Loss gain on extinguishment of debt before income tax provision

Income tax provision

Net income loss

Distributions to stockholders

Distributions declared

Net decrease in net assets resulting from stockholder distributions

Capital share transactions

Repurchase of common stock

Amortization of restricted stock awards

Employee awards accounted for as employee compensation

Employee awards accounted for as restructuring expense

Non-employee director awards accounted for as general and administrative

expense

Common stock withheld to pay taxes applicable to the vesting of restricted stock

Net forfeitures of restricted common stock

Net decrease increase in net assets resulting from capital share

transactions

Total decrease in net assets

Net assets

Beginning of period

End of period

Net asset value per common share at end of period

Common shares outstanding at end of period 71721

Years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

18806 37658 40565

98581 90519 11854

85282 39354 66673

174 863 2983

335 37 1801

4998 93115 13072

42889 50877 28336

42889 50877 28336

27172

2076 2081 4342

432

120 64 76

357 1638 661

11 16

25333 928 3741

63224 143064 37667

434952 578016 615683

371728 434952 578016

5.18 5.65 7.54

76997 76662

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MCG Capital Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

in thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by

used in operating activities

Investments in portfolio companies

Principal collections related to investment repayments or sales

Decrease increase in interest receivable accrued payment-in-kind

interest and dividends

Amortization of restricted stock awards

Employee

Non-employee director

Decrease in cashsecuritization accounts from interest collections

Increase in restricted cashescrow accounts

Depreciation and amortization

Decrease in other assets

Increase decrease in other liabilities

Realized loss gain on investments

Net change in unrealized depreciation appreciation on investments

Loss gain on extinguishment of debt

Net cash provided by used in operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repurchase of common stock

Payments on borrowings

Proceeds from borrowings

Decrease increase in cash in restricted and securitization accounts

Securitization accounts for repayment of principal on debt

Restricted cash

Payment of financing costs

Distributions paid

Common stock withheld to pay taxes applicable to the vesting of restricted stock

Net forfeitures of restricted common stock

Net cash used in provided by financing activities

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning balance

Ending balance

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Paid-in-kind interest collected

Dividend income collected

Year ended

December 31

2012 2011 2010

4998 93115 13072

153005 255852 294904

394725 375138 216879

9842 20052 395

2076 2513 4342

120 64 76

4415 2961 2552

485 1799
6532 4125 3954

958 207 166

894 3246 7223

98581 90519 11854

85282 39354 66673

174 863 2983

282755 188276 35789

27172

203740 142526 88983

21400 25000 81000

18911 1022 64344

19389 3782 8151

1402 2184 3353

55981 48520 17608

357 1638 661

11 16

267730 174683 26572

15025 13593 9217

58563 44970 54187

73588 58563 44970

9727 12206 14666

277 349 3247

8996 21600 18819

8474 13500 3970

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MCG Capital Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments

December 31 2012

dollars in thousands

Interest Rate191

___________________
Industry

Broadcasting Senior Debt Due 12/16

Subordinated Debt Due 12/16

Class Voting Units 8.0% 86700 units161

Plastic Senior Debt Due 3/1 5h17
Products

RadioPharmac Healthcare Senior Debt Due 12/16h1

Investors LLC1
Subordinated Debt Due 12/1611

Preferred LLC Interest 19.7% 70000 units

Total control investments represents 10.5% of total investments at fair value

Affiliate lnvestment3

Fair

Current P1K Total Principal Cost Value

4.3% $17570 $15150 $15736

2.5% 11303 6976

7640 7640 7640

10521 10518 10518

11646 16112

64898 50006

Portfolio Company

Control Investments141

GMC Television

Broadcasting LLC12

Jet Plastica

Investors LLC2X

Investment

4.3%

2.5%

9071

2.3% 7.0% 9.3% 4963 3897

7.5% 7.5%

12.0% 3.0% 15.0%

Advanced
Sleep

Concepts Inc.1

C7 Data Centers

Inc

Contract Datascan

Holdings Inc

IDOC LLC

Miles Media Group
LLC1221

7539

5385

344

7199

10

Home Senior Debt Due 1/1411

Furnishings Subordinated Debt Due 1/141117113

Series Preferred Stock 20.0% 49 shares6X13

Series Preferred Stock 1000 shares6X13

Common Stock 423 shares1631

Warrants to purchase Common Stock

expire 10/1 5613

Business Senior Debt Due 9/1711

Services Series Preferred Units 10.0% 7142857 units

Business Subordinated Debt Due 3/16111

Services SeriesA Preferred Stock 10.0% 2313 shareshlX6

Series Preferred Stock 10.0% 358 shareshlX6

Common Stock 8519 shares61

Healthcare Senior Debt Due 8/1711

Limited Partner Interests 8.0%2
Business Senior Debt Due 6/1611

Services Warrants to purchase Class Units expire 3/21h1X6

524

348

12.9% 12.9% 7559

12.0% 4.0% 16.0% 5873

9.5% 9.5% 10000

12.0% 2.0% 14.0% 8575

9.8% 9.8% 15000

12.5% 12.5% 16738

9659

2053

8059

2387

307

9659

2421

7870

2203

341

Total affiliate investments represents 13.0% of total investments at fair value

538

14707 14707

1032 1073

16495 16495

123 101

69500 62079

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MCG Capital Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments

December 31 2012

dollars in thousands

Business

Services

Publishing

Communications

Capyne Logistics Logistics

LLC1

Chase Industries Manufacturing

Inc

Color Star Growers

of Colorado Inc

Construction Trailer

Specialists lnc.21

Cruz Bay Publishing

Inc

CWP/RMK
Acquisition Corp.12

Education

Management Inc

Gans Cable

Communications

GL Investment Insurance

Holdings LLC121

Series A-i Warrant purchase Common
Stock expire i1/20

Series A-2 Warrant purchase Common
Stock expire 11/20

Senior Debt Due 9/i6

Subordinated Unsecured Debt Due 5/i8

Subordinated Debt Due 11/1611

Senior Debt Due 6/13

Subordinated Debt Due 3/151X8

Senior Debt Due i2/16

Senior Debt Due 6/15

Senior Debt Due 10/i7

Subordinated Debt Due 5114hl

Series Preferred
hares 14.0%

5000000 shares6

Class Shares 621907 shares6

Income Notes Due 4/19

Senior Debt Due 12/17

Subordinated Debt Due 6/18

Senior Debt Due 12/1611

Preferred Units 10.0% 1250000 units

ClassACommon Units 1250000 units6

Senior Debt Due 10/17 95%

Portfolio Company Industry

Non-Affiliate Investments less than 5% owned
Accurate Grou.p

Holdings Inc

BarBri Inc

Broadview Networks

Holdings Inc

Investment

Interest Rate191

Current P1K Total Principal Cost

Fair

Value

Agriculture

Auto Parts

Publishing

Home

Furnishings

Education

Subordinated Unsecured Debt Due 6/18 12.5% 12.5% 10000 9802 9802

Series Preferred Stock 974805 shares6 2000 2000

SeniorDebtDue6/17 6.0% 6.0% 6099 6046 6110

Common Stock 132779 shares6 159579 1087

10.5% 10.5% 27347 27237 27237

11.5% 11.5% 16800 16472 16472

12.0% 3.0% 15.0% 13553 13292 13292

8.6 6.3% 14.9% 6445 6434 6434

5.0% 7.3% 12.3% 20000 19942 19942

6.8% 6.8% 600 519 597

9.3% 9.3% 26654 26459 25260

5.0% 5.0% 5015 4996 5061

10.7% 4.3% 15.0% 18667 18462 18462

8191 8067

529

Golden Knight II
Diversified 2989 2847

CLO Ltd Financial

Services

Hammonds Candies Manufacturing 8.5% 8.5% 3500 3427 3427
Since 1920 II LLC

10.0% 4.0% 14.0% 9008 8829 8829

Jenzabar Inc.10 Technology Subordinated Preferred Stock 109800 1098 988

shares

Legacy Cabinets
Home Class B-i Common Stock 2000 shares16 2185

Holdings II Inc Furnishings

Mailsouth Inc Publishing 6.8% 6.8 4640 4590 4594

Maverick Healthcare Healthcare 1925 2078
Equity LLC

444

Midwest Technical Education 9.5% 17063 16682 16682
Institute Inc

NDSSI Holdings
Electronics Senior Debt Due 12/1211 12.8% 1.0% 13.8% 30175 30174 30174

LLC214 Serie Preferred Units 30.0% 2000000 2000 000
units6

Series Preferred Units 516691 units161 718

Series
Convertible

Preferred Units 142 187

165003 units1

Class Common Units 1000000 units6 333

OceansAcquisition Healthcare Senior Debt Due 12/1711 10.8% 10.8% 23710 23237 23237
Inc

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MCG Capital Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments

December 31 2012

dollars in thousands

Interest Rate9

Current P1K Total Principal Cost

Fair

ValuePortfolio Company Industry Investment

Orbitz Worldwide Personal Senior Debt Due 7/1411 3.2% 3.2% 2806 2728 2702
Inc Transportation

Ritas Water Ice Restaurants Senior Debt Due 11/16h1 14.0% 14.0% 9375 9301 9301
Franchise

Company LLC

Sagamore Hill Broadcasting Senior Debt Due 8/14ll 10.5% 10.5% 970Q 9636 9636
Broadcasting LLC2

SC Academy Education Subordinated Debt Due 7/16 12.0% 12.0% 18000 17841 17841

Holdings Inc

Softlayer Business Senior Debt Due 11/16 7.3% 7.3% 13720 13606 13814
Technologies Inc Services

South Bay Mental Healthcare Subordinated Debt Due 10/17 12.0% 2.5% 14.5% 18333 17984 18219
Health Center Inc

Summit Business information Class Series Units 636 units116 4120 439

Pn any

Services
Class Series II Units 276 unitst6 1788 13

LLC

Sunshine
Media Publishing Warrants to purchase Common Stock

Group Inc.1
expire 1/21 615

The e-Media Club Investment LLC Interest 74 units16 88 11

LLC Fund

The Gavilon Group Agriculture Senior Debt Due 12/161 6.0% 6.0% 8500 8409 8489
LLC

Virtual Radiologic Healthcare Senior Debt Due 12/16 7.8% 7.8% 13740 13591 12091

Corporation

Visant Corporation Consumer Senior Debt Due 12/16 5.3% 5.3% 4760 4772 4338
Products

VSA-PBI Holding Publishing LLC lnterest6t16 500
LLC

West World Media Information Senior Debt Due 9/15 11.0% 3.0% 14.0% 11462 10911 11140
LLC Services

Class Membership Units 25000 units
16 335

Warrant to purchase Class Membership Units 324 719

expire 9/1 516
Xpressdocs Business Series Preferred Stock 161870 shares181 500 241

Holdings Inc Services

Total non-affiliate investments represents 76.5% of total investments at fair value

Total Investments

534389 365639

668787 477724

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MCG Capital Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments

December 31 2011

dollars in thousands

Interest Rate191

SeriesAPreferred Stock 120% 87254 shares161

Series A-i Preferred Stock 12.0%
100702 shares161

Series Preferred Stock 12.0% 1282 shares61

Class Common Stock 4731031 shares16

Broadcasting Senior Debt Due 12/161

Subordinated Debt Due 12/i 617
Class Voting Units 8.0% 86700 units161

Other Media Series Preferred Units 10.0% 36300 units161

Series Preferred Units 10.0% 12700 units161

Series Preferred Units 10.0%15000 units6

Plastic Products Senior DebtADue 3/i5h1X7

Senior Debt Due 6/151X7

Senior Debt Due 6/16
Senior Debt Due 3I13-9I16

Series Preferred Stock 8.0% 10000 shares6

Preferred LLC Interest 8.0% 301595 units6

Business Senior Debt Revolver Due 6/1 31X7
Services

Senior Debt Al Due 6/13
Senior DebtA2 Due 6/131X7

Senior DebtA3 Due 6/13
Series Preferred Units 504 units161

Series Preferred Units 5.0% 10731 units6

Common Units 36500 units16

Senior Debt Due 2/1311

Preferred LLC Interest 10.0% 150000 units1

Preferred LLC Units 400 units16

Common LLC Units 79935 units161

Senior Debt Due 12/16h1

Subordinated Debt Due 12/1
Preferred LLC Interest 19.7% 70000 units

Fair

Current P1K Total Principal Cost Value

$81984 5015

77496 5788

10.0% 18580 18512 18512

17929 19090

400

4971

8176 8176 8176

10362 10355 10355

9726 15926

406151 119263

Portfolio Company Industry

Communications

Investment

Control lnvestments

Broadview Networks

Holdings Inc

GMC Television

Broadcasting LLC

Intran Media LLC

Jet Plastica

Investors LLC21

NPS Holding Group
LLC2X5

4.6% $19103

2.5% 10950

4.6%

2.5

2.6%

2.6

6.3%

6.3%

6.3%

6.3

10.0%

100

16651

6976

9071

9095

3000

1250

14914

18977

6250

21560

10000

34014

2360

3470

1905

6228

50

10731

7.0

5.0%

2.5%

2.5

2.5

74

17167

400

9145

4116

5237

32

230

9.6

7.6

2.5%

2.5

8.7%

6.3%

6.3

6.3%

15288

23836

6299

29018

3909

9157

2069

15324

Orbitel Holdings LLC12 Cable

PremierGarage

Holdings LLC

RadioPharmacy

Investors LLC121

Home

Furnishings

Healthcare

Total Control Investments represents 16.1% of total investments at fair value

7.5% 7.5%

12.0% 3.0% 15.0%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MCG Capital Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments

December 31 2011

dollars in thousands

Interest Rate191

Fair

Portfolio Company Industry Investment Current P1K Total Principal Cost Value

Affiliate Investments31

Advanced Sleep
Home Senior Debt Due 1/14 13.4% 13.4% 5859 5851 5851

Concepts Inc.t2
Furnishings

Subordinated Debt Due 1/14 12.0% 4.0% 16.0% 5640 5614 5614

Series Preferred Stock 20.0% 49 shares 344 61

Series Preferred Stock 1000 shares6 270

Common Stock 423 shares6 524

Warrants to purchase Common Stock
348

expire 10/1 66
Contract Datascan Business Subordinated Debt Due 3/161 12.0% 2.0% 14.0% 8402 7778 7353
Holdings Inc Services

SeriesAPreferred Stock 10.0% 2313 shares 2387 1931

Common Stock 4806 shareslX6 477

MIleydia Group Business Senior Debt Due 6I16 12.5% 12.5% 17738 17444 17309
Services

Warrants to purchase Class Units 123 523

expire 3/21
1X6

Stratford School Education Senior Debt Due 12/151 7.5% 7.5% 17500 17412 17412
Holdings lnc.2

Series Convertible Preferred Stock 12.0% 123 10191

10000 shares

Warrants to purchase Common Stock 3087

expire 5/1 516
__________________

Total Affiliate Investments represents 9.4% of total investments at fair value 58425 69602

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MCG Capital Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments

December 31 2011

dollars in thousands

Interest Rate191

Coastal
Sunelt

Holding Inc.1

Coastal Sunbelt Real

Estate Inc

Construction Trailer

Specialists Inc.121

Cruz Bay Publishing

Inc

CWP/RMK Acquisition

Corp.121

Data Based Systems

International Inc

Education

Management Inc

Focus Brands Inc

Gans
Communications

L.P.121

Subordinated Debt Due S/i4W

SeriesA Preferred Shares 14.0%
5000000 shares

Class Shares 621907 shares161

Income Notes Due 4/19

Senior Debt Due 10/1611

Senior Debt Due i/16h1

Series Preferred Stock 12.5% 852950 shares

Senior Debt Due 12/15111

Senior Debt Due 9/16h1

Technology Senior Preferred Stock 11.0% 3750 shares

Subordinated Preferred Stock 109800 shares

Warrants to purchase Common Stock

expire 4/1616

Class B-i Common Stock 2000 shares

Senior Debt Due 12/1611

Preferred Units 10.0% 1250000 units

ClassACommon Units 1250000 units161

Senior Debt Due 3/14i2/16h11

8.6% 6.3% 14.9% 8020 7877 7575

5.3% 8.0% 13.3% 26154 22895 19440

3.0% 3.0% 600 564 559

10.0% 4.0% 14.0% 9004 8834 8989

9.3% 9.3% 25000 24775 24963

5.3% 9354 9355 9296

5.3% 5565 5548 5520

10.7% 4.3% 15.0% 17882 17565 17565

8192 7422

529

3053 2207

5.8% 5.8% 5599 5630

11.5% 6.0% 17.5% 26777 26536

5292

10.5% 10.5% 16500 16320

10.0% 10.0% 22000 21772

6844 6844

1098 988

422 16858

2185

6.8 6.8% 4963 4901 4888

1744 1882

484

8.1 23770 23630 23630

Portfolio Company Industry

Non-Affiliate Investments less than 5% owned
BarBri Inc

Bentley Systems

Incorporated

Capstone Logistics

LLC

Investment

Chase Doors Holdings Manufacturing

Inc

Current P1K Total Principal Cost

Fair

Value

Publishing Senior Debt Due 6/17111 6.0 6.0% 7000 6936 6991

Information Senior Debt Due 12/16h1 5.8 5.8% 900 810 9810
Services

Logistics Senior Debt Due 9/16 10.5% 10.5% 29957 29816 29816

Senior Debt Due 12/15h11 9.5% 9.5% 23660 23442 23442

Food Services Senior Debt Due 8/14-i2/i5 9.1 9.1 19961 19818 19818

Subordinated Debt Due 8/15111 16.0% 16.0% 9038 8967 9024

Real Estate Series A-2 Preferred Stock 12.0% 441
Investments 20000 shares

Auto Parts Senior Debt Due 6/1311

Publishing Subordinated Debt Due 12/13h118

Home Senior Debt Due 12/16171

Furnishings

Business
Subordinated Debt Due 8/1611

Services

Education Senior Debt Due 6/15

Restaurants Senior Debt Due 11/1611

Cable Senior Debt Due 10/17111

GL Investment Insurance

Holdings LLC121

5.3

5.3

Diversified

Financial

Services

Manufacturing

Healthcare

Manufacturing

Manufacturing

Golden Knight II CLO
Ltd

Goodman Global Inc

GSDM Holdings

Corp.12

Haws Corporation

Industrial Safety

Technologies LLC

Jenzabar Inc.1101

Legacy Cabinets

Holdings II Inc

Mailsouth Inc

Maverick Healthcare

Equity LLC

Home

Furnishings

5611

26536

8117

16320

21772

Publishing

Healthcare

Metropolitan
Communications

Telecommunications

Holding Company121

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

80



MCG Capital Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments

December 31 2011

dollars in thousands

Portfolio Company

NDSSI Holdings
LLC2

Orbitz Worldwide Inc

Ozburn-Hessey Holding

Company LLC

Qualawash Holdings LLC

Ritas Water Ice Franchise

Company LLC

Sagamore Hill

Broadcasting LLC2

Sally Holdings LLC

SC Academy Holdings Inc

Scotsman Industries Inc

Service Champ Inc

ShowPlex Cinemas Inc

Soitlayer Technologies Inc

Summit Business Media

Parent Holding Company
LLC

Sunshine Media

Group lnc.2

Tank Intermediate

Holding Corp

The e-Media Club LLC

The Gavilon Group LLC

The Matrixx Group

Incorporated

Virtual Radiologic

Corporation

Visant Corporation

VSA-PBI Holding LLC

West World Media LLC

Repair Services

Restaurants

Cosmetics

Education

Manufacturing

Auto Parts

Entertainment

Business

Services

Information

Services

Consumer
Products

Publishing

Information

Services

Senior Debt Due 111131

Subordinated Debt Due 7I16

Senior Debt Due 4/161

Subordinated Unsecured Debt

Due 21171

Senior Debt Due 5/151

Senior Debt Due 11/16

Class Series Units 636 units6

Class Series II Units 276 unitslx6

LLC Interest 74 units6

Senior Debt Due 12/161

Subordinated Debt Due 61141

LLC Interest6

Senior Debt Due 9/151

Class Membership Units

25000 units
16

Warrant to purchase Class

Membership Units expire g/151X6

Senior Debt Due 4/124/131

Series Preferred Stock

161870 shares6

11.0% 11.0% 20000

14.0% 14.0% 9375

12.0% 1.0% 13.0% 11114

6.0% 6.0% 9500

10.8% 10.8% 12500

Fair

Cost Value

29718 28791

2000 3175

4120 281

1788

Industry Investment

Electronics Senior Debt Due 12/121

Series Preferred Units 30.0%
2000000 units6

Personal

Transportation

Logistics

Interest Rate

Current P1K Total Principal

12.8% 1.0% 13.8% $29859

3.4% 3.4% 3014

8.3% 8.3% 4378

Philadelphia Media Network Newspaper

Inc

Series Preferred Units 516691 units6

Series Convertible Preferred Units

165003 units6

Class Common Units

1000000 units6

Senior Debt Due 7/141

Senior Debt Due 4/161

Class Common Stock

1000 shares6

Subordinated Debt Due 1/16ll

Senior Debt Due 11/16

Broadcasting Senior Debt Due 8/14

718

142

333

2883 2604

4426 3868

5070

19839 19839

9282 9282

11018 11018

2.6%

12.0%

5.8%

2.3% 14.3%

2.6

12.0%

5.8

12.0%

11.0%

7.3%

8531

13500

5309

12111

8541

13398

5309

12009

8521

13471

5256

12203

11.0% 7689 7539 7539

7.3% 13860 13718 13906

Publishing

Manufacturing

Investment Fund

Agriculture

Plastic Products

Warrants to purchase Common Stock

expire 11216

Senior Debt Due 4/161 5.0% 5.0% 5506 5421 5448

Healthcare Senior Debt Due 12/161

Senior Debt Due 12i16

88

9395

12500

11

9464

12639

7.8% 7.8% 13915 13730 13184

Xpressdocs Holdings Inc.2 Business

Services

4866 45635.3% 5.3% 4851

11.0% 3.0% 14.0% 11301

10.9% 0.9% 11.8% 18734

500

10577 10577

285

Total Non-Affiliate Investments represents 74.5% of total investments at fair value

Total Investments

324 719

18539

500

18733

109

552642 552301

$1017218 741166

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MCG Capital Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Investments

December 31 2011

dollars in thousands

Some or all of this security is held by our SBIC subsidiary or one of our other financing subsidiaries and may have been

pledged as collateral in connection therewith See Note 6Borrowings to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Includes securities issued by one or more of the portfolio companys affiliates

Affiliate investments represent companies in which we own at least 5% but not more than 25% of the portfolio companys

voting securities

Control investments represent companies in which we own more than 25% of the portfolio companys voting securities

Represents non-majority-owned control portfolio company of which we own at least 25% but not more than 50% of the

portfolio companys voting securities

Equity security is non-income producing at period-end

Loan or debt security is on non-accrual status

We did not recognize paid-in-kind or P1K interest or accretion income because the fair value of our investment was below

its cost basis However we continue to accrue interest that is receivable in cash from the portfolio company

Interest rates represent the weighted-average annual stated interest rate on debt securities presented by nature of

indebtedness for single issuer P1K interest represents contractually deferred interest that is added to the principal balance

of the debt security and compounded if not paid on current basis P1K may be prepaid by either contract or the portfolio

companys choice but generally is paid at the end of the loan term Rates on preferred stock and preferred LLC interests

where applicable represent the contractual rate

IS
In February 2012 we accepted $23.7 million for our senior preferred stock and warrant position in Jenzabar The

consideration received also settled any and all direct claims and counterclaims asserted in the litigation by and among the

Company Jenzabar and certain Jenzabar officers and directors We will receive the balance of the payment for our position

in Jenzabar in the amount of $990000 for our subordinated preferred stock and will exchange those shares upon the final

dismissal of the litigation including the dismissal of the derivative claims

In the three months ended June 30 2012 Jet Plastica Investors LLC liquidated substantially all of its assets Including

the proceeds from the liquidation we have received $11.0 million of payments on our senior debt

12 Investment has been reclassified from non-affiliate investment to an affiliate investment due to certain voting rights that

the Company may have prior to the exercise of the warrants

13
In January 2013 we canceled portion of our subordinated debt investment in Advanced Sleep Concepts Inc and

abandoned all of our equity investments in that company

14
In January 2013 the NDSSI Holdings LLC senior debt investment was repaid in full and we received final distribution

on the equity investment

15
In January 2013 we abandoned our equity investment in Sunshine Media Group Inc

16
In February 2013 we abandoned our equity investment in VSA-PBI Holding LLC

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MCG Capital Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These Financial Statements present the results of operations financial position and cash flows of MCG Capital

Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries The terms we ourus and MCG referto MCG Capital Corporation

and its consolidated subsidiaries

We are solutions-focused commercial finance company that provides capital and advisory services to middle-market

companies throughout the United States We are an internally managed non-diversified closed-end investment

company that elected to be regulated as business development company or BDC under the Investment Company

Act of 1940 as amended or the 1940 Act Our organization includes the following categories of subsidiaries

Wholly Owned Special-Purpose Financing SubsidiaryThis subsidiary is bankruptcy remote special-purpose

entity to which we transfer certain loans The financing subsidiary in turn transfers the loans to Delaware

statutory trust For accounting purposes the transfers of the loans to the Delaware statutory trust is structured

as an on-balance sheet securitization

Small Business Investment SubsidiariesWe own Solutions Capital L.P or Solutions Capital wholly owned

subsidiary licensed by the United States Small Business Administration or SBA which operates as small

business investment company or SBIC under the Small Business lnvestmentAct of 1958 as amended or SBIC

Act In March 2011 we formed another wholly owned subsidiary Solutions Capital II which in February

2013 received an invitation from the SBA to submit an application for second SBIC license Receipt of such

an invitation from the SBA does not assure an applicant that the SBA will grant the additional license in any

specified time period or at all MCG is also the sole member of Solutions Capital G.P LLC which acts as the

general partner of Solutions Capital and Solutions Capital II L.P

Taxable SubsidiariesWe currently qualify as regulated investment company or RIC for federal income tax

purposes and therefore are not required to pay corporate income taxes on any income or gains that we distribute

to our stockholders We have certain wholly owned taxable subsidiaries or Taxable Subsidiaries each of which

holds one or more portfolio investments listed on our Consolidated Schedules of Investments The purpose of

these Taxable Subsidiaries is to permit us to hold portfolio companies organized as limited liability companies

or LLCs or other forms of pass-through entities and still satisfy the RIC tax requirement that at least 90% of our

gross revenue for income tax purposes must consist of investment income Absent the Taxable Subsidiaries

portion of the gross income of any LLC or other pass-through entity portfolio investment would flow through

directly to us and be included in the calculation of the 90% test To the extent that such income did not consist

of investment income it could jeopardize our ability to qualify as RIC and therefore cause us to incur significant

federal income taxes The income of the LLCs or other pass-through entities owned by Taxable Subsidiaries is

taxed to the Taxable Subsidiaries and does not flow through to us thereby helping us preserve our RIC status

and resultant tax advantages We do not consolidate the Taxable Subsidiaries for income tax purposes and they

may generate income tax expense because of the Taxable Subsidiaries ownership of the portfolio companies

We reflect any such income tax expense on our Consolidated Statements of Operations

The accompanying financial statements reflect the consolidated accounts of MCG and the following subsidiaries

Solutions Capital Solutions Capital II L.P Solutions Capital G.P LLC and MCGs special-purpose financing

subsidiary MCG Finance VII LLC

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

These consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America and conform to Regulation S-X under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended We believe we have made all necessary adjustments so that the financial

statements are presented fairly and that all such adjustments are of normal recurring nature We eliminated all

significant intercompany balances In accordance with Article of Regulation S-X of the Securities Act of 1933 as

amended and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended we do not consolidate portfolio company investments

including those in which we have controlling interest Certain prior period information has been reclassified to conform

to current year presentation Further in connection with the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements

we have evaluated subsequent events that occurred after the balance sheet date as of December 31 2012 through

the date these financial statements were issued
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Preparing financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported on

our Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes Although we believe the estimates and assumptions

used in preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes are reasonable actual results could

differ materially

NOTE 2SIGNIFIcANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

INCOME RECOGNITION

We follow the policies described below to recognize income on our Consolidated Statements of Operations

Interest IncomeWe accrue interest income if we expect that ultimately we will be able to collect it Generally

when loan becomes more than 90 days past due or if we otherwise believe the customer is unable to service

its debt and other obligations we will place the loan on non-accrual status and will cease recognizing interest

income on that loan until all principal and interest is current through payment or due to restructuring such

that the interest income is deemed to be collectible However we remain contractually entitled to this interest

We may make exceptions to this policy if the loan has sufficient collateral value and is in the process of

collection Paid-in-kind interest or P1K represents contractually deferred interest that typically is added to

the loan balance Generally P1K interest is due at the end of the loan term We generally accrue P1K interest

when collection is expected and cease accruing P1K if there is insufficient value to support the accrual or we

expect the customer is unable to pay all principal and interest due

Dividend IncomeWe accrue dividend income on equity investments with stated income generally preferred

equity if we expect to collect the dividends We record dividend income on common equity investments and

gains from realized distributions when the dividend has been declared and is required to be paid

Loan Origination FeesWe capitalize loan origination fees then amortize these fees into interest income over

the term of the loan using the effective interest rate method or on straight-line basis when the loan has

revolving credit feature In certain loan arrangements we receive warrants or other equity interests from the

borrower as additional origination fees Typically borrowers granting these interests are not traded publicly

We record the financial instruments received at fair value as determined in good faith by our board of directors

In certain cases when we record warrant or other equity instrument that results in loan discount we accrete

the discount into income over the term of the loan

Advisory Fees and Other IncomeWe charge our portfolio companies fees for services that we provide

including advisory and management services prepayments research structuring and other fees We

generally recognize these fees when earned We recognize prepayment fees upon receipt Finally certain

of the bank accounts in which we maintain cash balances pay interest which we recognize when the interest

is earned

PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

In accordance with the 1940 Act we classify portfolio investments on our Consolidated Balance Sheets and our

Consolidated Schedules of Investments into the following categories

Control InvestmentsInvestments in which we control more than 25% of the voting securities or have greater

than 50% representation on the board of directors

Affiliate InvestmentsInvestments in which we own between 5% and 25% of the voting securities and have

less than 50% representation on the board of directors and

Non-Affiliate InvestmentsInvestments in which we own less than 5% of the voting securities

We carry our investments at fair value in accordance with the 1940 Act and Accounting Standard Codification Topic

820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures or ASC 820 We base the fair value of portfolio investments on

market prices when market quotations are readily available As required by the 1940 Act the fair value of all other

investments is determined in good faith by our board of directors Typically there are no readily available market

values for the majority of investments in our portfolio As result the fair value of our entire investment portfolio was

determined in good faith by our board of directors We determine fair values using various valuation models that

estimate the underlying value of the associated entity taking into consideration our ownership share as well as any

discounts for transfer restrictions or other terms that impact the value No single standard exists for determining fair

value in good faith Therefore our board of directors applies judgment to specific facts and circumstances about each

investment in our portfolio pursuant to our valuation policy and accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States
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ASC 820 defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about assets

and liabilities measured at fair value ASC 820s definition of fair value focuses on exit price in the principal or most

advantageous market and prioritizes the use of market-based inputs over entity-specific inputs within measurement

of fair value

Each quarter we record the difference between the carrying value of our investments and the fair values determined

by the board of directors as unrealized appreciation depreciation on investments on our Consolidated Statements

of Operations Upon the ultimate disposition of an asset in our portfolio we reverse any previously recorded unrealized

appreciation depreciation and realize gain loss on investment that reflects the difference between the carrying

cost of the investment and the net proceeds from the sale including proceeds held in escrow that we record as restricted

cash on our Consolidated Balance Sheet See Note 4Fair Value Measurement for additional information about the

methodologies that the board of directors uses to determine the fair value of our investments as well as our application

of ASC 820

CASH

Our Consolidated Balance Sheets and our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows reflect the following categories of

cash

Cash and cash equivalentsRepresents unrestricted cash including checking accounts interest bearing

deposits collateralized by marketable debt securities and highly liquid investments with original maturities of

90 days or less

Cash securitization accountsRepresents principal and interest held in designated bank accounts that we

received on securitized loans or other reserved amounts associated with our securitization facilities We must

use the funds deposited in these accounts to pay interest reduce borrowings or pay other specified obligations

in accordance with associated securitization agreements Interest collections in excess of the interest payments
and other specified obligations are distributed back to us and

Cash restrictedIncludes cash held in escrow that we received as part of an asset sale cash held for regulatory

purposes and cash that we have received that is earmarked for transfer into our cash securitization accounts

BORROWING FACILITIES

As described more fully in Note 6Borrowings we have borrowed funds from various sources including debentures

guaranteed by the SBA an unsecured credit facility private placements and warehouse loan facility In addition

we have bankruptcy-remote special-purpose entity that issued debt collateralized by pools of loans that we have

transfered to the entity We have recorded our obligation to repay all our borrowings at cost on our Consolidated

Balance Sheets We account for loans transferred to our bankruptcy remote special-purpose entity for use in

securitization transactions in accordance with ASC Topic 860Transfers and Setvicing or ASC 860

Debt issuance costs include fees and other direct incremental costs incurred in connection with our borrowings We
amortize these costs ratably over the contractual term of the borrowing facility using the effective interest method and

include this amortization in interest expense on our Consolidated Statements of Operations For facilities with

revolving credit feature we amortize these costs on straight-line basis

From time-to-time we may repurchase certain debt instruments issued by one of our bankruptcy-remote special-

purpose entities from third parties at negotiated price that may be different than the principal amount of the debt In

accordance with ASC 470Debt we treat these repurchases as if the debt were extinguished and report the difference

between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the extinguished debt as gain on extinguishment of

debt on our Consolidated Statements of Operations

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

In accordance with ASC Topic 718CompensationStock Compensation orASC 718 we recognize compensation

cost related to share-based awards for which forfeiture provisions are expected to lapse over the requisite service

period

INCOME TAXES

We currently qualify as RIC for federal income tax purposes which generally allows us to avoid paying corporate

income taxes on any income or gains that we distribute to our stockholders Generally we intend to distribute sufficient

dividends to eliminate taxable income and may distribute more than the taxable income which would be considered
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return of capital We are subject to 4% excise tax to the extent that we do not distribute on an actual or on deemed

basis 98.0% of our current year ordinary income and ii 98.2% of our current year net capital gain income

We have certain wholly owned Taxable Subsidiaries each of which holds one or more portfolio investments listed on

our Consolidated Schedule of Investments The purpose of these Taxable Subsidiaries is to permit us to hold portfolio

companies organized as LLCs or other forms of pass-through entities and still satisfy the RIC tax requirement that at

least 90% of our gross revenue for income tax purposes must consist of investment income Absent the Taxable

Subsidiaries portion of the gross income of any LLC or other pass-through entity portfolio investment would flow

through directly to us for the 90% test To the extent that such income did not consist of investment income it could

jeopardize our ability to qualify as RIC and therefore cause us to incur significant federal income taxes The income

of the LLCs or other pass-through entities owned by Taxable Subsidiaries is taxed to the Taxable Subsidiaries and

does not flow through to us thereby helping us preserve our RIC status and resultant tax advantages We do not

consolidate the Taxable Subsidiaries for income tax purposes and they may generate income tax expense because

of the Taxable Subsidiaries ownership of the portfolio companies We reflect any such income tax expense on our

Consolidated Statement of Operations For additional information about our Taxable Subsidiaries and the determination

of our income taxes see Note 11Income Taxes

NOTE 3INvEsTMENT PORTFOLIO

The following table summarizes the composition of our investment portfolio at cost and fair value

dollars in thousands

Debt Investments

Senior secured debt

Subordinated debt

Secured

Unsecured

Total debt investments

Equity investments

Preferred

Common/common equivalents

Total equity investments

Total investments

COST BASIS FAIR VALUE BASIS

December 31 2012 December31 2011 December31 2012 December31 2011

Investments of Total Investments of Total Investments of Total Investments of Total

at Cost Portfolio at Cost Portfolio at Fair Value Portfolio at Fair Value Portfolio

297842 44.6% 551402 54.2/ 291760 611% 492488 66.4%

127288 19.0 134721 13.2 114983 24.1 124289 16.8

26274 3.9 12009 1.2 26274 5.4 12203 1.7

451404 67.5 698132 68.6 433017 90.6 628980 84.9

46403 6.9 297283 29.3 41558 8.7 89931 12.1

170980 25.6 21803 2.1 3149 0.7 22255 3.0

217383 32.5 319086 31.4 44707 9.4 112186 15.1

668787 100.0% 1017218 100.0/ 477724 100.0% 741166 100.0%

Our debt instruments bear contractual interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 16.5% portion of which may be in the

form of P1K As of December 31 2012 approximately 76.3% of the fair value of our loan portfolio had variable interest

rates based on either the London Interbank Offer Rate or LIBOR or the prime rate and 23.7% of the fair value of

our loan portfolio had fixed interest rates As of December31 2012 approximately 67.3% of our loan portfolio at fair

value had LIBOR floors between .0% and 3.0% on LIBOR-based index and prime floors between .75% and 6.0%

At origination our loans generally have four- to six-year stated maturities Borrowers typically pay an origination fee

based on percent of the total commitment and fee on undrawn commitments

When one of our loans becomes more than 90 days past due or if we otherwise do not expect the customer to be

able to service its debt and other obligations we will as general matter place the loan on non-accrual status and

generally will cease recognizing interest income on that loan until all principal and interest has been brought current

through payment or due to restructuring such that the interest income is deemed to be collectible However we may

make exceptions to this policy if the loan has sufficient collateral value and is in the process of collection If the fair

value of loan is below Cost we may cease recognizing P1K interest and/or the accretion of discount on the debt

investment until such time that the fair value equals or exceeds cost
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dollars in thousands

Loans greater than 90 days past due

On non-accrual status

Not on non-accrual status

Total loans greater than 90

days past due

Loans on non-accrual status

to 90 days past due

Greater than 90 days past due
_____________________

Total loans on non-accrual

status

The following table summarizes our investment portfolio by industry at fair value

We account for our investments in portfolio companies under ASC 820 ASC 820 defines fair value establishes

framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about assets and liabilities measured at fair value ASC
820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date This fair value definition focuses on exit price in

the principal or most advantageous market and prioritizes within measurement of fair value the use of market-

based inputs over entity-specific inputs

The following table summarizes the cost and fair value of loans more than 90 days past due and loans on non-accrual

status

COST BASIS FAIR VALUE BASIS

December31 2012 December31 2011 December31 2012 December31 2011

Investments of Loan Investments of Loan Investments of Loan Investments of Loan
at Cost Portfolio at Cost Portfolio at Fair Value Portfolio at Fair Value Portfolio

3897 0.86% 13963 2.00 0/ 9615 1.53%

3897 0.86% 13963 2.00/ 9615 1.53%

12880 2.85% 69241 9.92A 607 0.14% 9704 1.54%

3897 0.86 13963 2.00 9615 1.53

16777 3.71% 83204 11.92A 607 0.14% 19319 3.07%

dollars in thousands

December 31 2012

Investments Percent of

at Fair Value Total Portfolio

December 31 2011

Investments at Percent of

Fair Value Total Portfolio

Healthcare 106119 22.2h

Business services 64947 13.6

Education 59783 12.5

Electronics 33361 7.0

Publishing 30646 6.4

Manufacturing 28728 6.0

Logistics 27237 5.7

Insurance 26529 5.6

Broadcasting 25372 5.3

Agriculture 21781 4.6

Information services 12646 2.7

Restaurants 9301 1.9

Home furnishings 7806 1.6

Auto parts 6434 1.3

Cable 5061 1.1

Communications 1087 0.2

Technology 988 0.2

Plastic products

Food services

Repair services

Cosmetics

Other 9898 2.1

84660

78468

69124

31966

31319

77849

33684

24987

28185

9464

21672

18578

12355

19778

43122

34507

24690

21784

28842

19839

8521

17772

11.4%

10.6

9.3

4.3

4.2

10.5

4.5

3.4

3.8

1.3

2.9

2.5

1.7

2.7

5.8

4.7

3.3

2.9

3.9

2.7

1.2

2.4

Total

No individual industry within this category exceeds 1%

NOTE 4FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

477724 100.0% 741166 100.0%

87



Fair Value Hierarchy

ASC 820 establishes the following three-level hierarchy based upon the transparency of inputs to the fair value

measurement of an asset or liability as of the measurement date

ASC 820

Fair Value

Hierarchy Inputs to Fair Value Methodology

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities quoted markets that are not active or other inputs that are

observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the financial

instrument inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability or inputs that are

derived principally from or corroborated by observable market information

Level Pricing models discounted cash flow methodologies or similar techniques and at least one significant model

assumption is unobservable or when the estimation of fair value requires significant management judgment

We categorize financial instrument in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level of input that is significant to

its fair value measurement In the event that transfers between these levels were to occur in the future we would

recognize those transfers as of the ending balance sheet date based on changes in the use of observable and

unobservable inputs utilized to perform the valuation for the period

Assets Measured at Fair Value on Recurring Basis

The following table presents the assets that we report at fair value on our Consolidated Balance Sheets by fair value

hierarchy

December 31 2012

Internal Models with Significant
Total Fair Value

Observable Unobservable
Reported in

Market Parameters Market Parameters Consolidated

Level Level Balance Sheet

57199 163125 220324

96585 96585

26274 26274

2847 16561 19408

3048 3048

60046 305593 365639

48060 48060

7880 7880

6038 6038

101 101

62079 62079

23376 23376

10518 10518

16112 16112

50006 50006

60046 417678 477724

As of December 31 2012 we had no investments that had quoted market prices in active markets which we would

categorize as Level investments under ASC 820 Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost which approximates

fair value and are Level assets

Valuation Methodologies and Procedures

As required by the 1940 Act we classify our investments by level of control Control investments include both majority-

owned control investments and non-majority owned control investments majority-owned control investment

represents security in which we own more than 50% of the voting interest of the portfolio company and generally

control its board of directors non-majority owned control investment represents security in which we own 25% to

in thousands

Non-affiliate investments

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Unsecured subordinated debt

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents

Total non-affiliate investments

Affiliate investments

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents

Total affiliate investments

Control investments

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Preferred equity

Total control investments

Total assets at fair value
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50% of the portfolio companys voting equity As of December 31 2012 our portfolio contained no non-majority control

investments Non-control investments represent both affiliate and non-affiliate securities for which we do not have

controlling interest Affiliate investments represent securities in which we own 5% to 25% of the portfolio companys

equity Non-affiliate investments represent securities in which we own less than 5% of the portfolio companys equity

Majority-Owned Control InvestmentsMajority-owned control investments comprise 10.5% of our investment

portfolio as of December 31 2012 Market quotations are not readily available for these investments therefore

we use combination of market and income approaches to determine their fair value Typically private companies

are bought and sold based on multiples of earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization or

EBITDA cash flows net income revenues or in limited cases book value Generally we apply multiples that we

observe for other comparable companies to relevant financial data for the portfolio company in question Also in

limited number of cases we use income approaches to determine fair value based on our projections of the

discounted future free cash flows that the portfolio company will likely generate as well as industry derived capital

costs Our valuation approaches for majority-owned investments estimate the value upon hypothetical sale or

exit and then allocates such value to the investments securities in order of their relative liquidation preference In

addition the we assume that any outstanding debt or other securities that are senior to our securities are required

to be repaid at par These valuation approaches consider the value of our ability to control the portfolio companys

capital structure and the timing of potential exit

Non-Control InvestmentsNon-control investments comprise 89.5% of our investment portfolio as of

December 31 2012 Quoted prices are not available for 85.9% of our non-control investments as of December 31

2012 For our non-control equity investments we use the same market and income approaches used to value

our control investments For non-control debt investments for which no quoted prices are available we estimate

fair value using market-yield approach based on the expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective

interest rates based on our estimate of current market rates We may adjust discounted cash flow calculations

to reflect other market conditions or the perceived credit risk of the borrower In the event the fair value of non-

control debt investment as determined by the same market or income approach used to value our control

investments is below our cost we estimate the fair value using the market or income approach

Thinly-Traded and Over-the-Counter SecuritiesGenerally we value securities that are traded in the over-the-

counter market or on stock exchange at the average of the prevailing bid and ask prices on the date of the

relevant period end However we may apply discount to the market value of restricted or thinly-traded public

securities to reflect the impact that these restrictions have on the value of these securities We review factors

including the trading volume total securities outstanding and our percentage ownership of securities to determine

whether the trading levels are active Level or inactive Level As of December 31 2012 these securities

represented 12.6% of our investment portfolio We utilize independent pricing services to arrive at certain of our

fair value estimates The majority of our level investments are senior debt investments that are secured and

collateralized To corroborate bid/ask quotes from independent pricing services we perform market-yield

approach to validate prices obtained or obtain other evidence

Our valuation analyses incorporate the impact that key events could have on the securities values including public

and private mergers and acquisitions purchase transactions public offerings letters of intent and subsequent debt

or equity sales Our valuation analyses also include key external data such as market changes and industry valuation

benchmarks We also engage independent valuation firms to provide additional data points for our quarterly valuation

analyses Our general practice is to obtain an independent valuation or review of valuation at least once per year for

each portfolio investment that had fair value in excess of $5.0 million unless the fair value has otherwise been

derived through sale of some or all of our investment in the portfolio company or is new investment made within

the last twelve months In total as of December 31 2012 we either obtained valuation or review from an independent

firm considered new investments made or used market quotes in the preceding twelve-month period to calculate

99.0% of our investment portfolio calculated on fair value basis

The majority of the valuations performed by the independent valuation firms utilize proprietary models and inputs We
have used and intend to continue to use independent valuation firms to provide additional support for our internal

analyses

Our board of directors sets our valuation policies and procedures and determines the fair value of our investments

The investment and valuation committee of our board of directors meets at least quarterly with our executive

management to review managements recommendations of fair value of our investments Our board of directors
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considers our valuations as well as the independent valuations and reviews in its determination of the fair value of

our investments

Due to the uncertainty inherent in the valuation process such estimates of fair value may differ significantly from the

valuesthatwould have been used had ready marketforthe securities existed and such differences could be material

In addition changes in the market environment and other events that may occur over the life of the investments may
cause the gains or losses ultimately realized on these investments to differ from the valuations currently assigned

Changes in Level Fair Value Measurements

We classify securities in the Level valuation hierarchy based on the significance of the unobservable factors to the

overall fair value measurement Our fair value approach for Level securities primarily uses unobservable inputs but

may also include observable actively quoted components derived from external sources Accordingly the gains and

losses in the table below include fair value changes due in part to observable factors Additionally we transfer

investments in and out of Level and securities as of the ending balance sheet date based on changes in the

use of observable and unobservable inputs utilized to perform the valuation for the period During each of the twelve

months ended December 31 2012 and 2011 there were no transfers in or out of Level or
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The following table provides reconciliation of fair value changes during the twelve months ended December 31 2012

for all investments for which we determine fair value using unobservable Level factors

Fair value December 31 2011

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Unsecured subordinated debt

Preferred equity

common/common equivalents equity
_______________________________________________________________

Total fair value December31 2011

Realized/unrealized gain loss

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Unsecured subordinated debt

Preferred equity

common/common equivalents equity
___________________________________________________________

Total realized/unrealized gain loss
________________________________________________________

lssuances

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Unsecured subordinated debt

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents equity
___________________________________________________________

Total issuances

Settlements

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Unsecured subordinated debt

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents equity
___________________________________________________________

Total settlements

Sales

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents equity
___________________________________________________________

Total sales

Fair value as of December31 2012

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Unsecured subordinated debt

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents equity
___________________________________________________________

Total fair value as of December 31 2012

in thousands Fair value measurements using unobservable inputs Level

Non-affiliate Affiliate Control
Investments Investments Investments Total

280371 40572 62615 383558

100967 12967 10355 124289

12203 12203

28978 12453 46293 87724

18645 3610 22255

441164 69602 119263 630029

41 204 4034 3789

266 5140 4874

194 186

885 2980 14526 12431

94 138 232

760 2226 10484 13470

50597 28502 109 79208

46349 402 323 47074

26446 26446

2462 3438 1919 7819

61 61

125854 32403 2351 160608

167802 20810 43382 231994

50997 349 160 51506

12181 12189

12103 1711 13814

15647 15647

258730 21159 45261 325150

1891 12833 15863 30587

44 3708 3752

1935 16541 15863 34339

163125 48060 23376 234561

96585 7880 10518 114983

26274 26274

16561 6038 16112 38711

3048 101 3149

305593 62079 50006 417678

There were no purchases of level investments during the twelve months ended December31 2012
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The following table provides reconciliation of fair value changes during the twelve-month period ended December 31
2011 for all investments for which we determine fair value using unobservable Level factors

in thousands

Fair value December 31 2010

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Unsecured subordinated debt

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents equity

Total fair value December 31 2010

Realized/unrealized gain loss

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Unsecured subordinated debt

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents equity

Total realized/unrealized gain loss

Purchases

Senior secured debt

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents equity

Total purchases

Issuances

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Unsecured subordinated debt

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents equity

Total issuances

Settlements

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Unsecured subordinated debt

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents equity

Total settlements

Sales

Senior secured debt

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents equity

Total sales

Fair value as of December 31 2011

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Unsecured subordinated debt

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents equity

Total fair value as of December31 2011

Fair value measurements using unobservable inputs Level

Non-affiliate Affiliate Control

Investments Investments Investments Total

325874 24207 75714 425795

121743 12348 56218 190309

12321 12321

24741 13197 178357 216295

29170 3548 32718

513849 53300 310289 877438

1913 136 60823 62872

2717 413 33727 36031

194 87 107

3830 1345 95853 90678

8865 100 8761

4037 896 123032 126173

11863 11863

2000 4300 6300

123 123

2000 123 16163 18286

84689 21947 44206 150842

30628 1032 1224 32884

1945 1945

1899 1186 13354 16439

533 67 600

119694 24232 58784 202710

118073 5446 8345 131864

54121 80814 134935

2257 87 2170

3209 3275 12171 18655

249 228 481

177909 8949 101247 288105

10206 10206

283 41694 41977

1944 1944

12433 41694 54127

280371 40572 62615 383558

100967 12967 10355 124289

12203 12203

28978 12453 46293 87724

18645 3610 22255

441164 69602 119263 630029
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Unrealized Depreciation Appreciation of Level Investments

The following table summarizes the unrealized depreciation appreciation that we recognized on those investments

for which we determined fair value using unobservable inputs Level for the twelve months ended December 31

2012 and 2011

in thousands

Change in unrealized

appreciation depreciation

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Unsecured subordinated debt

Preferred equity

Common/common equivalents

equity

Total change in unrealized

appreciation depreciation

on Level investments

Yearended December31 2012 Yearended December31 2011

Non-affiliate Affiliate Control Non-affiliate Affiliate Control

Investments Investments Investments Total Investments Investments Investments Total

539 204 4160 4495 28806 43731 14925

1249 5140 6389 14745 413 45563 59895

81 81 1633 1332 2965

44 372 13380 13052 3164 2048 84173 78961

70 568 498 6919 300 1000 6219

603 5540 9220 $15363 41429 1335 80009 37245

Significant Unobservable Inputs

Our investment portfolio is not composed of homogeneous debt and equity securities that can be valued with small

number of inputs Instead the majority of our investment portfolio is composed of complex debt and equity securities

with distinct contract terms and conditions As such our valuation of each investment in our portfolio is unique and

complex often factoring in numerous different inputs including the historical and forecasted financial and operational

performance of the portfolio company projected cash flows market multiples comparable market transactions the

priority of our securities compared with those of other investors credit risk interest rates independent valuations and

reviews and other inputs too numerous to list quantitatively herein

The following table summarizes the significant unobservable inputs in the fair value measurements of our level

investments by category of investment and valuation technique as of December 31 2012

Range Weighted
Unobservable

valuation Techniques Inputs Minimum Maximum
---

Average

$234561 Discounted cash flow Market interest rate 6.8% 12.8% 9.4%

Discounted cash flow Discount rate 4.1% 4.1% 4.1%

Market comparable companies EBITDA multiple

Pending transactions/Letters of intent Discount

Subordinated debt 141257 Discounted cash flow Market interest rate 11.2% 14.8% 13.0%

Market comparable companies EBITDA muItiple 5.Ox 7.5x 7.5x

Pending transactions/Letters of intent Discount

Preferred and common 41860 Market comparable companies EBITDA muItiple 4.4x 9.5x 7.5x

equtty

1.6%

Pending transactions/Letters of intent Discount

Residual assets Discount 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

EBITDA may include proforma adjustments and/or other addbacks based on specific circumstances related to each investment

7.5x 7.5x

Discount for minority 25.0%
interest

7.5x

in thousands

Senior debt

Fair Value

417678
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NOTE 5CONCENTRATIONS OF INVESTMENT RISK

During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 we had concentrations in certain industries including the

healthcare business services and education industries The following table summarizes our fair value and revenue

concentrations in each of those industries

dollars in thousands

Industry

Healthcare

Business services

Education

Total

Investments at fair value Revenue for the year ended

NOTE 6BORRowINGs

As of December 31 2012 we reported $248.1 million of borrowings on our Consolidated Balance Sheets at cost The

following table summarizes our borrowing facilities the facility amounts and amounts outstanding

Total

Facility

Maturity Date Program

Total

Facility

Program

December 31 2012 December 31 2011 December 31 2012 December 31 2011

%of Total %of Total %of Total %of Total

Amount Portfolio Amount Portfolio Amount Revenue Amount Revenue

106119 22.2% 84660 11.4% 9160 15.0% 10926 12.7%

64947 13.6 78468 10.6 7247 11.9 9967 11.6

59783 12.5 69124 9.3 5286 8.7 4742 5.5

230849 48.3% 232252 31.3% 21693 35.6A 25635 29.8%

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Amount

Outstanding

Amount

Outstanding

dollars in thousands

SB/C

2008-lOB September2018 2600 2600

2009-1OA March2019 12000 12000

2009-lOB September 2019 13000 13000

2010-lOB September 2020 27500 27500

2011-bA March2021 53500 53500

2012-bA March 2022 41400 41400

MCG Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1

Series 2006-i Class A-i Notes April
2018a

Series 2006-1 ClassA-2 Notes April 201 8a

Series 2006-i Class A-3 Notes April 201 8a

Series 2006-i Class Notes April 201 8a 37151 37151

Series 2006-1 Class Notest April 2018a 45000 32000

Series 2006-1 Class Notes April 201 8a 45945 28902

Bank of America Unsecured Revo/ver

Unsecured Revolving Note November 2014 20000

Commercial Loan Funding Trust

Variable Funding Note January 20l4

Private Placement Notes

Series 2007-A October 2012

2600 2600

12000 12000

13000 13000

27500 27500

53500 53500

41400 20000

63389 63389

2983 2983

50711 5071i

58750 58750

45000 32000

46494 29247

150000 55822

8717 8717

298096 248053 576044 430219Total borrowings
______________________________________________________

Borrowings under the MCG Commercial Loan Trust 2006-i facility are listed based on the contractual maturity date The reinvestment

period for this
facility

ended on July 20 2011 and we have used and will use all subsequent principal collections from collateral in the facility

to repay the securitized debt

Amount outstanding excludes $5.0 million of notes that we repurchased in December 2008 for $1.6 million and $8.0 million of notes that we

repurchased in April 2010 for $4.4 million As part of the consolidation process we eliminated the notes that MCG the parent company
purchased

Amount outstanding excludes $10.1 million of notes that we repurchased in December 2008 for $2.4 million and $7.5 million of notes that

we repurchased in January 2009 for $2.1 million As part of the consolidation process we eliminated the notes that MCG the parent

company purchased

dOn May 15 2012 this facility was repaid in full and terminated
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We estimate that the fair value of these borrowings as of December 31 2012 was approximately $250.1 million based

on market data and current interest rates This fair value is estimated from market quotes in an inactive market provided

by an independent pricing service for $93.1 million of our borrowings level and market-yield approach for $157.0

million level of our borrowings

As BDC we are not permitted to incur indebtedness or issue senior securities including preferred stock unless

immediately after such borrowing our asset coverage ratio for total borrowings excluding borrowings by our SBIC

facility of at least 200% In addition we may not be permitted to declare any cash dividend or other distribution on

our outstanding common shares or purchase any such shares unless at the time of such declaration or purchase

we have an asset coverage ratio of at least 200% after deducting the amount of such dividend distribution or purchase

price If we are unable to meet this asset coverage requirement we may not be able to incur additional debt As of

December 31 2012 our ratio of total assets to total borrowings and other senior securities was 478%

Each of our borrowing facilities has certain financial covenants and non-financial covenants We were in compliance

with the covenants as of December 31 2012 and 2011

We have funded our current secured borrowing debt facility through bankruptcy remote special-purpose wholly

owned subsidiary Therefore this subsidiarys assets may not be available to our creditors We continue to service

those portfolio investments that we use as collateral in our secured borrowing facility

The following table summarizes repayments of our borrowings based on the final legal maturity or the contractual

principal collections of the outstanding loans that comprise the collateral where applicable Actual repayments could

differ significantly due to future prepayments by our borrowers modifications of our borrowers existing loan agreements

and monetizations

in thousands December 31
2012

2013 15oa

2014

2015

2016

2017

Thereafter 233015

Total 248053

Reflects repayments we are required to make in connection with principal collections from collateral loans in our MCG Commercial Loan Trust

2006-1

SBIC Debentures

In December 2004 we formed wholly owned subsidiary Solutions Capital Solutions Capital has license from the

SBAto operate as an SBIC under the SBIC Act The license permits Solutions Capital to borrow upto $150.0 million

from the SBA which is the maximum amount of outstanding leverage available to single-license SBIC companies

In March 2011 weformed anotherwhollyowned subsidiary Solutions Capital II In September2012 we submitted

documentation to the SBA in support of potential SBIC license for Solutions Capital II L.P In February 2013 we

received letter from the SBA inviting us to file formal license application which we are in the process of preparing

for submission There is no assurance that the SBA will grant the additional license in any specified time period or at

all Currently second SBIC license would grant us the ability to borrow up to an additional $75 million from the SBA
or two times the amount of statutory equity capital we invest in Solutions Capital II L.P If approved and depending

on available capital we intend to fund the entire $37.5 million using unrestricted cash

To realize the full $150.0 million in borrowings for which we have received approval under the SBIC program we have

funded total of $75.0 million to Solutions Capital As of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 Solutions

Capital had borrowed $150.0 million and $128.6 million respectively We are permitted to use these funds to provide

debt and equity capital to qualifying small businesses However we may not use these borrowings to provide additional

financing to certain companies that are currently in our portfolio without SBA approval In addition we may not use

these funds to provide working capital to MCG Solutions Capitals parent company
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As of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 we had $187.9 million and $182.4 million respectively of

investments in our SBIC and we had $48.3 million and $28.8 million respectively of restricted cash to be used for

additional investments in our SBIC

Once drawn the SBIC debentures bear an interim interest rate of LIBOR plus 30 basis points The rate then becomes

fixed at the time of SBA pooling which occurs twice each year and is set to the then-current 10-year treasury rate

plus spread and an annual SBA charge As of December 31 2012 the SBIC had borrowings outstanding as

summarized in the following table

Amount Outstanding

dollars in thousands
December 31 December 31

2012 2011
Rate

Tranche

2600 6.44% Fixed

12000 5.34% Fixed

13000 4.95% Fixed

27500 3.93% Fixed

53500 4.80% Fixed

3.38% Fixed

4.33%

us to exclude debt issued by Solutions

MCG Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1

In April 2006 we completed $500.0 million debt securitization through the MCG Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1 or

2006-1 Trust wholly owned subsidiary The 2006-1 Trust issued $106.25 million of Class A-i Notes $50.0 million

of Class A-2 Notes $85.0 million of Class A-3 Notes $58.75 million of Class Notes $45.0 million of Class Notes

and $47.5 million of Class Notes The respective classes of notes were issued with interest at LIBOR plus 0.33%

0.35% 0.33% 0.58% 1.05% and 2.25% As of December 31 2012 we have repaid all of the ClassAnotes

All of the notes are secured by the assets of the 2006-1 Trust The following table summarizes the fair value of the

assets securitized under this facility as of December 31 2012 and December31 2011

December31 2012 December31 2011

Amount Amount

136513 74.2A 258722 78.9%

30025 16.3 43640 13.3

452 0.3 282 0.1

166990 90.8 302644 92.3

16980 9.2 25195 7.7

183970 100.0 327839 100.0%

We retain all of the equity in the securitization The securitization included five-year reinvestment period which

ended in July2011

The outstanding Class Class and Class Notes are term notes The Class A-2 Notes initially provided for five-

year revolving period which has expired Therefore we may not draw on the Class A-2 Notes The Class A-3 Notes

were delayed draw class of secured notes which were drawn in full between July 2006 and April 2007 The pool of

commercial loans in the trust must meet certain requirements such as asset mix and concentration collateral coverage
term agency rating minimum coupon minimum spread and sector diversity requirements

2008-lOB 2600

2009-bA 12000

2009-lOB 13000

2010-lOB 27500

2011-bA 53500

2012-bA

Total

In October 2008 we received exemptive relief from the SEC which allows

Capital from the calculation of our consolidated BDC asset coverage ratio

41400 20000

150000$ 128600

dollars in thousands

Securitized assets

Senior secured debt

Subordinated secured debt

Common Equity

Total securitized assets

Cash securitization accounts

Total collateral
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Bank of America Unsecured Revolver

In November 2012 we entered into an unsecured revolving credit facility with Bank of America N.A in the principal

amount of $20.0 million or Bank of America Unsecured Revolver Advances under the Bank of America Unsecured

Revolver will bear interest at LIBOR plus 3.5% per annum and will expire in November 2014 We paid closing fee

in the amount of $0.2 million as well as other transaction costs of $0.2 million which we capitalized and amortize on

straight-line basis into interest expense on our Consolidated Statements of Operations over the two-year term of the

facility As of December 312012 there were no borrowings outstanding on the Bank of America Unsecured Revolver

The Bank ofAmerica Unsecured Revolver is subject to certain collateral requirements and financial covenants Included

among them are requirements that we maintain ratio of all unencumbered assets to outstanding amounts under the

Bank of America Unsecured Revolver of at least four-to-one as well as ratio of unencumbered cash and senior

portfolio loans to outstanding amounts under the Bank of America Unsecured Revolver of at least three-to-one The

Bank of America Unsecured Revolver may be prepaid at any time and is required to be paid in full for period of at

least five consecutive calendar days during each quarter

Commercial Loan Funding Trust

Through the MCG Commercial Loan Funding Trust we had warehouse financing facility funded through SunTrust

Bank On May 15 2012 we repaid in full the remaining $34.5 million balance and terminated the facility recognizing

$0.8 millionof unamortized deferred financing fees in interest expense The SunTrust Warehouse was secured primarily

by MCG Commercial Loan Funding Trusts assets including commercial loans that we sold to the trust

In January 2012 we entered into an amendment to the SunTrust Warehouse which among other things accelerated

the scheduled termination date to January 17 2012 and set the final legal maturity of this facility to January 17 2014

In connection with the execution of the amendment we paid an amendment fee of $0.5 million and recognized in

interest expense approximately $1.5 million of accelerated unamortized deferred financing fees

Private Placement Notes

In October 2007 we issued $25.0 million of Series 2007-A unsecured notes with five-year maturity Initially the

Series 2007-A notes bore interest at 6.71% per annum which rate was increased in 2009 to 8.96% per annum In

January 2012 we repaid the Series 2007-A notes in full

NOTE 7CAPITAL STOCK

We have one class of common stock and one class of preferred stock authorized Our board of directors is authorized

to provide for the issuance of shares of preferred stock in one or more series establish the number of shares to be

included in each such series and establish the designations voting powers preferences and rights of the shares of

each such series and any qualifications limitations or restrictions thereof subject to the 1940 Act

Stock Repurchase Program

On January 17 2012 our board of directors authorized stock repurchase program of up to $35.0 million Under the

program we are authorized to repurchase shares in open market transactions including through block purchases

depending on prevailing market conditions and other factors The repurchase program may be extended modified or

discontinued at any time for any reason The program does not obligate us to acquire any specific number of shares

and all repurchases will be made in accordance with SEC Rule lOb-18 which sets certain restrictions on the method

timing price and volume of stock repurchases During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 we repurchased

6182046 shares of our common stock at weighted average purchase price of $4.40 per share which was 18.7%

discount from our quarterly net asset value per share
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Distributions

The following table summarizes our distributions per share declared since January 2010

Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Amount

March 2013 March 15 2013 March 29 2013 0.125

October 26 2012 November 16 2012 November 30 2012 0.125

Ju1y272012 Augustl72012 August3l2012 0.140

April 27 2012 June 13 2012 July 13 2012 0.140

February 24 2012 April 13 2012 May 15 2012 0.170

October 31 2011 December15 2011 January 13 2012 0.170

Augustl2011 Septemberl42011 Octoberl42011 0.170

May 2011 June 15 2011 July 15 2011 0.170

March 12011 March 15 2011 April 15 2011 0.150

November 2010 December 2010 January 2011 0.140

August 2010 September 2010 October 2010 0.120

April 29 2010 June 2010 July 2010 0.110

NOTE 8EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

All full-time employees and those part-time employees who work at least 1000 hours per year are eligible to participate

in contributory employee savings plan that we sponsor under Section 401k of the Internal Revenue Code or 401

Plan Eligible employees may participate in the 401k Plan beginning on the first day of the calendar quarter

following their respective date of hire We match portion of the contribution made by employees to the 401k Plan

based upon percentage of defined compensation During the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we

incurred $152000 $345000 and $325000 respectively in expenses related to the 401k Plan

NOTE 9SHARE BASED COMPENSATION

EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Third Amended and Restated 2006 Employee Restricted Stock Plan

From time to time we award shares of restricted common stock to employees under our Third Amended and Restated

2006 Employee Restricted Stock Plan or the 2006 Plan which our stockholders initially approved in June 2006 In

May2010 our stockholders approved an amendment to the 2006 Plan increasing the number of shares we may award

from 3500000 to 6050000 shares Shares of restricted common stock awarded under the 2006 Plan may be subject

to the employees meeting service or performance conditions specified at the time of award The award date is the

date on which the shares are awarded by the Compensation Committee of our board of directors while the fair value

of the respective stock award is based on the closing price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Market

on the award date We amortize restricted stock awards on straight-line basis over the requisite service period and

report this expense as amortization of employee restricted stock awards on our Consolidated Statements of Operations

During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 and 2011 we issued 1000000 shares and 737250 shares

respectively of restricted stock under the 2006 Plan with weighted-average fair value per share of common stock

at the award date of $4.43 and $6.14 respectively

During each of the twelve months ended December 31 2012 and 2011 we recognized $2.1 million of compensation

expense related to share-based compensation awards As of December 31 2012 all the restricted share awards for

which forfeiture provisions had not lapsed carried non-forfeitable dividend rights to the holder of the restricted shares

As of December31 2012 we had $4.4 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted common stock

awarded to employees We expect to recognize these costs over the remaining weighted-average requisite service

period of 3.0 years

Long-Term Incentive Plan

On July 23 2009 our board of directors approved the Long-Term Incentive Plan or the LTIP which was effective for

the three-year period ended July 22 2012 LTIP participants including our executive officers and key non-executive
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employees received 862917 shares of our restricted common stock issued under the 2006 Plan and $3.0 million of

cash bonuses upon the achievement of specific stock price thresholds The plan expired on July 22 2012 and no

additional stock or cash awards can be issued under the LTIP During each of the twelve months ended December 31
2012 and 2011 we recognized less than $0.1 million of compensation expense for the equity awards

NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

During June 2006 our stockholders initially approved the 2006 Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan which

was subsequently amended and restated and which we refer to as the 2006 Non-Employee Plan In May 2010 our

stockholders approved an amendment to the 2006 Non-Employee Plan that increased the number of shares we may
award to non-employee members of our board of directors from 100000 to 150000 shares During the twelve months

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 we awarded 22500 and 15000 shares respectively of restricted common stock

to non-employee directors During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 and 2011we recognized $0.1 million

and $64000 respectively of compensation costs related to share-based awards to non-employee directors We
include this compensation cost in general and administrative expense on our Consolidated Statements of Operations

As of December 31 2012 we had less than $0.1 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted

common stock awarded to non-employee directors which we expect to recognize over the remaining weighted-average

requisite service period of 1.9 years

SUMMARY OF EMPLOYEE AND NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The following table summarizes our restricted stock award activity during the twelve months ended December 31
2012

Weighted-Average
Grant Date

Shares Fair Value per Share

Subject to forfeiture provisions as of December 31 2011 430510 6.14

Awarded 1022500 4.43

Forfeiture provision satisfied 275265 5.25

Forfeited 35725 6.87

Subject to forfeiture provisions as of December 31 2012 1142020 4.69

NOTE 10CORPORATE RESTRUCTURING

On August 2011 our board of directors approved plan to reduce our workforce by 42% including 22 current

employees and resignations Affected employees received severance pay continuation of benefits and foremployees

who had been awarded restricted stock additional lapsing of restrictions associated with restricted stock awards We
have accounted for these costs in accordance with ASC 420-10-Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations

During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 and 2011 we incurred $69000 and $4.3 million of restructuring

expenses related to severance obligations which we reported as separate line item on our Consolidated Statements

of Operations
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We included liabilities associated with our restructuring in other liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets The

following table summarizes changes in the balance of our restructuring liabilities from December 31 2009 through

December 31 2012

Severance

____________
Benefitsin thousands

Balance as of December 31 2009

Additions

Accretion

Cash payments

Balance as of December 31 2010

Additions

Accretion

cash payments

Balance as of December 31 2011

Additions

Accretion

Cash payments

Balance as of December 31 2012

NOTE 11INCOME TAXES

Other Total

178$ 111$ 289

27 27
178$ 85$ 263

3747 36 3783

56 57

1509 68 1577

2472 54 2526

66 66

1890 33 1923

648$ 21$ 669

As RIC we are taxed under Subchapter of the Internal Revenue Code As such our income generally is not

taxable to the extent we distribute it to stockholders and we meet certain qualification tests as outlined in the Internal

Revenue Code However income from certain investments owned by our wholly owned subsidiaries is subject to

federal state and local income taxes During 2012 and 2011 we declared and paid distributions from ordinary income

that were sufficient to meet our distribution requirements as RIC On continuing basis we monitor distribution

requirements in order to comply with Subchapter of the Internal Revenue Code

We use the asset and liability method to account for our Taxable Subsidiaries income taxes Using this method we

recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the estimated future tax effects attributable to temporary differences

between financial reporting and the tax basis of assets and liabilities In addition we recognize deferred tax benefits

associated with net operating carryforwards that we may use to offset future tax obligations We measure deferred

tax assets and liabilities using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which we

expect to recover or settle those temporary differences During the twelve months ended December 31 2012 2011

and 2010 we recorded income tax provisions of $0.3 million $37000 and $1.8 million respectively which were

primarily attributable to flow-through taxable income on certain investments held by our subsidiaries

From December 2001 through December 31 2012 we declared distributions per share of $13.39 Each year we mail

statements on Form 1099-DIV to our stockholders that identify whether we made distributions from ordinary income
net capital gains on the sale of securities which are each taxable distributions and/or return of paid-in-capital surplus

which is nontaxable distribution portion of our distributions may represent return of capital to our stockholders

to the extent that the total distributions paid in given year exceed current and accumulated taxable earnings and

profits All or portion of the distributions that we paid to stockholders during fiscal years 2012 2011 2008 2006

2005 2004 and 2003 represented return of capital

We determine the tax attributes of our distributions as of the end of our fiscal year based upon our taxable income for

the full year and distributions paid during the full year During 2012 2011 and 2010 we declared and paid distributions

from ordinary income that were sufficient to meet our distribution requirements as RIC We will monitor 2013 taxable

income in order to ensure compliance with the distribution requirements as RIC

On December 22 2010 the Regulated Investment Company Modernization Act of 2010 or the Modernization Act

was enacted which changed various technical rules governing the tax treatment of regulated investment companies
The changes are generally effective for taxable years beginning after the date of enactment One of the more prominent

changes addresses capital loss carryforwards Under the Modernization Act each RIC will be permitted to carry

forward capital losses incurred in taxable years beginning after the date of enactment for an unlimited period However

any losses incurred during those subsequent taxable years will be required to be utilized prior to the losses incurred

in pre-enactment taxable years which carry an expiration date As result of this ordering rule pre-enactment capital

loss carryforwards may be more likely to expire unused Additionally post-enactment capital loss carryforwards will
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retain their character as either short-term or long-term capital losses rather than being considered all short-term as

permitted under previous regulation For the tax years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we had net capital

losses of $70.5 million $26.1 million and $5.2 million respectively which we will carry forward to offset future net

capital gains to the extent permitted by federal tax law The net capital loss carryforward from 2010 will expire in the

tax year ending December 31 2018

For income tax purposes we report distributions paid to stockholders as ordinary income return of capital capital

gains or combination thereof For the tax year ended December 31 2012 100% of our distributions were return

of capital For the tax year ended December 31 2011 37% of our distributions were from ordinary income and 63%

of our distributions were return of capital For the tax year ended December 31 2010 100% of our distributions

were from ordinary income Distributions per common share for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

were taxable as foHows

Years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

$/Share of Total $/Share of Total $/Share of Total

Dividends declared during the year 0.575 0.66 0.37

Dividends declared in 2011 but paid in 2012 0.170 0.17

Dividends declared in 2010 but paid in 2011 0.14 0.14

Dividends paid in calendar year 0.745 0.63 0.23

Dividends declared in 2010 paid in 2011 but treated as

taxable in 2010 as required by the Internal Revenue

Code 0.03 0.03

Dividends paid for tax purposes 0.745 0.60 0.26

Dividends declared on tax Form 1099-DIVunaudited

Ordinary income 0.22 37.0% 0.26 100.0%

Long-term capital gains

Return of capitalb

Total reported on tax Form 1099-DIV

0.745 100.0 0.38 63.0

0.745 100.0% 0.60 100.0% 0.26 100.0%

Ordinary income was reported on Form 1099-DIV as either qualified or non-qualified

Return of capital refers to those amounts reported as nontaxable distributions on Form 1099-DIV

On tax basis distributions allocable to 2012 were composed of $55.2 million of return of capital distributions allocable

to 2011 were composed of $16.3 million of ordinary income and $29.0 million return of capital and distributions in 2010

were composed of $20.0 million of ordinary income The following table summarizes changes in our cumulative

distributions in excess of earnings for federal income tax purposes for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

in thousands

Beginning Balance

Current year return of capital

Current year tax permanent differences

Tax distributions in excess of earnings

December 31

2012 2011

195310 166029

55211 29021

644 260

251165 195310

Taxable income differs from net income recognized in accordance with GAAP because of temporary and permanent

differences in income and expense recognition

Taxable income generally excludes unrealized gains and losses from appreciation or depreciation of our investments

which are included in GA.AP net income Further amounts recognized for financial reporting purposes may differ from

amounts included in taxable income due to the accrued dividends on preferred stock which increases the book basis

but not the tax basis of our investments and non-accrual interest on loans which increases tax basis but not book

basis
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in thousands

Cost for federal income tax purposes

Gross unrealized appreciation

Unrealized appreciation of fair value of portfolio investments GMP
Book to tax differences

Gross unrealized appreciationtax basis

Gross unrealized depreciation

Unrealized depreciation of fair value of portfolio investments GMP
Book to tax differences

Gross unrealized depreciationtax basis

Net unrealized depreciationtax basis

Less Unrealized depreciation of fair value of other assets and liabilities GAAP
Gross realized depreciation

Book to tax differences

Net realized depreciationtax basis

Total investments at fair value GAAP

Taxable loss income before deductions for distributions

2012

4998 93115

27681 52005

85282 39354

70513 25992

1456 5909

17586 1257

3688 7344

1532 2152

277 37

3030 4337

3129 16252

Results for the years ended December31 2012 and 2011 reflect the reversal of interest we previously recognized on non-accrual loans

of portfolio investments that we monetized In accordance with the Internal Revenue Code we are required to recognize as taxable interest

income all interest that is owed to us by portfolio companies including interest on those debt investments that are on non-accrual status

for GAAP reporting purposes

As of December 31 2012 based on our analysis of our tax position we concluded that we did not have any uncertain

tax positions that met the recognition or measurement criteria of ASC Topic 740 Income Taxes

The following table summarizes the cost as well as the unrealized appreciation and depreciation for federal income

tax purposes as of December 31 2012 and 2011

December 31

2012 2011

593526 921773

7752 43663

75261 84712

83013 128375

198814 320007

198814 320007

115801 191632

294

10731

10731

477724 741166

The following table reconciles GAAP net income loss to taxable loss income for the years ended

2012 and 2011

December 31

Years ended December 31

2011in thousands

Net income loss

Difference between book and tax losses on investments

Net change in unrealized depreciation on investments not taxable until realized

Capital losses in excess of capital gains

Timing difference related to deductibility of long-term incentive compensation

Taxable interest income on non-accrual loans

Dividend income accrued for GAAP purposes that is not yet taxable

Distributions from taxable subsidiaries

Federal tax provision

Other net
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NOTE 12EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted income loss per common share for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

dollars in thousands except per share amounts

Numerator for basic and diluted loss per share

Net income loss

Less Dividends declaredcommon and restricted shares

Undistributed earnings

Percentage allocated to common shares8

Undistributed earningscommon shares

Add Dividends declaredcommon shares

Numerator for common shares outstanding excluding participating

shares

Numerator for participating unvested shares only

Numerator for basic and diluted loss per sharetotal

Denominator for basic and diluted weighted-average shares outstanding

common shares outstanding

Participating unvested shares

Basic and diluted weighted-average common shares

outstandingtotaI

Earnings loss per sharebasic and diluted

Excluding participating unvested shares

Including participating unvested shares

Basic and diluted weighted-average common shares

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Weighted-average restricted shares

Total basic and diluted weighted-average common shares

Percentage allocated to common shares

Years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

4998 93115 13072

42889 50877 28343

37891 143992 41415

98.6% 100.0% 100.0%

37361 143992 41415

42289 50877 28343

4928 93115 13072

70

4998 93115 13072

73793 76259 75422

1066

74859 76259 75422

0.07 1.22 0.17

0.07 1.22 0.17

73793 76259 75422

1066

74859 76259 75422

98.6% 100.0% 100.0%

For the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 we excluded 735 and 1085 of weighted-average shares of restricted common stock

from the calculation of diluted loss per share because the inclusion of these shares would have had an anti-dilutive impact on the calculation

of loss per share

Holders of unvested shares of our issued and outstanding restricted common stock are eligible to receive non-forfeitable

dividends As such these unvested shares are participating securities requiring the two-class method of computing

earnings per share Pursuant to the two-class method we report basic and diluted earnings per share both inclusive

and exclusive of the participating securities

NOTE 13COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are party to certain legal proceedings incidental to the normal course of our business including the enforcement

of our rights under contracts with our portfolio companies While the outcome of these legal proceedings cannot at

this time be predicted with certainty we do not expect that these proceedings will have material effect on our financial

condition or results of operations

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

During the normal course of business we are party to certain financial instruments including loans participations in

loans guarantees letters of credit and other financial commitments We conduct extensive due diligence and when

appropriate obtain collateral to limit our credit risk Generally these commitments have fixed expiration dates or other

termination clauses which may require payment of fee by the counterparty We expect many of these commitments

will not be fully used before they expire therefore the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future

cash requirements
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We do not report the unused portions of these commitments on our Consolidated Balance Sheets As of December 31
2012 and December 31 2011 we had $23.0 million and $22.6 million respectively of outstanding unused loan

commitments We estimate that as of each of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 the fair value of these

commitments was $0.1 million based on the fees that we currently charge to enter into similar arrangements taking

into account the creditworthiness of the counterparties As of December31 2012 and December 31 2011 we had

no outstanding guarantees or standby letters of credit

LEASE OBLIGATIONS

We lease our headquarters and certain other facilities and equipment under non-cancelable operating and capital

leases which expire through 2014 We have sublet certain of our facilities to third parties The lease on our former

headquarters in Arlington Virginia expired in February 2013 In August 2012 we entered into lease agreement for

new office space in Arlington Virginia The new lease term is from October 2012 to November 2014 with base rent

of $0.4 million per year The base rent will not increase during the term of the lease In November 2012 we ceased

using our old headquarters and recognized the remaining amounts due under that lease in other liabilities on our

Consolidated Balance Sheets As of December 31 2012 our obligations for the remaining terms of these leases was

$1.1 million including $0.3 million related to our terminated lease which is recorded in other liabilities As of

December 31 2012 $0.7 million of our obligations for the remaining terms of these leases will be payable during the

next twelve months During the year ended December 31 2012 our rent expense totaled $2.2 million including

$0.5 million related to the termination of our old headquarters lease During the years ended December 31 2011 and

2010 our rent expense totaled $1.8 million and $1 .7 million respectively
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NOTE 14FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Following schedule summarizes financial highlights for the five years ended December 31 2012

PER SHARE DATA

Net asset value at beginning of year

Net loss income

Net operating income before net

investment gain loss loss on

extinguishment of debt and income tax

provision

Net unrealized appreciation depreciation
on investments

Net realized loss gain on investments

Loss gain on extinguishment of debt

before income tax provision

Income tax provision

Net income loss

Net decrease in net assets resulting from
distributions

Net decrease increase in net assets relating

to stock-based transactions

Issuance of shares of common stock

Issuance of shares of restricted common
stock

Repurchase of common stock

Net increase in stockholders equity from
restricted stock amortization

Net decrease increase in
stockholdbers

equity from other stock transactions

Net decrease increase in net

assets relating to share issuances

Net asset value at end of year

MARKET PRICE PER SHARE AT END OF YEAR

TOTAL RETURN

SHARES OF COMMON STOCK OUTSTANDING

Weighted-average diluted

End of year

NET ASSETS

Average

End of year

RATIO

in thousands except per share amounts

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

5.65 7.54 8.06 8.66 12.73

0.25 0.49 0.54 0.51 0.78

1.14 0.51 0.88 1.31 3.44

1.32 1.19 0.15 2.57 0.13

0.01 0.04 0.07 0.15

0.02 0.01

0.07 1.22 0.17 0.68 2.65

0.58 0.66 0.37 0.71

0.50

0.07 0.04 0.04 0.35

0.06

0.03 0.03 0.06 0.11 0.10

0.02 0.03 0.04

0.04 0.01 0.02 0.08 0.71

5.18 5.65 7.54 8.06 8.66

4.60 3.99 6.97 4.32 0.71

33.96% 33.72% 66.67 508.45 87.75%

74859 76259 75422 74692 72254

71721 76997 76662 76394 76075

397741 534240 611084 620243 788036

371728 434952 578016 615683 658911

Operating expenses to average net assets 10.61% 8.99 8.02 9.94 10.06

Net operating income to average net assets 4.73% 7.05 6.64 6.16 7.12

General and administrative expense to 52 63 0/ 88 0/ 52 0/ 11 0/

average net assets

Return on average equity 1.26% 17.43% 2.14% 8.23% 24.27%

Based on total number shares outstanding

Based on weighted-average number shares outstanding

Represents the effects of shares issued during the period and the lapsing of forfeiture provisions on restricted stock on earnings per

share

Total return market price per share beginning market price per share dividends paid per share beginning market price
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NOTE 15SELECTED QUARTERLY DATA UNAuDITED

The following tables summarize key unaudited financial information for the eight quarters ended December 31 2012

Results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for the full year or for any future quarter

in thousands except per share amounts

INCOME STATEMENT DATA

Revenue

Net operating income before net

investment gain loss loss on

extinguishment of debt and income

tax provision

Net income loss

Income loss per basic and diluted

common share

Weighted-average common shares

outstandingbasic and diluted

2012 Quarters 2011 Quarters

Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First

13421 12069 17944 17559 19475 20710 21208 24303

5113 4056 5595 4042

6412 4266 7037 1357

0.09 0.06 0.09

72594 73431 75142 77050

7464 5953 11238

48973 25109 10218

13003

8815

0.02 0.64 0.33 0.13 0.12

76514 76404 76343 75765
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ITEM CHANGEs IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DIScLOsURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer evaluated the

effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31 2012 The term disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e under the Exchange Act means controls and other

procedures of company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by company in reports

that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time

periods specified in the SECs rules and forms Disclosure controls and procedures include without limitation controls

and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by company in the reports that it files

or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the companys management including its

principal executive and principal financial officers as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Management recognizes that any controls and procedures no matter how well designed and operated can provide

only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating

the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures Based on the foregoing evaluation of our disclosure

controls and procedures as of December 31 2012 our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer concluded

that as of such date our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

MANAGEMENTS ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for

the Company Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 3a-1 5f or 5d-1 5f promulgated under the

Exchange Act as process designed by or under the supervision of the companys principal executive and principal

financial officers and effected by the companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and

procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions of the assets of the company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures

of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate

Our management including the supervision and participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December31 2012 In making this

assessment our management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission COSO in nternal ControlIntegrated Framework

Based on our assessment management concluded that as of December31 2012 our internal control over financial

reporting is effective based on those criteria

Our independent registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation report with regard to our internal control

over financial reporting
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TTESTATJON REPORT OF THE REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm regarding our internal control over financial

reporting appears on page 69

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

No change in our internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the

Exchange Act occurred during the fiscal quarter ended December 31 2012 that has materially affected or is

reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART HI

ITEM 10 DIREcToRs EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information relating to our directors nominees for election as directors executive officers and audit committee

under the headings Election of Directors Corporate GovernanceOur Executive Officers Corporate Governance

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance and Corporate GovernanceBoard Committees in our

definitive proxy statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference to such

proxy statement

We have adopted written code of business conduct and ethics that applies to our directors officers and employees

including our principal executive officer principal financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or persons

performing similar functions We make available our code of business conduct and ethics free of charge through our

website which is located at www.mcgcapital.com We are not including the information contained on our website as

part of or incorporating it by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K We intend to disclose any amendments

to or waivers from our code of business conduct and ethics that are required to be publicly disclosed pursuant to

rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the NASDAQ Global Select Market by filing such amendment

or waiver with the Securities and Exchange Commission and by posting it on our website

We made no material change to the procedures by which stockholders may recommend nominees to our board of

directors as described in our 2012 proxy statement

ITEM 11 ExEcUTIVE COMPENSATION

The discussion under the headings Executive Compensation Compensation of Directors Compensation Committee

Report Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation and Narrative Disclosure of Our Compensation

Policies and Practices as They Relate to Risk Management in our definitive proxy statement for the 2013 Annual

Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference to such proxy statement

ITEM 12 SEcURIm OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MAnERS

The discussion under the heading Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Stockholder Matters in our definitive proxy statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated

herein by reference to such proxy statement

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The discussion under the headings Certain Relationships and Related Transactions Policies and Procedures for

Related Person Transactions and Corporate Governance-Board Determination of Independence in our definitive

proxy statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference to such proxy

statement

ITEM 14 PRINcIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERwcEs

The discussion under the heading Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Auditors Fees andPre-Approval Policies and Procedures in our definitive proxy statement for the 2013 Annual

Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference to such proxy statement
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PART IV

ITEM 15 ExHIBITs AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Page

The following financial statements are filed herewith

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 69

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2012 and 2011 71

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 72

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 73

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 74

Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of December 31 2012 75

Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of December 31 2011 78

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 83

The following financial statement schedules are filed herewith

Schedule 12-14 Investments in and Advances to Affiliates 112

Exhibits required to be filed by Item 601 of Regulation S-K 114
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders

MCG Capital Corporation

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of MCG Capital Corporation the Company including the

consolidated schedules of investments as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements

of operations changes in net assets and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31

2012 and the consolidated financial highlights for each of the five years in the period ended December 31 2012 and

have issued our report thereon dated March 2013 included elsewhere in this Form 10-K Our audits also included

the Schedule 12-14 listed in Item 15 of this Form 10-K The Schedule 12-14 is the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our audits

In our opinion the Schedule 12-14 referred to above when considered in relation to the basic financial statements

taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

Is Ernst Young LLP

McLean Virginia

March 2013
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MCG Capital Corporation

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO AFFILIATES

Schedule 12-14

Year Ended
December 31

2012

Amount of

Interest or As of As of

Dividends December 31 December31
Credited to 2011 Gross Gross 2012

Investment lncome Fair Value Additions Reductions Fair Value

in thousands

Portfolio Company

Control Investments Majority-owned

Brodview Networks Holdings Series Preferred Stock

Inc
Series A-i Preferred Stock

Series Preferred Stock

Class Common Stock

GMC Television Broadcasting Senior Debt
LLC

Subordinated Debt

Class Voting Units

Intran Media LLC Preferred Units

Preferred Units

Preferred Units

Jet Plastica Investors LLC Senior Debt

Preferred LLC Interest

Orbitel Holdings LLC Senior Debt

Preferred LLC Interest

RadioPharmacy Investors Senior Debt

LLC
Subordinated Debt

Preferred LLC Interest

Total Control Investments Majority-owned

Control Investments Non-majority owned

National Product Services Inc Senior Debt

Series Preferred Stock

Series Preferred Stock

Common Stock

Total Control Investments Non-majority owned

Total Control Investments

5015 5015

5788 5788

74 74

17167 70 1501 15736

856

400 27 427

17 9145 1715 10860

18512 18512

980 19090 19090

603 8176 536 7640

1593 10355 319 156 10518

1919 15926 1918 1732 16112

5934 109648 4049 63691 50006

9615 9615

9615 9615

5934 119263 4049 73306 50006

112



MCG Capital Corporation

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO AFFILIATES

Year Ended
December 31

2012

Amount of

Interest or As of

Dividends December 31
Credited to Gross Gross 2012

lncome1 Additions Reductions Fair Value

Affiliate Investments

2122

Subordinated Debt 464 115 5719 10

Series Preferred Stock 61 61
Series Preferred Stock 270 270

Warrants to purchase
Common Stock

297 9640 19 9659

Series Preferred Units 53 2421 2421

1316 7353 408 109 7870

Series Preferred Stock 1931 272 2203

Series Preferred Stock 341 341

61 61
14691 16 14707

Limited Partner Interests 1073 1073

628 1442 16495

Warrants to purchase Class

Units 33 422 101

17412

Series Convertible

Preferred Stock 48 2642 12833

Warrants to purchase
Common Stock

Total Affiliate Investments

This schedule should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements including our Consolidated Schedule of Investments and

Notes and to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Common stock warrants options and in some cases preferred stock generally are non-income producing and restricted The principal

amount of the debt and the number of shares of common stock and preferred stock are shown in the Consolidated Schedule of Investments

as of December 31 2012

Gross additions include increases in investments resulting from new portfolio company investments paid-in-kind interest or dividends

amortization of discounts and fees and exchange of one or more existing securities for one or more new securities Gross additions also

include net increases in unrealized appreciation or net decreases in unrealized depreciation

Gross reductions include decreases in investments resulting from principal collections related to investment repayments or sales and the

exchange of one or more existing securities for one or more new securities Gross reductions also include net increases in unrealized

depreciation or net decreases in unrealized appreciation

All or part of this debt is on non-accrual status as of December31 2012 and therefore is considered non-income producing

Represents the total amount of interest or dividends credited to income for the portion of the year an investment was control investment

more than 25% owned or an affiliate investment 5% to 25% owned respectively All dividend income is non-cash unless otherwise

noted

Investment has been reclassified from non-affiliate investment to an affiliate investment due to certain voting rights that the Company

may have prior to the exercise of the warrants

As result of the restructuring of Broadview Networks Holdings Inc during 2012 our voting ownership percentage was reduced and the

company is classified as non-affiliate as of December31 2012

Information related to the amount of equity in the net
profit and loss for the period for the investments listed has not been included in this

schedule This information is not considered to be meaningful due to the complex capital structures of the portfolio companies with different

classes of equity securities outstanding with different preferences in liquidation These investments are neither consolidated nor accounted

for under the equity method of accounting

in thousands

Portfolio Company Investment

Advanced Sleep Concepts Inc Senior Debt

As of

December 31
2011

Fair Value

1010

Common Stock

5851

5614

3470

C7 Data Centers Inc Senior Debt

7199

Contract Datascan Holdings Inc Subordinated Debt

Common Stock

IDOC LLC Senior Debt

Miles Media Group LLC Senior Debt

646

Stratford School Holdings Inc Senior Debt

2267 17309

523

627 17412

10191

3087 621 3708

6761 69602 36383 43906 62079
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Exhibits

The following table lists exhibits filed as part of this report according to the number assigned to them in Item 601 of

Regulation S-K All exhibits listed in the following table are incorporated by reference except for those exhibits denoted

in the last column Please note that the agreements included as exhibits to this Form 10-K are included to provide

information regarding their terms and are not intended to provide any other factual or disclosure information about us

or the other parties to the agreements The agreements contain representations and warranties by each of the parties

to the applicable agreement that have been made solely for the benefit of the other parties to the applicable agreement

and may not describe the actual state of affairs as of the date they were made or at any other time

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Form and SEC Filing Date Filed with

No Description File No with SEC Exhibit No this 10-K

Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of MCG Capital Corporation 8-K May 31 2005 3.1

0-33377

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of MCG Capital Corporation 8-K April 11 2012 3.1

0-33377

Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate N-2 November 99.d.1

333-64596 2001

4.2 Third Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement by 10-K April 2002 10.1

and among MCG Capital Corporation and certain stockholders 0-33377

Material ContractsPurchase Financing and Credit

Agreements

10.1 Amended and Restated Custody Agreement by and between MCG 10-K March 2009 10.2

Capital Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank National Association 0-33377
dated December 11 2008

10.2 Indenture by and between MCG Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1 N-2 May 2006 99.f.24

and Wells Fargo Bank National Association dated as of
April 18 333-1 33669

2006

10.3 Collateral Management Agreement by and between MCG N-2 May 2006 99.f.25

Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1 and MCG Capital Corporation 333-133669
dated as of April 18 2006

10.4 Class A-2 Note Purchase Agreement by and among MCG N-2 May 2006 99.f.26

Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1 and Wells Fargo Bank National 333-1 33669
Association dated as of April 18 2006

10.5 Class A-3 Note Purchase Agreement by and among MCG N-2 May 2006 99.f.27

Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1 North Sea Funding Europe Asset 333-133669
Purchasing Company No B.V and Wells Fargo Bank National

Association dated as of April 18 2006

10.6 Class A-3 Note Purchase Agreement by and among MCG N-2 May 12006 99.f.28

Commercial Loan Trust 2006-1 Barclays Bank PLC and Wells 333- 133669
Fargo Bank National Association dated as of April 18 2006

10.7 FinancingAgreementdated November21 2012 between MCG 8-K November26 10.1

Capital Corporation and Bank of America N.A 0-33377 2012

Material ContractsLeases

10.8 Deed of Lease by and between Twin Towers II Associates Limited 10-Q November 14 10.50

Partnership as landlord and MCG Capital Corporation as tenant 0-33377 2002

dated as of September 24 2002

10.9 First Amendment to Deed of Lease by and between Twin Towers II 10-K March 2007 10.73

Property Associates LLC as landlord and MCG Capital 0-33377
Corporation as tenant dated as of November 30 2006

10.10 Partial Termination of Deed of Lease by and between 1000-1100 10-K March 2009 10.24

Wilson Owner LLC as landlord and MCG Capital Corporation as 0-33377
tenant dated as of November 15 2008

10.11 Sublease dated as of August 15 2012 by and between MCG 8-K August 16 10.1

Capital Corporation and FBR CO 0-33377 2012

Material ContractsManagement Contracts and

Compensation Plans

1012 MCG Capital Corporation 401k Plan

10.13 MCG Capital Corporation Dividend Reinvestment Plan N-2 November 99.e

333-64596 2001

10.14 MCG Capital Corporation Third Amended and Restated 2006 Non- 8-K0-33377 June 2010 10.2

Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan 8-K/A0-33377 June 2010 10.2

10.15 MCG Capital Corporation Third Amended and Restated 2006 8-K0-33377 June 12010 10.1

Employee Restricted Stock Plan 8-K/A0-33377 June 2010 10.1
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Form and SEC Filing Date Filed with

No Description File No with SEC Exhibit No this 10-K

i0.16 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Non-Employee Members 10-0 August 2010 10.4

of the Board of Directors pursuant to the Third Amended and 0-33377
Restated 2006 Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan

10.17 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Employees pursuant to 10-0 August 2010 10.3

the Third Amended and Restated 2006 Employee Restricted Stock 0-33377
Plan

10.18 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for MCG Executive Employee 8-K March 15 2012 10.3

pursuant to the Third Amended and Restated 2006 Employee 0-33377
Restricted Stock Plan

10.19 Restricted Stock Agreement by and between MCG Capital 10-K March 2009 10.37

Corporation and Hageri Saville dated November 21 2006 0-33377

10.20 Employment Agreement by and between MCG Capital Corporation 8-K September 19 10.2

and Hagen Saville dated as of September 18 2006 0-33377 2006

i0.21 Amendment to Employment Agreement by and between MCG 10-K March 2009 10.43

Capital Corporation and Hagen Saville dated as of 0-33377
December 31 2008

0.22 Amendment No to Employment Agreement by and between

MCG Capital Corporation and Hagen Saville dated as of

November 2012

10.23 Severance Confidentiality and Non-Solicitation Agreement by and 10-0 August 2011 10.6

between MCG Capital Corporation and Tod Reichert dated 0-33377
August 2011

0.24 Offer Letter of Keith Kennedy dated as of January 16 2012 8-K March 15 2012 10.4

0-33377

0.25 Offer Letter of Ehssan Peter Malekian dated as of July 23 2001

10.26 Letter agreement between MCG Capital Corporation and Stephen 10-0 May 2012 10.5

Bacica dated May 2012 0-33377

10.27 MCG Capital Corporation 2011 Severance Pay Plan dated 10-Q August 2011 10.4

August 2011 0-33377

10.28 Amendment No ito MCG Capital Corporation 2011 Severance 8-K March 15 2012 10.1

Pay Plan 0-33377

10.29 Amendment No.2 to MCG Capital Corporation Severance Pay 10-0 July 31 2012 10.1

Plan 0-33377

10.30 MCG Capital Corporation 2012 Annual Incentive Cash Bonus Plan 8-K March 15 2012 10.2

0-33377

Code of Ethics

14.1 Amended and Restated Code of Business Conduct and Ethics 8-K March 15 2012 14.1

dffective as of March 15 2012 0-33377

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

21 Subsidiaries of MCG Capital Corporation and Jurisdiction of

Incorporation/Organization

Consents of Experts

23.1 Consent of Ernst Young LLP independent registered public

accounting firm

Certifications

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14a
and 15d-i4a under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14a
and 15d-i4a under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C

Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C

Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

Furnished herewith

Management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed as an exhibit herein pursuant to Item 15a of Form 10-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized on March 2013

MCG CAPITAL CORPORATION

By Is Hagen Saville

Hagen Saville

Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this Report on Form 10-K has been signed below

by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

Is HAGEN SAvILLE

Li
President and Chief Executive Officer

nagen .avie
Principal Executive Officer March 2013

Is KEITH KENNEDY

th
Chief Financial Officer

ei enne
Principal Financial and Accounting Officer March 2013

/s RIcHARD NEU

Richard Neu Chairman of the Board and Director March 2013

Is KIM KELLY

Kim Kelly Director March 12013

Is KENNETH OKEEFE

Kenneth OKeefe Director March 2013

/s GAVIN SAIT0wITz

Gavin Saitowitz Director March 2013
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Executive Officers

Hagen Saville

President and Chief Executive Officer

Keith Kennedy

Executive Vice President

Managing Directoi

Chief Financial Officer

and Treasurer

Ehssan Peter Malekian

Executive Vice President and

Managing Oirector

Robert Marcotte

Executive Vice President and

Managing Oirector
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Executive Vice President

General Counsel

Chief Compliance Officer

and Corporate Secretary

Board of Directors

Kim Kelly

Consultant

Richard Neu

Chairman of the Board

MCG Capital Corporation

Kenneth OKeefe

Managing Oirector

COO

Vestar Capital Partners

Gavin Saitowitz

Managing Member

Springbok Capital Managemenf LLC

Hagen Saville

President and Chief Executive Officer

MCG Capital Corporation

Corporate Information MCG Capital Corporation

Corporate Offices

1001 19th Street North

10th Floor

Arlington Virginia 22209

Tel 703-247-7500

Fax 703-247-7505

www.mcgcapital.com

Investor Relations

Keith Kennedy

Chief Financial Officer

investorrelations@ mcgcapital.com

866-247-6242

Transfer Agent
American Stock Transfer

Trust Company

6201 15th Avenue

Brooklyn New York 11219

800-937-5449

Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm

Ernst Young LLP

8484 Westpark Drive

McLean Virginia 22102

703-747-1000

Legal Counsel

Wachtell Lipton Rosen Katz

51 West 52nd Street

New York New York 10019

212-403-1000

Stock Listing

MCG is traded on the NASDAQ Global

Select Market under the symbol MCGC
As of February 22 2013 there were

approximately 133 holders of record and

approximately 20574 beneficial holders

of our common stock

Annual Meeting
The 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

will be held on Wednesday May 29 2013

at 1000 a.m at Le Meridien Arlington

1121 19th Street North Arlington VA 22209

Stockholder Inquiries

Questions regarding stock transfer require

ments lost certificates and changes of

address should be directed to the transfer

agent as listed Other stockholder or
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our filings with the U.S Securities and

Exchange Commission should be directed

to Investor Relations at our address or

phone number

U.S Securities and Exchange Commission

filings are available on our website at

www.mcgcapital.com
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Safe Harbor

Statements contained or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report that are not based on historical facts may constitute forward-looking statements

for purposes of the safe harbor protection under applicable securities laws These forward-looking statements regarding future events and our future results

are based on current expectations estimates forecasts proiections intentions goals strategies plans prospects and the beliefs and assumptions of

our management Forward-looking statements can be identified by terminology such as anticipate believe could could increase the likelihood

hope target prolect goals potential predict mightestimate expect iritendis planned may should will will enable

would be expected look forward may provide would or similar terms variations of such terms or the negative of those terms We cannot assure

investors that our expectations estimates forecasts prolections intentions goals strategies plans prospects beliefs and assumptions will prove to have

been correct Important factors could cause our actual results to differ materially from those indicated or implied by forward-looking statements Such factors

that could cause or contribute to such differences include those factors discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012

under the section Risk Factors as well as other documents that may be filed by us from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission We

undertake no intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements whether as result of new information future events or otherwise

Our logo trademarks and service marks are the property of MCG Capital Corporation Other trademarks or service marks appearing in this Annual Report

are the property of their respective holders




